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NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF

PEBBLEBROOK HOTEL TRUST

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that our 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders the Annual Meeting
will be held on Thursday May 21 2010 at 800 a.m Eastern Time at our headquarters Bethesda Metro
Center Suite 1530 Bethesda Maryland 20814 for the following purposes

to elect the trustees of the Company to serve until our 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and
until their successors are duly elected and qualified

to ratify the selection of KPMG LLP to serve as our independent registered public accountants
for the year ending December 31 2010 and

to consider and act upon any other matters that may properly be brought before the Annual
Meeting and at any adjournments or postponements thereof

Shareholders of record at the close of business on March 22 2010 are entitled to notice of and to vote
at the Annual Meeting and any adjournment or postponement of the meeting If you wish to attend the
Annual Meeting in person please register in advance with Investor Relations by email at investors@pebble
brookhotels.com or by phone at 240 507-1306 Attendance at the Annual Meeting will be limited to persons
that register in advance and present proof of share ownership on the record date and picture identification If

you hold shares directly in your name as the shareholder of record proof of ownership would include copy
of your account statement or copy of your share certificates If you hold shares through an intermediary
such as broker bank or other nominee proof of share ownership would include proxy from your brokei
bank or other nominee or copy of your brokerage or bank account statement Additionally if you intend to

vote your shares at the meeting and hold your shares through an intermediary you must request legalpro from your broker bank or other nominee and bring this legal proxy to the meeting

Pursuant to rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission we are providing access to

our proxy materials over the Internet On or about April 2010 we expect to mail to our shareholders
Notice of Internet

Availability of Proxy Materials the Notice which will indicate how to access our proxy
materials on the Internet

Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting your vote is very important and we
encourage you to vote promptly You may vote your shares via toll-free telephone number or over the
Internet If you received paper copy of the proxy card by mail you may sign date and mail the proxy
card in the envelope provided Instructions regarding all three methods of voting will be contained in
the proxy card or Notice that you receive If you execute proxy by telephone over the Internet or by
mailing in proxy card but later decide to attend the Annual Meeting in person or for any other
reason desire to revoke your proxy you may do so at any time before your proxy is voted

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

/5/ RAYMOND MARTZ

Raymond Martz

Secretary

Bethesda Maryland

April 2010

Bethesda Metro Center

Bethesda Maryland 20814

OF
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Bethesda Metro Center Suite 1530

Bethesda Maryland 20814

PROXY STATEMENT

FOR THE 2010 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON MAY 21 2010

This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the board of trustees

the Board of Trustees or the Board of Pebblebrook Hotel Trust the Company we or us for use at

our 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders the Annual Meeting to be held at our headquarters Bethesda

Metro Center Suite 1530 Bethesda Maryland 20814 on Thursday May 21 2010 at 800 a.m Eastern Time

and for the purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders and at any

adjournments or postponements thereof

Pursuant to rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC we are providing

access to our proxy materials over the Internet On or about April 2010 we expect to mail our shareholders

either Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials the Notice in connection with the solicitation of

proxies by our Board of Trustees for use at the Annual Meeting and any adjournments or postponements

thereof On the date of mailing we will make our Proxy Statement including the Notice of Annual Meeting

attached hereto and our annual report to shareholders which will include our Annual Report on Form 10-K

publicly available on the Internet according to the instructions provided in the Notice

If you received Notice by mail you will not receive printed copy of the proxy materials other than as

described herein Instead the Notice will instruct you as to how you may access and review all of the

important information contained in the proxy materials The Notice will also instruct you as to how you may

submit your proxy over the Internet If you received Notice by mail and would like to receive printed copy

of our proxy materials you should follow the instructions for requesting such materials included in the Notice

This proxy statement the accompanying proxy card and our annual report to shareholders which includes

our Annual Report on Form 10-K with audited financial statements for the period from October 2009

inception to December 31 2009 are first being sent to our shareholders on or about April 2010

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of

Shareholders to Be Held on May 21 2010 This proxy statement and our annual report to shareholders are

available on the Internet at www.proxyvote.com On this site you will be able to access this proxy statement

our annual report to shareholders including our Annual Report on Form 10-K and any amendments or

supplements to the foregoing material that are required to be furnished to shareholders



QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

How will we solicit proxies for the Annual Meeting

We are soliciting proxies by mailing this proxy statement and proxy card to our shareholders In addition

to solicitation by mail some of our trustees officers and employees may make additional solicitations by

telephone or in person without extra pay We will pay the solicitation costs and will reimburse banks

brokerage houses and other custodians nominees and fiduciaries for their reasonable expenses in

forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners

We will employ Broadridge Financial Solutions to receive and tabulate the proxies

Who is entitled to vote

All shareholders of record as of the close of business on March 22 2010 which is the record date are

entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting

What is the quorum for the Annual Meeting

quorum at the Annual Meeting will consist of majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the holders

of all outstanding common shares of beneficial interest par value $0.01 per share of the Company

Common Shares No business may be conducted at the meeting if quorum is not present As of the

record date 20343746 Common Shares were issued and outstanding If less than majority of our

outstanding Common Shares entitled to vote are represented at the Annual Meeting the chairman of the

meeting may adjourn or postpone the Annual Meeting to another date time or place not later than

120 days after the original record date of March 22 2010 Notice need not be given of the new date time

or place if announced at the meeting before an adjournment or postponement is taken

How many votes do have

You are entitled to one vote for each whole Common Share you held as of the record date Our

shareholders do not have the right to cumulate their votes for trustees

How do vote

You may vote by Internet by telephone by mail or in person at the Annual Meeting Authorizing your

proxy by one of the methods described below will not limit your right to attend the Annual Meeting and

vote your Common Shares in person Your proxy one of the individuals named in your proxy card will

vote your Common Shares per your instructions If you fail to provide instructions on properly

submitted proxy your proxy will vote as recommended by the Board of Trustees to elect FOR the

trustee nominees listed in Proposal Election of Trustees and in favor of FOR Proposal

Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

By Internet before 1159 PM Eastern Daylight Time on May 20 2010

You may vote via the Internet by going to www.proxyvote.com and following the instructions on the

screen Have your Notice or proxy card available when you access the web page

By Telephone before 11.59 PM Eastern Daylight Time on May 20 2010

You may vote by telephone by calling the toll-free telephone number on your proxy card

1-800-690-6903 which is available 24 hours day and following prerecorded instructions Have

your proxy card available when you call If you hold your Common Shares in street name your

broker bank trustee or other nominee may provide additional instructions to you regarding voting

your Common Shares by telephone

By Mail proxy card must be received by May 20 2010

If you received your proxy materials by mail you may vote by mail by marking the enclosed proxy

card dating and signing it and returning it in the postage-paid envelope provided or returning it to

Pebblebrook Hotel Trust do Broadridge 51 Mercedes Way Edgewood New York 11717



In Person only at the Annual Meeting on May 21 2010

If you are shareholder of record you may vote in person at the Annual Meeting If you wish to

attend the Annual Meeting in person please register in advance with Investor Relations by email at

investors@pebblebrookhotels.com or by phone at 240 507-1306 Attendance at the Annual Meeting

will be limited to persons that register in advance and present proof of share ownership on the record

date and picture identification If you hold Common Shares directly in your name as the shareholder

of record proof of ownership would include copy of your account statement or copy of your

share certificates If you hold Common Shares through an intermediary such as broker bank or

other nominee proof of share ownership would include proxy from your broker bank or other

nominee or copy of your brokerage or bank account statement Additionally if you intend to vote

your Common Shares at the meeting and hold your Common Shares through an intermediary you

must request legal proxy from your broker bank or other nominee and bring this legal proxy to

the meeting

How do vote my Common Shares that are held by my broker

If you have Common Shares held by broker you may instruct your broker to vote your Common Shares

by following the instructions that the broker provides to you Most brokers allow you to authorize your

proxy by mail telephone and on the Internet

On July 2009 the SEC approved change to New York Stock Exchange NYSE Rule 452 that

eliminated the ability of brokers to exercise discretionary voting in uncontested trustee elections The

change which is effective for shareholder meetings that are held after January 2010 prohibits NYSE

member organizations from giving proxy to vote with respect to an election of trustees without

receiving voting instructions from beneficial owner Therefore brokers will not be entitled to vote

Common Shares at the Annual Meeting with respect to the election of trustees without instructions by the

beneficial owner of the Common Shares Beneficial owners of Common Shares held in broker accounts

are advised that if they do not timely provide instructions to their broker their Common Shares will

not be voted in connection with the election of trustees

What am voting on

You will be voting on

Proposal the election of seven trustees to hold office until our 2011 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders and until their successors are duly elected and qualified and

Proposal the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP KPMG to act as our independent

registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31 2010

What vote is required to approve the proposals assuming that quorum is present at the Annual

Meeting

Proposal Election of Trustees The election of each trustee nominee must be

approved by plurality of the votes cast

Proposal Ratification of Independent Auditors Ratification of the appointment of auditors requires

majority of the votes cast

How are abstentions and broker non-votes treated

broker non-vote occurs when bank broker or other holder of record holding Common Shares for

beneficial owner does not vote on particular proposal because that holder does not have discretionary

voting power for that particular item and has not received instructions from the beneficial owner Pursuant

to Maryland law abstentions and broker non-votes are counted as present for purposes of determining the

presence of quorum Abstentions and broker non-votes will not count for or against the election of

trustees or the ratification of KPMG as our independent public accountants and thus will have no effect

on the result of the vote on these proposals



Under the rules of the NYSE brokerage firms may have the discretionary authority to vote their

customers Common Shares on certain routine matters for which they do not receive voting instructions

including the ratification of independent auditors The NYSE has recently stated that the uncontested

election of trustees is no longer considered routine matter for purposes of broker discretionary voting

Will there be any other items of business on the agenda

The Board of Trustees does not know of any other matters that may be brought before the Annual

Meeting nor does it foresee or have reason to believe that proxy holders will have to vote for substitute or

alternate nominees for election to the Board of Trustees In the event that any other matter should come

before the Annual Meeting or any nominee is not available for election the persons named in the

enclosed proxy will have discretionary authority to vote all proxies with respect to such matters in

accordance with their discretion

What happens submit my proxy without providing voting instructions on all proposals

Proxies properly submitted will be voted at the Annual Meeting in accordance with your directions If the

properly submitted proxy does not provide voting instructions on proposal the proxy will be voted to

elect FOR each of the trustee nominees listed in Proposal Election of Trustees and in favor of

FOR Proposal Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Will anyone contact me regarding this vote

No arrangements or contracts have been made with any solicitors as of the date of this proxy statement

although we reserve the right to engage solicitors if we deem them necessary
Solicitations may be made

by mail telephone facsimile e-mail or personal interviews

Who has paid for this proxy solicitation

We have paid the entire expense of preparing printing and mailing the proxy materials and any
additional

materials furnished to shareholders Proxies may be solicited by our trustees officers or employees

personally or by telephone without additional compensation for such activities We also will request

persons firms and corporations holding Common Shares in their names or in the names of their

nominees which are beneficially owned by others to send appropriate solicitation materials to such

beneficial owners We will reimburse such holders for their reasonable expenses

May shareholders ask questions at the Annual Meeting

Yes There will be time allotted at the end of the meeting when our representatives will answer questions

from the floor

What does it mean if receive more than one proxy card

It probably means your Common Shares are registered differently and are in more than one account Sign

and return or vote by Internet or phone all proxy cards to ensure that all your Common Shares are

voted

Can change my vote after have voted

Yes Proxies properly submitted by mail phone or Internet do not preclude shareholder from voting in

person at the meeting shareholder may revoke proxy at any time prior to its exercise by filing with

our corporate secretary duly executed revocation of proxy by properly submitting by mail phone or

Internet proxy to our corporate secretary bearing later date or by appearing at the meeting and voting

in person Attendance at the meeting will not by itself constitute revocation of proxy

Can find additional information on the Companys webs ite

Yes Our Internet website is located at www.pebblebrookhotels.com Although the information contained

on our website is not part of this proxy statement you can view additional information on the website

such as our corporate governance guidelines our code of business conduct and ethics charters of our

board committees and reports that we file with the SEC



PROPOSAL ELECTION OF TRUSTEES

Our Board of Trustees consists of seven members who serve for term of one year and until their

successors are duly elected and qualified The term of membership expires at each Annual Meeting of

Shareholders

At the Annual Meeting all seven trustees are nominated for election to serve until the 2011 Annual

Meeting of Shareholders and until their successors are duly elected and qualified The Board of Trustees has

nominated our current trustees Jon Bortz Cydney Donnell Ron Jackson Martin Nesbitt Michael

Schall Earl Webb and Laura Wright to serve as trustees each Nominee and collectively the

Nominees until the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and until their successors are duly elected and

qualified The Board of Trustees anticipates that each Nominee will serve if elected as trustee However if

any person nominated by the Board of Trustees is unable to accept election the proxies will be voted for the

election of such other person or persons as the Board of Trustees may recommend

The Board of Trustees recommends vote FOR each Nominee

Information Regarding the Nominees

We believe that all of the Nominees are intelligent experienced collegial insightful and proactive with

respect to management and risk oversight and that they exercise good judgment The biographical descriptions

below set forth certain information with respect to each Nominee including the experience qualifications

attributes or skills of each Nominee that led us to conclude that such person should serve as trustee Each of

our current trustees has served on the board since the completion of the initial public offering of Common

Shares our IPO in December 2009 Mr Bortz our Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer has

served on the Board since our inception on October 2009

Name Age Background Information

Jon Bortz 53 Mr Bortz has served as our Chairman President and Chief Executive

Officer since our formation in October 2009 Mr Bortz served as

President Chief Executive Officer and Trustee of LaSalle Hotel

Properties from its formation in April 1998 until his retirement in

September 2009 In addition Mr Bortz served as Chairman of the

Board of LaSalle Hotel Properties from January 2001 until his

retirement

Prior to forming LaSalle Hotel Properties Mr Bortz founded the

Hotel Investment Group of Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated in

January 1994 and as its President oversaw all of Jones Lang

LaSalles hotel investment and development activities From January

1995 to April 1998 as Managing Director of Jones Lang LaSalles

Investment Advisory Division he was also responsible for certain

East Coast development projects From January 1990 to 1995 he was

Senior Vice President of Jones Lang LaSalles Investment Division

with responsibility for East Coast development projects and

workouts Mr Bortz joined Jones Lang LaSalle in 1981 He is

former member of the Board of Governors and the Executive

Committee of the National Association of Real Estate Investment

Trusts or NAREIT and serves on the board of trustees of Federal

Realty Investment Trust and the board of directors of Metropark

USA Inc Mr Bortz holds B.S in Economics from The Wharton

School of the University of Pennsylvania and is Certified Public

Accountant

We believe that Mr Bortz should serve as member of our Board of

Trustees due to his long and distinguished career as chief executive

in the lodging industry



Name Age Background Information

Cydney Donnell 50 Ms Donnell has served on our board of trustees since the completion

of our IPO in December 2009 She has been an Executive Professor

at the Mays Business School of Texas AM University since August

2004 where she currently serves as Director of Real Estate

Programs Ms Donnell joined the Mays School in January of 2004

Ms Donnell was formerly principal and Managing Director of

European Investors/E.I.I Realty Securities Inc or Eli Ms Donnell

served in various capacities at Eli and was Chair of the Investment

Committee from 2002 to 2003 the Head of the Real Estate Securities

Group and Portfolio Manager from 1992 to 2002 and Vice President

and Analyst from 1986 to 1992 Prior to joining Eli she was real

estate lending officer at RepublicBanc Corporation in San Antonio

from 1982 to 1986 She currently serves as member of the

Executive Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee of the Board of Directors of American Campus

Communities publicly traded student-housing REIT as member

of the Valuation Nominating and Compensation and Audit

Committee of the Board of Directors of Madison Harbor Balanced

Strategies Inc real estate fund of funds registered under the

Investment Company Act of 1940 and as the Vice Chair of the

Board of Trustees of the Employee Retirement System of Texas

Ms Donnell has served on the Board and Institutional Advisory

Committee of NAREIT Ms Donnell received B.B.A from Texas

AM University and an M.B.A from Southern Methodist University

We believe that Ms Donnell should serve as member of our Board

of Trustees due to her significant experience in the public real estate

industry and her experience teaching corporate governance at the

business school level

Ron Jackson 67 Mr Jackson has served on our board of trustees since the completion

of our IPO in December 2009 Mr Jackson is the President and Chief

Executive Officer of Meadowbrook Golf multi-faceted golf

company with divisions in golf turf equipment golf maintenance and

golf operations Prior to joining Meadowbrook Golf in January 2001

Mr Jackson was the President and Chief Operating Officer of Resort

Condominiums International or RCI Cendant Company with 2600

resorts in 109 countries Prior to RCI Mr Jackson was the Chief

Operating Officer of Chartwell Leisure hotel owner/operator and

developer Prior to Chartwell Leisure Mr Jackson was the founder

President and Chief Executive Officer of Sunbelt Hotels and Sunbelt

Management Company which was the largest franchisee of Hilton

Hotels in the United States Mr Jackson received B.S in Finance

and Marketing from Brigham Young University and an M.B.A from

the University of Utah

We believe that Mr Jackson should serve as member of our Board

of Trustees due to his significant experience as senior executive in

the lodging and resorts industry



Name Age Background Information

Martin Nesbitt 47 Mr Nesbitt has served on our board of trustees since the completion

of our IPO in December 2009 Mr Nesbitt is the founder President

and Chief Executive Officer of PRG Parking Management dlb/a The

Parking Spot an owner and operator of off-airport parking facilities

Prior to founding The Parking Spot in 1998 Mr Nesbitt was Vice

President of the Pritzker Realty Group L.P or Pritzker where he

was responsible for procuring new real estate investment

opportunities and managing retail investments and developments

Prior to Pritzker from 1989 to 1996 Mr Nesbitt was an equity

partner and Investment Manager at LaSalle Partners or LaSalle with

variety of responsibilities including investment management for

retail properties management and leasing for office projects and

acquisition financing and management of parking properties While

at LaSalle he also managed several specialty fund portfolios of non
traditional real estate investments Prior to joining LaSalle Mr
Nesbitt was employed by General Motors Acceptance Corporation in

the area of financial planning Mr Nesbitt holds B.S from Albion

College and an M.B.A from the University of Chicago

We believe that Mr Nesbitt should serve as member of our Board

of Trustees due to his extensive experience as the chief executive of

travel-related company and as an investor in and investment manager
of real estate and retail and commercial properties

Michael Schall 52 Mr Schall has served on our board of trustees since the completion

of our IPO in December 2009 He is the Senior Executive Vice

President and Chief Operating Officer of Essex Property Trust Inc
or Essex publicly traded real estate investment trust where he is

responsible for the strategic planning and management of Essexs

property operations redevelopment and co-investment programs
Mr Schall is also currently member of the Board of Directors of

Essex From 1993 to 2005 Mr Schall was Essexs Chief Financial

Officer responsible for the organizations financial and administrative

matters He was also the Chief Financial Officer of Essexs

predecessor Essex Property Corporation He joined The Marcus

Millichap Company in 1986 From 1982 to 1986 Mr Schall was

Director of Finance for Churchill International technology-oriented

venture capital company From 1979 to 1982 Mr Schall was

employed in the audit department of Ernst Young then known as

Ernst Whinney where he specialized in the real estate and

financial services industries Mr Schall received B.S from the

University of San Francisco Mr Schall is Certified Public

Accountant inactive and is member of NAREIT the National

Multi Housing Council and the American Institute of Certified Public

Accountants

We believe that Mr Schall should serve as member of our Board of

Trustees due to his extensive experience as member of the senior

management of publicly traded REIT including responsibility for

public reporting and his accounting and finance expertise and

background



Name Age Background Information

Earl Webb 53 Mr Webb has served on our board of trustees since the completion of

our IPO in December 2009 Mr Webb is President of U.S

Operations for Avison Young LLC or Avison Canada-based

commercial real estate company Prior to joining Avison from

January 2003 to August 2009 Mr Webb was the Chief Executive

Officer of Jones Lang LaSalles Capital Markets Group in the

Americas where he was responsible for strategic direction and

management of all capital markets activities throughout the region

From February 1999 to December 2002 Mr Webb served as Chief

Executive Officer of Jones Lang LaSalle Americas Inc directing all

of the firms Corporate Solutions Investors Services and Capital

Markets businesses throughout the Americas and from 1985 to

February 1999 he held other various positions with that company

From 1981 to 1985 Mr Webb served as Second Vice President in

the Capital Markets Group at Continental Illinois National Bank

Mr Webb holds B.S from the University of Virginia and an

M.B.A from the J.L Kellogg Graduate School of Management at

Northwestern University He is Registered Securities Principal

series 24 and 63 is an Associate Member of the Urban Land

Institute and is member of the International Council of Shopping

Centers the Real Estate Investment Advisory Council and the Real

Estate Roundtable

We believe that Mr Webb should serve as member of our Board of

Trustees due to his significant experience as senior executive in the

real estate and financial services industries and his significant capital

markets expertise

Laura Wright 50 Ms Wright has served on our board of trustees since the completion

of our IPO in December 2009 Ms Wright is Senior Vice President

Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Southwest Airlines Co or

Southwest From 1998 to July 2004 Ms Wright served as

Southwests Vice President Finance and Treasurer From 1988 to

1998 Ms Wright served as Assistant Treasurer Director Corporate

Finance and Director Corporate Tax of Southwest Prior to joining

Southwest Ms Wright was Tax Manager with Arthur Young

Company Ms Wright received B.S.A and an M.S.A from the

University of North Texas Ms Wright is Certified Public

Accountant and is member of the Texas Society of Certified Public

Accountants the Financial Executives Institute and the North Texas

CFO Forum

We believe that Ms Wright should serve as member of our Board

of Trustees due to her significant experience in the travel industry

and in accounting finance and financial reporting for public

company

Trustee Independence

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines require that majority of our trustees be independent Our Board

of Trustees has adopted the categorical standards prescribed by the NYSE to assist the Board of Trustees in

evaluating the independence of each of the trustees The categorical standards describe various types of

relationships that could potentially exist between board member and our Company and sets thresholds at

which such relationships would be deemed to be material Provided that no relationship or transaction exists

that would disqualify trustee under the categorical standards and the Board of Trustees determines taking

into account all facts and circumstances that no other material relationship between our Company and the

trustee exists of type not specifically mentioned in the categorical standards the Board of Trustees will deem



such person to be independent trustee shall not be independent if he or she satisfies any one or more of the

following criteria

trustee who is or who has been within the last three years an employee of our Company or whose

immediate family member is or has been within the last three years an executive officer of the

Company

trustee who has received or who has an immediate family member serving as an executive officer

who has received during any twelve-month period within the last three years more than $120000 in

direct compensation from our Company excluding trustee and committee fees and pensionlother fonns

of deferred compensation for prior service that is not contingent in any way on continued service

trustee who is or whose immediate family member is current partner of firm that is our

Companys internal or external auditor ii trustee who is current employee of such firm iii

trustee who has an immediate family member who is current employee of such firm and personally

works on the Companys audit or iv trustee who was or whose immediate family member was

within the last three years but is no longer partner or employee of such firm and personally

worked on our Companys audit within that time

trustee who is or has been within the last three years or whose immediate family member is or has

been within the last three years employed as an executive officer of another company where any of our

Companys present executives at the same time serves or served on that companys compensation

committee or

trustee who is current employee or whose immediate family member is current executive officer

of company that has made payments to or received payments from our Company for property or

services in an amount which in any of the last three fiscal years exceeds the greater of $1 million or

2% of such other companys consolidated gross revenues as reported for the last completed fiscal

year

Under these criteria our Board of Trustees has determined that the following members of our Board of

Trustees are independent Cydney Donnell Ron Jackson Martin Nesbitt Michael Schall Earl

Webb and Laura Wright We presently have seven trustees including these six independent trustees

The Board of Trustees and Its Committees

The Company is managed under the direction of our seven-member Board of Trustees Members of our

Board are kept informed of our business through discussions with our executive officers by reviewing

materials provided to them and by participating in meetings of the Board and its committees Six of the

trustees are independent of the Companys management The Board of Trustees held no meetings during their

seventeen-day tenure in 2009 following the completion of our IPO on December 14 2009 The Board of

Trustees and each of its committees first met in March 2010 All of the trustees participated in this first

meeting Pebblebrook Hotel Trust has three standing committees the Audit Committee the Compensation

Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Our Board of Trustees may from time

to time establish other committees to facilitate the management of our company Each of these committees has

written charter adopted by the Board of Trustees has four members and is composed exclusively of

independent trustees as defined in the rules and listing qualifications of the NYSE and with respect to the

members of the Audit Committee Rule 1OA-3 promulgated pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

as amended the Exchange Act

The Board of Trustees does not have policy with respect to trustees attendance at annual meetings of

shareholders and because of the routine nature of the meetings and anticipated low levels of in-person

shareholder participation at annual meetings of shareholders members of the Board of Trustees are not

expected to attend the Annual Meeting



We describe the three committees of the Board of Trustees below and the members of the committees are

identified in the following table

Nominating and

Corporate
Audit Compensation Governance

Trustee Committee Committee Committee

Cydney Donnell

Ron Jackson

Martin Nesbitt

Michael Schall Chair

Earl Webb Chair

Laura Wright Chair

Total Meetings Held in 2009

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and discussing with management and our independent

public accountants our annual and quarterly financial statements engaging independent public accountants

reviewing with the independent public accountants the plans and results of the audit engagement approving

professional services provided by the independent public accountants reviewing the performance and

independence of the independent public accountants considering the range of audit and non-audit fees and

reviewing the adequacy of our internal accounting controls Ms Wright one of our independent trustees

chairs our Audit Committee and serves as our audit committee financial expert as that term is defined by

the SEC Each member of the Audit Committee is financially literate and able to read and understand

fundamental financial statements The Audit Committee has the power to investigate any matter brought to its

attention within the scope of its duties and to retain counsel for this purpose where appropriate Additionally

the Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the Companys procedures for compliance with the rules

for taxation as real estate investment trust under Sections 856-860 of the Code of 1986 the Code

The Audit Committee did not hold any meetings in 2009 following completion of our IPO on

December 14 2009 The Audit Committee held its first meeting in March 2010

The Board of Trustees has affirmatively determined that each Audit Committee member is independent as

defined in Sections 303A.02 and 303A.07 of the listing standards of the NYSE and under the SEC rules for

audit committees The Audit Committee has adopted written charter which outlines certain specified

responsibilities of the Audit Committee and complies with the rules of the SEC and the NYSE The charter is

available on our website at www.pebblebrookhotels.com

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee exercises all powers delegated to it by the Board of Trustees in connection

with compensation matters In connection with those responsibilities the Compensation Committee has the

sole authority to retain and terminate compensation consultants employed by it to help evaluate the Companys

compensation programs The Compensation Committee also has authority to grant awards under the

Companys 2009 Equity Incentive Plan as amended the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan

The Board of Trustees has affirmatively determined that each member of this committee is independent

under the NYSE listing standards

The Compensation Committee has adopted written charter which outlines certain specified responsibil

ities of the Compensation Committee and complies with the rules of the SEC and the NYSE The charter is

available on our website at www.pebblebrookhotels.com
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Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for seeking considering and

recommending to the full Board of Trustees qualified candidates for election as trustees and recommending

slate of nominees for election as trustees at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders makes recommendations to

the Board of Trustees regarding candidates to fill vacancies in the Board of Trustees periodically prepares and

submits to the Board of Trustees for adoption the selection criteria for trustee nominees reviews and makes

recommendations on matters involving general operation of the Board of Trustees and our corporate

governance and annually recommends to the Board of Trustees nominees for each committee of the Board of

Trustees In addition this committee annually facilitates the assessment of the Board of Trustees performance

as whole and of the individual trustees and officers and reports thereon to the Board of Trustees Mr Schall

chairs our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee did not hold any meetings in 2009 following

completion of our IPO on December 14 2009 The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee held its

first meeting in March 2010

The Board of Trustees has affirmatively determined that each member of this committee is independent

under the NYSE listing standards

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has adopted written charter which outlines

certain specified responsibilities of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and complies with

the rules of the SEC and the NYSE The charter is available on our website at www.pebblebrookhotels.com

Conflicts of Interest

The Board of Trustees is responsible for reviewing any transactions that involve potential conflicts of

interest This includes any potential conflicts involving executive officers trustees and their immediate family

members Our Corporate Governance Guidelines provide in writing that each member of our Board of Trustees

will disclose any potential conflicts of interest to the Board and if appropriate refrain from voting on matter

in which the trustee may have conflict Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics expressly prohibits the

continuation of any conflict of interest by an employee officer or trustee except under guidelines approved by

the Board of Trustees Because the facts and circumstances regarding potential conflicts are difficult to predict

the Board of Trustees has not adopted written policy for evaluating conflicts of interests In the event

conflict of interest arises concerning matter to be voted on by the Board or any of its committees the Board

of Trustees will review among other things the facts and circumstances of the conflict the Companys

applicable corporate governance policies the effects of any potential waivers of those policies applicable state

law and NYSE continued listing rules and regulations and will consider the advice of counsel before making

any decisions regarding the conflict

Policy on Voting Regarding Trustees

The Board of Trustees has adopted policy on voting procedures with respect to the election of trustees

Pursuant to the policy in an uncontested election of trustees any nominee who receives greater number of

votes withheld from his or her election than votes for his or her election will within two weeks following

certification of the shareholder vote by the Company submit written resignation offer to the Board of

Trustees for consideration by our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Our Nominating and

Corporate Governance Committee will consider the resignation offer and within 60 days following certifica

tion by the Company of the shareholder vote at the election make recommendation to the Board of Trustees

concerning the acceptance or rejection of the resignation offer

In determining its recommendation to the Board of Trustees the Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee will consider all factors its members deem relevant which may include

any stated reason or reasons why shareholders who cast withheld votes for the trustee did so

the qualifications of the trustee and
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whether the trustees resignation from the Board of Trustees would be in the Companys best interest

and the best interest of our shareholders

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may also consider alternatives to acceptance or

rejection of the directors resignation offer as the members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee deem appropriate which may include

continued service by the trustee until the next relevant meeting of shareholders

rejection of the resignation offer or

rejection of the resignation offer coupled with commitment to seek to address the underlying cause or

causes of the majority-withheld vote

The Board of Trustees will take formal action on the recommendation no later than 90 days following

certification of the shareholder vote by the Company In considering the recommendation the Board of

Trustees will consider the information factors and alternatives considered by the Nominating and Corporate

Governance Committee and any additional information factors and alternatives as the Board of Trustees

deems relevant The recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will not be

binding on the Board Any trustee tendering resignation offer will not participate in the Nominating and

Corporate Governance Committees or Boards consideration of whether to accept the resignation offer We

will publicly disclose in Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC the decision of the Board of

Trustees The Board of Trustees will also provide an explanation of the process by which the decision was

made and if applicable its reason or reasons for rejecting the tendered resignation

Trustee Compensation

Each trustee who is not an employee of or affiliated with the Company receives an annual retainer fee

of $50000 at least half of which is paid in Common Shares Prior to the beginning of each year each trustee

may elect whether to receive greater percentage of the annual retainer fee in Common Shares in lieu of cash

Payment of the annual retainer fee whether in cash or Common Shares is made in January of the calendar

year following the year in which the trustees served on the Board of Trustees The number of Common Shares

issued is determined by dividing the dollar amount each trustee elects to receive in the form of Common

Shares by the average closing price of the Common Shares on the NYSE for the ten trading days preceding

the date of payment For their service from December 14 2009 through December 31 2009 the trustees were

permitted to elect whether to receive greater percentage of the pro rated annual retainer fee in Common

Shares in lieu of cash in March 2010 and the Company paid their fee in that same month

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee and the Chairperson of the Compensation Committee receive an

additional $10000 and $5000 in compensation respectively which is subject to the same cash or Common

Shares elections described above Additional compensation to the Chairpersons was not paid for 2009 New

independent trustees receive one-time grant of 2500 restricted Common Shares which vest ratably on each

of the three anniversaries of the date of grant subject to the recipients continued service on the Board of

Trustees The current trustees received this one-time grant of 2500 restricted Common Shares upon

completion of our IPO on December 14 2009 Trustees do not receive any additional compensation in any

form for their service including for attendance at meetings of the Board or its committees The Company

reimburses trustees for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with their service on the Board of

Trustees

For the year ended December 31 2009 the trustees who were not employees of the Company six

individuals received for their service the compensation shown in the table below which reflects pro rata

amount of their annual compensation beginning on the day of the completion of our IPO on December 14

2009 The Company records the total value of the compensation received by the trustees on its financial

statements for the year in which the fees are earned
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Summary of Non-Executive Trustee 2009 Compensation

Fees Earned

or Paid Share

Name in Cash Awards1 Total

Cydney Donnell $2466 $2466

Ron Jackson $2466 $2466

Martin Nesbitt $2466 $2466

Michael Schall $12335 $1233 $2466

Earl Webb $12336 $1233 $2466

Laura Wright $2466 $2466

All share awards were granted pursuant to our 2009 Equity Incentive Plan The dollar value is computed

in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 718 Share-Based Payment and reflects the grant

date fair value of share awards granted in 2010 for service in 2009

Ms Donnell elected to receive all of her fees for service in the form of 118 Common Shares valued at

per share price of $20.88 which is the average closing price of the Common Shares on the NYSE for the

ten trading days preceding the date of payment

Mr Jackson elected to receive all of his fees for service in the form of 118 Common Shares valued at

per share price of $20.88 which is the average closing price of the Common Shares on the NYSE for the

ten trading days preceding the date of payment

Mr Nesbitt elected to receive all of his fees for service in the form of 118 Common Shares valued at

per share price- of $20.88 which is the average closing price of the Common Shares on the NYSE for the

ten trading days preceding the date of payment

Mr Schall elected to receive half of his fees for service in the form of 59 Common Shares valued at per

share price of $20.88 which is the average closing price of the Common Shares on the NYSE for the ten

trading days preceding the date of payment

Mr Webb elected to receive half of his fees for service in the form of 59 Common Shares valued at per

share price of $20.88 which is the average closing price of the Common Shares on the NYSE for the ten

trading days preceding the date of payment

Ms Wright elected to receive all of her fees for service in the form of 118 Common Shares valued at

per
share price of $20.88 which is the average closing price of the Common Shares on the NYSE for the

ten trading days preceding the date of payment

Nomination of Trustees

Before each annual meeting of shareholders the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

considers the nomination of all trustees whose terms expire at the next annual meeting of shareholders and

also considers new candidates whenever there is vacancy on the Board of Trustees or whenever vacancy is

anticipated due to change in the size or composition of the Board of Trustees retirement of trustee or for

any other reasons In addition to considering incumbent trustees the Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee identifies trustee candidates based on recommendations from the trustees shareholders manage

ment and others The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may in the future engage the services

of third-party search firms to assist in identifying or evaluating trustee candidates No such firm was engaged

in 2009

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee charter provides that the Nominating and

Corporate Governance Committee will consider nominations for board membership by shareholders The rules

that must be followed to submit nominations are contained in our bylaws and include the following the

nomination must be received by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee at least 120 days but

not more than 150 days before the first anniversary of the mailing date for proxy materials applicable to the

annual meeting prior to the annual meeting for which such nomination is proposed for submission and ii the

nominating shareholder must submit certain information regarding the trustee nominee including the

nominees written consent
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The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will evaluate annually the effectiveness of the

Board of Trustees as whole and of each individual trustee and identify any areas in which the Board of

Trustees would be better served by adding new members with different skills backgrounds or areas of

experience The Board of Trustees considers trustee candidates including those nominated by shareholders

based on number of factors including whether the candidate will be independent as such term is defined

by the NYSE listing standards whether the candidate possesses the highest personal and professional ethics

integrity and values whether the candidate contributes to the overall diversity of the Board of Trustees and

whether the candidate has an inquisitive and objective perspective practical wisdom and mature judgment

Candidates are also evaluated on their understanding of our business experience and willingness to devote

adequate time to carrying out their duties The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also

monitors the mix of skills experience and background to assure that the Board of Trustees has the necessary

composition to effectively perform its oversight function

We do not have formal policy about diversity of Board membership but the Nominating and Corporate

Governance Committee does consider broad range of factors when nominating trustee candidates to the

Board of Trustees including differences of viewpoint professional experience education skill other personal

qualities and attributes race gender and national origin The Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee will neither include nor exclude any candidate from consideration solely based on the candidates

diversity traits

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider appropriate nominees for trustees

whose names are submitted in writing by shareholder of the Company Trustee candidates submitted by our

shareholders will be evaluated by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee on the same basis as

any other trustee candidates

Nominations must be addressed to Pebblebrook Hotel Trust Bethesda Metro Center Suite 1530

Bethesda Maryland 20814 Attn Raymond Martz Corporate Secretary indicating the nominees qualifica

tions and other relevant biographical information and providing confirmation of the nominees consent to serve

as trustee if elected In order to be considered for the next annual election of trustees any such written request

must comply with the requirements set forth in the bylaws of the Company and below under Other

Matters Shareholder Proposals

Executive Sessions of Our Non-Management Trustees

As required by the NYSE rules the independent trustees or the non-management trustees of our Board

regularly meet in executive session without management present Generally these executive sessions follow

regularly scheduled meeting of the Board In 2009 the independent trustees and the non-management trustees

of the Board did not meet in executive session The non-management trustees of the Board did meet in

executive session without management at the initial meeting of the Board in March 2010 The board appointed

the Chairperson of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Michael Schall to preside over

such executive sessions of the Board

We have implemented procedures for interested parties including shareholders who wish to communicate

directly with our independent trustees We believe that providing method for interested parties to communi

cate directly with our independent trustees rather than the full Board of Trustees would provide more

confidential candid and efficient method of relaying any interested partys concerns or comments See

Communication with the Board of Trustees Independent Trustees and the Audit Committee

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The Compensation Committee consists of Earl Webb Chairperson Cydney Donnell Ron

Jackson and Martin Nesbitt None of the members of our Compensation Committee is or has been one of

our employees or officers None of our executive officers currently serves or during the past fiscal year has

served as member of the board of directors or compensation committee of another entity that has one or

more executive officers serving on our Board of Trustees or Compensation Committee
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Corporate Governance Matters

Our Board of Trustees has established Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to our officers

trustees and employees when such individuals are acting for or on our behalf The Code of Business Conduct

and Ethics can be found under Corporate Governance on our website at www.pebblebrookhotels.com Our

written Code of Business Conduct and Ethics expressly prohibits the continuation of any conflict of interest by

any of our officers trustees or employees except under guidelines approved by the Board of Trustees Our

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics requires any of our employees to report any actual conflict of interest to

supervisor manager or other appropriate personnel Any waiver of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

of our executive officers or trustees may be made only by our Board of Trustees or one of our Board

committees We anticipate that any waivers of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics will be posted on our

website

Mr Bortz serves as both our Chairman and our Chief Executive Officer We have not appointed lead

independent trustee As described above the Board appointed the Chairperson of the Nominating and

Corporate Governance Committee Michael Schall to preside over executive sessions of the Board and

meetings of the full Board of Trustees when the Chairman is absent

We believe that it is in the best interests of our shareholders for Mr Bortz to serve as our Chairman

because of his unique insight into the Company as well as the lodging industry and his excellent reputation

among institutional investors We believe that appointing an independent trustee to preside over executive

sessions of the Board and providing for all trustees to add items to the agenda of meetings of the Board and

its committees mitigates the risk that having our Chief Executive Officer serve as our Chairman may cause

management to have undue influence on our Board of Trustees

The Companys Board of Trustees takes an active and informed role in the Companys risk management

policies and strategies At least annually the Companys executive officers who are responsible for the

Companys day-to-day risk management practices will present to the Board of Trustees comprehensive report

on the material risks to the Company including credit risk liquidity risk and operational risk At that time the

management team will also review with the Board of Trustees the Companys risk mitigation policies and

strategies specific to each risk that is identified If necessary the Board of Trustees may delegate specific risk

management tasks to management or committee Throughout the year management monitors the Companys

risk profile and on regular basis updates the Board of Trustees as new material risks are identified or the

aspects of risk previously presented to the Board materially change The Audit Committee also actively

monitors risks to the Company throughout the year and with the aid of management identifies any additional

risks that need to be elevated for the full Boards consideration

Communication with the Board of Trustees Presiding Trustee of the Non-Management Trustees and the

Audit Committee

Our Board of Trustees may be contacted by any party via mail at the following address

Board of Trustees

Pebblebrook Hotel Trust

Bethesda Metro Center Suite 1530

Bethesda Maryland 20814

The Audit Committee has adopted confidential anonymous processes for anyone to send communications

to the Audit Committee with concerns or complaints concerning the Companys regulatory compliance

accounting audit or internal controls issues The Audit Committee can be contacted by any party via mail at

the following address

Ms Laura Wright

Chairperson Audit Committee

Pebblebrook Hotel Trust

Bethesda Metro Center Suite 1530

Bethesda Maryland 20814
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Biographical Information Regarding Executive Officers Who Are Not Trustees

Name

Raymond Martz

Executive Vice President Chief

Financial Officer Treasurer and

Secretary

Thomas Fisher 39

Executive Vice President and Chief

Investment Officer

Age Background Information

39 Mr Martz serves as our Executive Vice President

Chief Financial Officer Treasurer and Secretary

Mr Martz most recently served as Chief Financial

Officer for Phillips Edison Company one of the

largest private owners of community shopping

centers in the U.S from August 2007 until

November 2009 Prior to joining Phillips Edison

Mr Martz served as the Chief Financial Officer

Secretary and Treasurer of Eagle Hospitality

Properties Trust Inc NYSE-listed hotel REIT
from May 2005 until August 2007 Prior to that

Mr Martz was employed by LaSalle Hotel

Properties in variety of finance functions from

1997 to 2005 including serving as its Treasurer

from 2004 to 2005 Vice President of Finance from

2001 to 2004 and Director of Finance from 1998 to

2001 Prior to joining LaSalle Hotel Properties

Mr Martz was an associate with Tishman Hotel

Corporation from 1995 through 1997 focusing on

variety of areas including asset management and

development From 1994 to 1995 he served in

several hotel operations roles at Orient Hotel Group

private owner and operator of hotels Mr Martz

received his B.S from the School of Hotel

Administration at Cornell University in 1993 and

M.B.A from Columbia University in 2002

Mr Fisher serves as our Executive Vice President

and Chief Investment Officer Mr Fisher most

recently served as Managing Director -- Americas

for Jones Lang LaSalle Hotels one of the worlds

leading hotel investment services firms Mr Fisher

joined Jones Lang LaSalle Hotels in 1996 and

served in variety of roles including his most

recent position as Managing Director leading the

national full-service investment sales platform Prior

to joining Jones Lang LaSalle Hotels Mr Fisher

was an Associate with The Harlan Company from

1994 to early 1996 an investment banking boutique

in New York City where he focused on commercial

real estate investment services including investment

sales capital raises and tenant representation Prior

to joining The Harlan Company Mr Fisher was

Real Estate Analyst in the corporate office of the

Prudential Realty Group where he worked on

general account investments covering multiple

property types including hotel office and retail

Mr Fisher received his B.S with Distinction from

the School of Hotel Administration at Cornell

University in 1993
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PROPOSAL RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees of the Company has selected the accounting firm of

KPMG LLP KPMG to serve as the independent registered public accountants of the Company for the year

ending December 31 2010 and the Board of Trustees is asking shareholders to ratify this appointment

Although current law rules and regulations as well as the Audit Committee charter require the Companys

independent auditor to be engaged retained and supervised by the Audit Committee the Board of Trustees

considers the selection of the independent auditor to be an important matter of shareholder concern and is

submitting the selection of KPMG for ratification by shareholders as matter of good corporate practice

KPMG has served as the Companys independent registered public accountants since the Companys formation

in October 2009 and is considered by management of the Company to be well qualified

Fee Disclosure

The following is summary of the fees billed to the Company by KPMG for professional services

rendered for the year ended December 31 2009

Year Ended

December 31
2009

Audit Fees $88250

Audit-Related Fees

Tax Fees

All Other Fees

Total $88250

Audit Fees

Audit Fees consist of fees and expenses billed for professional services rendered for the audit of the

financial statements and services that are normally provided by KPMG in connection with statutory and

regulatory filings or engagements Audit Fees include fees for professional services rendered in connection

with quarterly and annual financial statements and fees and expenses related to the issuance of consents and

comfort letters by KPMG related to our IPO

Audit-Related Fees

Audit-Related Fees consist of fees and expenses for assurance and related services that are reasonably

related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements that are not Audit Fees

Tax Fees

Tax Fees consist of fees and related
expenses

billed for professional services for tax compliance tax

advice and tax planning These services include assistance regarding federal and state tax compliance and tax

planning and structuring

All Other Fees

All Other Fees consist of fees and expenses for products and services that are not Audit Fees Audit-

Related Fees or Tax Fees

Pre-Approval Policy

Commencing with our 2010 fiscal year all audit tax and other services provided to us will be reviewed

and pre-approved by the Audit Committee The Audit Committee concluded that the provision of such services

by KPMG was compatible with the maintenance of that firms independence in the conduct of its auditing

functions All of the fees paid to KPMG that are described above were approved by the Board
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We expect that representative of KPMG will be present at the Annual Meeting will be given the

opportunity to make statement if he or she so desires and will be available to respond to appropriate

questions

The Audit Committee has considered whether and has determined that the provision by KPMG of the

services described under Audit-Related Fees Tax Fees and Other Fees is compatible with maintaining

KPMGs independence from management and the Company

The Board of Trustees recommends vote FOR the ratification of the appointment of the

independent registered public accountants
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The following is report by the Companys Audit Committee regarding the responsibilities and functions

of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee oversees the Companys financial reporting process on behalf of the Board of

Trustees in accordance with the Audit Committee Charter Management has the primary responsibility for the

financial statements and the reporting process including the system of internal controls In fulfilling its

oversight responsibilities the Audit Committee reviewed with management the audited financial statements

included in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31 2009 and

discussed with management the quality not just the acceptability of the accounting principles the reasonable

ness of significant judgments and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements The Audit Committee

also reviewed and discussed with management the Companys year-end earnings release

The Audit Committee reviewed with the independent registered public accountants who are responsible

for expressing an opinion on the conformity of the Companys audited financial statements with generally

accepted accounting principles their judgments as to the quality not just the acceptability of the Companys

accounting principles and such other matters as are required to be discussed with the Audit Committee under

generally accepted auditing standards In addition the Audit Committee has discussed with the independent

registered public accountants the auditors independence the matters required to be discussed by Statement on

Auditing Standards No 61 as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board in Rule 32001

and discussed and received the written disclosures and the letter from the independent registered public

accountants required by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding in the independent

auditors communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence

The Audit Committee discussed with the Companys independent registered public accountants the overall

scope and plans for their audit The Audit Committee will meet at least four times per year with the

independent registered public accountants with and without management present to discuss the results of their

examinations their evaluations of the Companys internal controls and the overall quality of the Companys

financial reporting The Audit Committee will hold meetings with management prior to the filing of each of

the Companys Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q with the SEC and the release to the public of its quarterly

earnings and review and discuss with management the Companys Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and its

quarterly earnings releases

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above the Audit Committee recommended to the

Board of Trustees and the Board has approved that the audited financial statements be included in the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2009 for filing with the SEC

The Audit Committee is also responsible for monitoring the Companys procedures for compliance with

the rules for taxation as real estate investment trust REIT under Sections 856-860 of the Code

The members of the Audit Committee are not professionally engaged in the practice of auditing or

accounting Members of the Audit Committee rely without independent verification on the information

provided to them and on the representations made by management and the independent registered public

accountants Accordingly the Audit Committees oversight does not provide an independent basis to determine

that management has maintained appropriate accounting and financial reporting principles or appropriate

internal controls and procedures designed to assure compliance with accounting standards and applicable laws

and regulations Furthermore the Audit Committees considerations and discussions referred to above do not

assure that the audit of the Companys financial statements has been carried out in accordance with generally

accepted auditing standards that the financial statements are presented in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles or that KPMG LLP is in fact independent

The Audit Committee has adopted written charter that outlines certain specified responsibilities of the

Audit Committee and complies with the rules of the SEC and the NYSE The Audit Committee did not meet

during 2009
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Each of the Audit Committee members is independent as defined by the NYSE listing standards and each

member is financially literate The Board of Trustees has identified Laura Wright as the audit committee

financial expert within the meaning of the SEC rules

Submitted by the Audit Committee

of the Board of Trustees

Laura Wright Chairperson

Cydney Donnell

Martin Nesbitt

Michael Schall
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The following is report by the Companys Compensation Committee regarding the Companys executive

officer compensation program

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis

contained in this Proxy Statement CDA with management of the Company Based on the Compensation

Committees review of the CDA and the Compensation Committees discussions of the CDA with

management the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Trustees and the Board has

approved that the CDA be included in the Companys Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A prepared in

connection with the Annual Meeting

Submitted by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Trustees

Earl Webb Chairperson

Cydney Donnell

Ron Jackson

Martin Nesbitt

EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Overview

The Companys primary objective is to deliver attractive long-term total returns to shareholders through

appreciation in the value of Common Shares and by providing income to its shareholders through the

establishment of and increases in distributable cash flow To do so the Company will seek to enhance the

return from and the value of the hotels in which it invests

The Company was formed in October 2009 and completed its IPO on December 14 2009 Prior to

completion of the IPO Mr Bortz was the Companys sole trustee and officer and received no compensation

from the Company Upon completion of the IPO Mr Martz joined the Company and Mr Bortz and Mr Martz

were the Companys only executive officers for the period from December 14 2009 through December 31

3009 The independent trustees of the Company including members of the Compensation Committee became

trustees effective upon closing of the IPO on December 14 2009 No meetings of the Compensation

Committee were held in 2009 The initial annual base salaries and target bonuses for Messrs Bortz and Martz

for 2010 were disclosed in the Companys registration statement on Form S-li filed with the SEC in

connection with the IPO and for the period from December 14 2009 through December 31 2009

Messrs Bortz and Martz were paid base salaries on pro rata basis based on their annual base salaries No

bonuses were paid for the 2009 period Messrs Bortz and Martz received awards of LTIP Long-Term

Incentive Partnership units as further described below upon completion of the IPO Mr Fisher joined the

Company on January 11 2010 Mr Fishers initial LTIP unit awards 2010 base salary and 2010 target bonus

were approved by unanimous written consent of the full Board prior to his joining the Company The initial

meeting of the Compensation Committee was held on March 10 2010 At the initial meeting the 2009 pro

rata salaries paid to Messrs Bortz and Martz were ratified and the 2010 base salaries and 2010 target bonuses

for Messrs Bortz Martz and Fisher were ratified and approved At the meeting the Compensation Committee

and the Board also approved grants of restricted share awards to Messrs Bortz Martz and Fisher and to other

employees of the Company as part of their 2010 compensation Messrs Bortz Martz and Fisher are our

Named Executive Officers Because the Company was only active operationally for approximately three

weeks in 2009 and the 2009 compensation was based on pro rata amounts for 2009 this report will focus on

the compensation arrangements for 2010 as approved by the Compensation Committee on March 10 2010

Because the Company is effectively in start-up mode the criteria for 2010 compensation will likely differ from

the Companys compensation structure and philosophy once the Company has deployed significant portion

of the capital raised in the IPO through the acquisition of hotel properties

21



Philosophy Component

Compensation should reinforce

business objectives and Company
values

Rationale/Commentary

The Company strives to provide

rewarding and professionally

challenging work environment for

its executive officers The

Company believes that executive

officers who are motivated and

challenged by their duties are

more likely to achieve the

corporate performance goals and

objectives designed by the

Compensation Committee The

Companys executive

compensation package should

reflect this work environment and

performance expectations

Pay Element

All elements salary annual cash

incentive bonuses equity incentive

compensation health and welfare

benefits

Our key executive officers should

be retained and motivated

The primary purpose of the

Companys executive

compensation program is to

achieve the Companys business

objectives by attracting retaining

and motivating talented executive

officers by providing incentives

and economic security

Equity incentive compensation

time-based restricted shares LTIP

units and performance-based

restricted shares equity incentive

plan bonuses change in control

severance agreements and vesting

of equity awards upon change in

control of the Company

majority of compensation for

top executive officers should be

based on performance

The Companys executive

compensation is designed to

reward favorable total shareholder

returns both in an absolute

amount and relative to peers of the

Company and its performance

against its business objectives

taking into consideration the

Companys competitive position

within the real estate industry and

each executives long-term career

contributions to the Company

The Compensation Committee

may in the future consider

granting performance-based

restricted shares in addition to

LTIP units

Equity incentive compensation

LTIP units and performance

based restricted shares and annual

cash incentive bonuses

The following table summarizes the primary components and rationale of our compensation philosophy

and the pay elements that support that philosophy
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Philosophy Component Rationale/Commentary Pay Element

Compensation should align

interests of executive officers with

shareholders

Compensation should be

competitive

Performance-based pay aligns the

interest of management with the

Companys shareholders

Performance-based compensation

motivates and rewards individual

efforts and Company success

Approximately 40% to 50% of the

executive officers targeted

compensation is linked to

achievement of company

objectives and performance The

performance-based percentage of

compensation increases as

performance improves and

decreases as performance declines

If the Company fails to achieve its

corporate objectives has poor

relative performance and/or poor

total shareholder returns the

executive officers will receive

reduced incentive compensation

reduced total compensation and

lower value creation through

ownership of Company shares or

LTIP units The executive officers

have an opportunity in the event

of superior achievement of

corporate objectives relative

performance or outstanding total

shareholder returns to earn overall

compensation packages greater

than the compensation that would

otherwise be paid and increased

value creation through ownership

of Company shares or LTIP units

Merit salary increases annual cash

incentive bonuses and equity

incentive compensation time
based restricted shares LTJP units

and performance-based restricted

shares

All elements

Role of the Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee determines compensation for the Named Executive Officers The Compen
sation Committee consists of four trustees Earl Webb Chairperson Cydney Donnell Ron Jackson

and Martin Nesbitt The Compensation Committee exercises independent discretion in respect of executive

compensation matters including the retention or termination of any compensation consultant The Compensa

tion Committee may not delegate its primary responsibility of overseeing executive officer compensation but

may delegate to management the administrative aspects of our compensation plans that do not involve the

setting of compensation levels for our Named Executive Officers As part of the executive compensation

determination process the Compensation Committee seeks input from the trustees not on the Compensation

Committee and the Chief Executive Officer whose recommendations are evaluated along with all other

compensation data gathered by the Compensation Committee Moreover the Named Executive Officers each

year will prepare list of management business objectives MBOs for the upcoming year In 2010 MBOs

will be used to determine 100% of each Named Executive Officers annual cash incentive bonus discussed

below MBOs vary from year to year
and may consist of matters such as achievement of specified financial

performance at individual hotels or the portfolio overall success in the pursuit of new hotel investments
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achievement of particular business items such as renovations or repositioning of hotels development of

compliance programs and development of strategic plans MBOs focus in part on enhancing the return from

and value of the Companys hotels Each years proposed MBOs are discussed with the Compensation

Committee whose members may require that the Named Executive Officers modify the proposed MBOs The

final MBOs are approved by the Board of Trustees On quarterly basis the Named Executive Officers

provide the Compensation Conmiittee with status reports on their success in achieving the MBOs For 2010

because the Company is effectively in start-up mode the MBOs for the Named Executive Officers focus

generally on establishing the Company and its financial accounting operating and asset management systems

acquiring initial properties depending on market conditions and pricing establishing credit facility and

filing the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

Compensation for fiscal year 2010 for each of our Named Executive Officers was determined by the

Board which at the time consisted of Mr Bortz as sole trustee prior to the IPO and was ratified by the

Compensation Committee and the Board at their first meetings in March 2010 The Board and the

Compensation Committee reviewed the publicly disclosed compensation packages of executives of certain

other public REITs of comparable size as group as compiled and documented in survey of compensation

for executives whos companies are members of the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts or

NAREIT Because the Company has recently completed its IPO and as of the date of the proxy statement

does not own any hotel properties the initial compensation for the executive officers was established by the

Compensation Committee without regard to any specific comparable company since the other companies own

substantial assets and have operating histories MBOs for 2010 were submitted by the Named Executive

Officers after consultation with the Chairperson of the Compensation Committee and were then discussed

finalized and approved by the Compensation Committee and the Board Due to the start-up nature of the

Companys operations the MBOs for 2010 are focused on achieving general business objectives including

establishing the Company and its financial accounting operating and asset management systems establishing

credit facility filing the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K and pursuing and acquiring hotels that

meet the financial quality and other criteria for purchase by the Company In addition the Compensation

Committee also considered other matters including total compensation payable under different scenarios such

as change in control of the Company or termination of the Named Executive Officers employment as

contained in the NAREIT compensation survey

Components and Criteria of Executive Compensation

After the Company has been operating for longer period of time the Compensation Committee believes

that significant portion of each Named Executive Officers overall compensation should be payable over

period of more than one year ii depend on the Companys performance relative to other REITs iii depend

on total compensation paid by REITs similar to the Company either by size or by industry in this case the

REIT lodging industry and iv depend on the Companys total absolute and relative shareholder return and

other performance measurements both absolute and relative to its peers As result if the Company has poor

relative performance and/or poor total shareholder return the Named Executive Officers will receive reduced

incentive compensation and reduced total compensation In return the Named Executive Officers should have

an opportunity in the event of superior relative performance and superior total shareholder return to earn

overall compensation packages significantly greater than established target amounts Until the Company has

operated for longer period of time the Compensation Committee and the Board believe that incentive

compensation should relate to MBOs designed to establish the Company as successful acquirer and owner of

quality hotel properties underwritten to achieve the Companys financial and other criteria

The Company has initially set annual base salaries at level necessary to attract and retain the Named

Executive Officers commensurate with the officers responsibilities reputations and experience The Company

has also set annual cash target incentive bonuses as percentage of base salary and at levels necessary to

attract and retain the Named Executive Officers the amount of which ultimately will be approved by the

Compensation Committee and the Board and will depend on managements achievement of the initial MBOs
The Company initially has determined to pay time-based long-term equity incentive compensation to

encourage the Named Executive Officers to pursue strategies that will create long-term value for our
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shareholders to align with our shareholders by tying significant portion of compensation to the value of

Common Shares with time-based vesting over the long term and to promote continuity of management by

retaining the Named Executive Officers

The Compensation Committee determined that executive compensation for fiscal year 2010 primarily

would consist of annual cash base salary ii annual cash incentive bonus and iii restricted share awards

granted in March 2010 subject to time-based vesting provisions over three-year period Pursuant to the time-

based vesting provisions the restricted share awards vest one-third of the original grant amount on each of

March 11 2011 2012 and 2013

The following narrative discusses the components of fiscal year 2009 and 2010 compensation

Base Salary

Base salary is the only predictable form of annual cash compensation to our Named Executive Officers

and the Compensation Committee believes base salary is an important element of total compensation for that

reason The Compensation Committee believes that base salary should be commensurate with each Named

Executive Officers position and experience subject to annual adjustments based on market conditions peer

group analysis size and scope of the Companys operations and individual contributions and performance

For 2010 the base salary of each of our Named Executive Officers is based on the following qualitative

and quantitative factors

an amount necessary to attract and retain the Named Executive Officers given the start-up nature of the

Company

an assessment of the scope of the Named Executive Officers responsibilities leadership and individual

role within the executive management team

the Named Executive Officers reputation and experience in the lodging industry

the competitive market compensation paid to executive officers in similar positions at other public

REITs having comparable equity market value to the Company

The Compensation Committee will annually review the individual responsibilities and leadership attributes

of each Named Executive Officer The Compensation Committees review will include its evaluation of each

Named Executive Officers role and contributions to the Company during the last year Among other matters

the Compensation Committee will consider the performance of employees managed by the Named Executive

Officers the asset management strategies proposed or implemented by the Named Executive Officer to

improve hotel property performance the status of the Companys hotel property acquisition activities the

Companys execution on short- and long-term strategic initiatives for which the Named Executive Officer is

responsible and the Companys compliance with applicable laws and regulations to the extent within the

Named Executive Officers responsibility

In addition tool by which the Compensation Committee will measure Named Executive Officers

performance is the Named Executive Officers progress with respect to the Companys MBOs which as

described above are prepared and proposed by the Named Executive Officers and then discussed modified and

approved by the Compensation Committee and the Board each year Quarterly progress reports with respect to

the MBOs will provide the Compensation Committee with regular update on the performance of the Named

Executive Officers As noted elsewhere in this Proxy Statement MBOs are primarily used to determine the

annual cash incentive bonus but MBOs can be expected also to influence the Compensation Committees

determination of base salaries in the future

The Compensation Committees review of Named Executive Officers role and contribution to the

Company will include the observations of the Chief Executive Officer with respect to the performance of the

other Named Executive Officers especially as to day-to-day responsibilities and intra-company leadership

qualities and growth
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With respect to the Named Executive Officers expertise and experience within the industry the

Compensation Committee expects to consider involvement in industry or trade groups such as NAREIT as

well as awards or other recognition by industry or trade groups or other industry participants

The 2010 annual base salaries for the Named Executive Officers are provided in the Summary

Compensation Table below

Annual Cash Incentive Bonus

Due to the Companys short existence in 2009 there were no cash incentive bonuses paid in or for 2009

The annual cash incentive bonus program is intended to compensate our Named Executive Officers for

achieving our annual goals at both the corporate and hotel asset levels as well as implementing long-term

plans and strategies In 2010 the annual cash target incentive bonuses were based on amounts necessary to

initially attract and retain the Named Executive Officers The Compensation Committee reviewed and

approved these amounts after reviewing compensation for executives primarily in REITs of comparable size as

detailed in the above discussion of the NAREIT executive compensation survey
The annual cash incentive

bonus for fiscal year will be paid in the first quarter of the following year when audited financial statements

for such fiscal year become available for the Company For example the Company expects to pay the Named

Executive Officers their 2010 cash target incentive bonuses in March 2011 For 2010 the Compensation

Committee after consultation with the Chief Executive Officer will determine the percentage above at or

below the cash target incentive bonuses based upon the achievement of the Companys approved MBOs

The Compensation Committee emphasizes the importance of incentive cash compensation the annual

cash incentive bonus program as component of total compensation for the Named Executive Officers The

Company believes this component of the Companys compensation program is an investment in high quality

successful employees who can improve the operational performance of the Companys hotels and generate

new business opportunities and investments that create value for shareholders

The target bonus for Mr Bortz for 2010 is $300000 100% of annual base salary The target bonus for

each of Messrs Martz and Fisher is $200000 approximately 80% of annual base salary

Long-Term Equity Incentive Awards

Overview The 2009 Equity Incentive Plan allows for long-term incentives to our Named Executive

Officers key employees and consultants and other service providers to the Company its subsidiaries and

advisors through grants of LTIP units option rights appreciation rights and restricted share awards Awards

granted to Named Executive Officers and other employees under the incentive plan are designed to provide

grantees with an incentive to promote the long-term success of the Company in line with our shareholders

interests The awards align the Named Executive Officers interest with the interests of shareholders by

providing the Named Executive Officers with an ownership interest in the Company and stake in the

Companys success The 2009 Equity Incentive Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee which

has the discretion to determine those individuals or entities to whom awards will be granted the number of

shares subject to such rights and awards and other terms and conditions of the option rights appreciation

rights and restricted share awards Awards may have vesting period that is tied to each Named Executive

Officers or employees continued service to the Company or specifically identified set of performance

measures

Long-term equity incentive awards for the Named Executive Officers with respect to fiscal year are

typically issued near the beginning of such fiscal year or toward the end of the prior fiscal year

December 2009 Awards Effective upon completion of the IPO in December 2009 Messrs Bortz and

Martz received grants of 723035 and 132260 respectively LTIP unit awards in our operating partnership In

January 2010 upon joining the Company Mr Fisher received grant of 47349 LTIP awards The awards

were granted pursuant to our 2009 Equity Incentive Plan

LTIP units are special class of partnership interests in our operating partnership Each LTIP unit

awarded will be deemed equivalent to an award of one common share under the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan
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reducing availability for other equity awards on one-for-one basis We will not receive tax deduction for

the value of any LTIP units granted to our employees The vesting period for
any

LTIP units if any will be

determined at the time of issuance LTIP units whether vested or not or whether the LTIP units have reached

full parity with the operating partnership units or not will receive the same per-unit profit distributions as

units of our operating partnership which profit distribution will generally equal per share distributions on

Common Shares This treatment with respect to distributions is similar to the expected treatment of our

restricted share awards which will generally receive full distributions whether vested or not Initially LTIP

units will not have full parity with operating partnership units with respect to liquidating distributions Under

the terms of the LTIP units our operating partnership will revalue its assets upon the occurrence of certain

specified events and any increase in valuation from the time of grant until such event will be allocated first to

the holders of LTIP units to equalize the capital accounts of such holders with the capital accounts of

operating partnership unit holders Upon equalization of the capital accounts of the holders of LTIP units with

the other holders of operating partnership units the LTIP units will achieve full parity with operating

partnership units for all purposes including with respect to liquidating distributions If such parity is reached

vested LTIP units may be converted into an equal number of operating partnership units at any time and

thereafter enjoy all the rights of operating partnership units including exchange rights which include the right

to redeem the operating partnership units for Common Shares or cash at our option However there are

circumstances under which such parity would not be reached Until and unless such parity is reached the

value that an officer will realize for given number of vested LTIP units will be less than the value of an

equal number of Common Shares

In March 2010 each of Messrs Bortz Martz and Fisher received awards of restricted Common Shares

subject to time-based vesting Mr Bortz received 28776 restricted Common Shares and Messrs Martz and

Fisher each received 14388 restricted Common Shares The shares were granted pursuant to our 2009 Equity

Incentive Plan and are intended as part of the 2010 compensation program The grants to Messrs Bortz and

Martz were anticipated and detailed in the Companys registration statement on Form S-li filed with the SEC

in connection with the IPO and were based upon level of equity compensation necessary to attract and retain

the two Named Executive Officers The grant to Mr Fisher was based upon an employment arrangement

approved by the full Board at the time of Mr Fishers hiring as Chief Investment Officer and was based upon

amounts necessary to attract and retain Mr Fisher

Other Benefits

Consistent with the philosophy of the Compensation Committee to establish individual- and Company-

based performance measures the Compensation Committee will continue to maintain competitive benefits and

perquisites for Named Executive Officers However the Compensation Committee does not view benefits and

perquisites as key component of the Companys compensation program and their total value remains small

percentage of each Named Executive Officers base salary The Compensation Committee may revise amend

or add to each Named Executive Officers benefits and perquisites if it deems it advisable

Other Factors Considered by the Compensation Committee

Tax Deductibility of Executive Compensation

Section 162m of the Code limits the deduction that public corporation may claim for compensation

paid to its chief executive officer and its three other highest paid executive officers other than its chief

financial officer The compensation deduction that may be claimed on account of amounts paid to each of

those executive officers is limited to $1 million per year Compensation that qualifies as performance based

compensation under Section 162m of the Code is not subject to the deduction limit

transition rule under Section 162m of the Code applies to compensation paid by the Company under

an agreement or plan that was in effect at the time of the Companys IPO provided that the prospectus for the

offering disclosed the terms of the agreement or plan in accordance with the requirements of applicable

securities law The transition rule provides that compensation paid under such agreements before the end of

specified reliance period is not subject to the Section 162m deduction limit Similarly compensation paid
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pursuant to awards granted under plan like the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan before the end of the specified

reliance period is not subject to the Section 162m deduction limit The reliance period for the Company

under the transition rule will end on the earlier of the expiration date of the plan or agreement ii the date

the plan or agreement is materially modified iii the date on which all of the Company shares authorized for

issuance under the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan have been issued or iv the date of the 2013 annual meeting of

the Companys shareholders The Company should be entitled to rely on the relief provided under the

transition rule so that Section 162m will not apply to compensation paid under the agreements or grants

made under the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan before the end of the reliance period

With respect to compensation that is not exempt from the deduction limit under this transition rule the

Compensation Committee generally seeks to preserve
the federal income tax deductibility of compensation

paid to the Named Executive Officers and thus may design compensation awards and incentives so that they

qualify as performance based compensation under Section 162m of the Code However in order to

maintain flexibility in compensating the Named Executive Officers in manner designed to promote our

corporate goals including retaining and providing incentives to the Named Executive Officers the Compensa

tion Committee has not adopted policy that all compensation must be deductible

Section 162m of the Code should not affect the deductibility of any compensation paid by the Company

in 2009 to the Named Executive Officers

Payments Upon Termination of Named Executive Officer and Vesting of Equity Awards Upon Change in

Control of the Company

The Company has entered into an agreement with each of its Named Executive Officers to provide

benefits to each in the event his employment is terminated in certain circumstances The Compensation

Committee expects to review the terms of the three change in control severance agreements annually Because

each Named Executive Officers severance payment is derived from his annual base salary and other annual

incentive compensation the effect on severance payments is one of the factors expected to be considered by

the Compensation Committee when annually reviewing the Named Executive Officers total compensation and

change in control severance agreement terms in the future

The agreement with each Named Executive Officer provides that the Named Executive Officer will be

entitled to the severance payments and benefits detailed under Change in Control Severance Agreements

Equity Award Vesting and Other Termination Policies if the Named Executive Officer resigns for good

reason or if the Named Executive Officer is terminated by the Company without cause in connection with

or within one year after change in control of the Company As noted at the beginning of this Compensation

Discussion and Analysis one of the Companys executive compensation philosophies is the retention of key

executive officers The Compensation Committee believes that the terms of the change in control severance

agreements described above including the events triggering severance payments are competitive with other

lodging REITs and promote stability among its Named Executive Officers which is important to the

Companys overall performance

In addition the Compensation Committee considers the effect of accelerated vesting of certain equity

awards upon termination of Named Executive Officer or change in control of the Company The

Compensation Committee reviewed the terms of the restricted share award agreements including the

immediate vesting of time-based restricted shares upon change in control of the Company or upon Named

Executive Officers termination without cause The Compensation Committee believes that the terms of the

restricted share award agreements are competitive with other lodging REITs and promote stability among its

Named Executive Officers which is important to the Companys overall performance For more information on

the vesting terms of the Named Executive Officers restricted shares see Change in Control Severance

Agreements Equity Award Vesting and Other Termination Policies Vesting of Long-Term Equity Incentive

Awards
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Risk Management Considerations

As start-up company without any currently owned hotel properties the Company has sought to initially

structure its compensation so as to encourage management to establish sound operating financial accounting

and asset management systems rather than reaching acquisition targets or achieving certain financial goals

Moreover the Company believes that paying significant portion of total compensation in Common Shares

aligns managements incentives with those of the Companys shareholders As result the Company believes

its initial compensation policies and practices are designed to promote prudent risk management

EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION TABLES

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the information required by Item 402 of Regulation S-K promulgated by

the SEC The amounts shown represent the compensation paid to our Named Executive Officers for the year

shown as consideration for services rendered to us Mr Fisher joined the Company in January 2010 and

received no compensation from the Company for 2009

With respect to long-term equity incentive awards the dollar amounts indicated in the table under Share

Awards are the aggregate grant date fair value of awards computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718

Non-Equity

Name and Incentive Plan All Other

Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Share Awards Compensation Compensation Total

Jon Bortz 20091 $189042 $61457984 $10965 $6165798

Chairman

President and

Chief Executive

Officer

Raymond Martz 20091 $157532 $11242104 8815 $1140844

Chief Financial

Officer Executive

Vice President and

Treasurer and

Secretary

2009 includes the period from December 2009 the date of the first trading day of Common Shares

through December 31 2009

This amount reflects the pro rata amount of the executives 2009 and 2010 salary for the period from

December 2009 the date of the first trading day of Common Shares and the date of commencement of

compensated employment through December 31 2009 Mr Bortzs annual salary is $300000 and

Mr Martzs is $250000 Mr Fishers annual salary is $250000

We did not pay any portion of the executives annual bonus for the period from the first trading day of

Common Shares on December 2009 through December 31 2009 The annual target bonuses for 2010

for Mr Bortz and for Mr Martz are expected to be $300000 and $200000 respectively

Reflects the grants to Mr Bortz and Mr Martz of 723035 and 132260 LTIP units respectively under our

2009 Equity Incentive Plan upon completion of our IPO Both awards have five-year vesting period For

purposes of this table we determined that the grant date fair value for each LTIP unit was $8.50 For more

information regarding the Companys assumptions made in the valuation of these equity awards see Note

to the financial statements included in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended

December 31 2009

This amount was paid by the Company for the executives health insurance coverage
under the Consoli

dated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act COBRA The Company did not pay any premiums for disabil

ity or life insurance for 2009
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table sets forth information with respect to plan-based equity awards granted in 2009 to the

Named Executive Officers The dollar amounts indicated under the Grant Date Fair Value is the full fair

value of each grant in accordance with the applicable accounting literature

All Other Share

Awards Number of Grant Date Fair

Name Date of Grant Shares Value

Jon Bortz December 14 2009 7230351 $6145 7982

Raymond Martz December 14 2009 1322601 $11242102

Reflects the grant of LTIP units to the executive under our 2009 Equity Incentive Plan in connection with

the completion of our IPO The award vests ratably on each of the first five anniversaries of the date of

grant

For purposes of this table we determined that the grant date fair value for each LTIP unit was $8.50 For

more information regarding the Companys assumptions made in the valuation of these equity awards see

Note to the financial statements included in the Companys Form 10-K for the period ended Decem

ber 31 2009

Discussion of Summary Compensation and Grants of Plan-Based Awards Tables

Our executive compensation policies and practices pursuant to which the compensation set forth in the

Summary Compensation Tables and the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table was paid or awarded are

described above under Executive Compensation and Other Information Compensation Discussion and

Analysis The terms of change in control severance agreements that we have entered into with our executives

are described below under Change in Control Severance Agreements Equity Award Vesting and Other

Termination Policies

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table sets forth information with respect to outstanding equity awards held by the Named

Executive Officers as of December 31 2009

Share Awards

Number of Shares that Market Value of Shares

Name have Not Vested3 that have Not Vested

Jon Bortz 7230351 $159140002

Raymond Martz 1322601 29110432

Reflects the grant of LTIP units to the executive under our 2009 Equity Incentive Plan upon completion of

our IPO The award vests ratably on each of the first five anniversaries of the date of grant December 14

2010 December 14 2011 December 14 2012 December 14 2013 and December 14 2014

Unless and until LTIP units reach parity with Common Shares the value of LTIP units can only be esti

mated As stated above we determined that for purposes of GAAP the fair value for each LTIP unit was

$8.50 on the date of grant December 14 2010 However pursuant to SEC rules for purposes of this table

the market value per unvested LTIP unit is assumed to be $22.01 the closing market price per Common

Share at the end of the last completed fiscal year December 31 2009 This table further assumes that the

LTIP units had reached parity with Common Shares on December 31 2009 However as of December 31

2009 the LTIP units had not reached parity with Common Shares For more information regarding the

Companys assumptions made in the valuation of these equity awards see Note to the financial state

ments included in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31 2009

The following table summarizes the LTIP unit awards for which portion of the LTIP units remain

unvested and provides information about their vesting periods
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Number of LTIP Units Granted to

Named Executive Officers

Grant Date Jon Bortz Raymond Martz LTIP Unit Vesting Periods

December 14 2010 723035 132260 20% of the LTIP units vest

each
year on each December 14

for five years beginning on

December 14 2010

Option Exercises and Shares Vested

The Company did not grant any share option awards or share awards to the Named Executive Officers in

2009 No share awards to the Named Executive Officers vested in 2009

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table summarizes information as of December 31 2009 relating to the 2009 Equity

Incentive Plan pursuant to which grants of options restricted shares restricted units or other rights to acquire

shares may be granted from time to time

Number of

Securities to be Number of

Issued upon Weighted-average Securities

Exercise of Exercise Price of Remaining Available

Outstanding Outstanding for Future Issuance

Options Warrants Options Warrants Under Equity

Plan Category and Rights and Rights Compensation Plans

Equity compensation plans approved by security

holders1 425875

Equity compensation plans not approved by security

holders _______

Total 425875

Our 2009 Equity Incentive Plan was approved by the Companys sole trustee and the Companys sole

shareholder prior to completion of the Companys IPO

CHANGE IN CONTROL SEVERANCE AGREEMENTS EQUITY AWARD VESTING AND OTHER

TERMINATION POLICIES

Change in Control Severance Agreements of Messrs Bortz Martz and Fisher

The Company previously entered into agreements with its Named Executive Officers to provide benefits

to each in the event his employment is terminated in certain circumstances The Compensation Committee

expects to review the terms of these change in control severance agreements annually As described in more

detail below because each Named Executive Officers severance payment is derived from his annual base

salary and other annual incentive compensation the effect on severance payments will be one of the factors

considered by the Compensation Committee when annually reviewing each Named Executive Officers total

compensation and change in control severance agreement terms

The change in control severance agreements
for Messrs Bortz and Martz became effective on

December 14 2009 and for Mr Fisher on March 2010 each for an initial term of three years provided

however that the term is automatically extended for an additional year on each anniversary date of the

effective date of the change in control severance agreement beginning on the third anniversary of the effective

date of the change in control severance agreement unless not less than six months prior to the termination of

the then existing term our Board provides notice to the executive of its intent not to extend the term further

Each of the Named Executive Officers may terminate his agreement prior to the expiration of the term as

described below
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Termination Without Cause in Connection With Or Within One Year After Change in Control and

Resignation With Good Reason

The agreement provides that upon the termination of the executive either by the Company without

cause in connection with or within one year after change in control of the Company or the voluntary

resignation by the executive upon 30 days prior written notice to the Company for good reason the

executive will be entitled to the following severance payments and benefits

lump sum cash payment equal to the sum of his annual base salary annual cash target incentive

bonus and accrued vacation time earned but not paid to the date of termination

lump sum cash payment equal to the product of three in the case of Mr Bortz or two in the case of

Messrs Martz and Fisher times the sum of his then-current annual base salary plus the greater of

the bonus most recently paid to him and ii the average of the annual cash incentive bonuses paid

to him with respect to the three most recent fiscal years ending before the date of termination

lump sum cash payment equal to three in the case of Mr Bortz or two in the case of Messrs Martz

and Fisher times the annual premium or cost including amounts paid by him for his health dental

disability and life insurance benefits and

such other or additional benefits if any as are provided under applicable plans programs and/or

arrangements of the Company including accelerated vesting of equity awards as discussed below under

Vesting of Long-Term Equity Incentive Awards

Termination Without Cause and Without Change in Control

If the executive is terminated without cause and not in connection with or within one year of change

in control of the Company the executive will be entitled to the following severance payments and benefits

lump sum cash payment equal to the sum of his annual base salary annual cash target incentive

bonus and accrued vacation time earned but not paid to the date of termination

lump sum cash payment equal to the sum of his then-current annual base salary plus the

greater of the bonus most recently paid to him and ii the average of the annual cash incentive

bonuses paid to him with respect to the three most recent fiscal years ending before the date of

termination

lump sum cash payment equal to the product of one in the case of Mr Bortz or two-thirds in the

case of Messrs Martz and Fisher times the annual premium or cost including amounts paid by him
for his health dental disability and life insurance benefits and

such other or additional benefits if any as are provided under applicable plans programs and/or

arrangements of the Company including accelerated vesting of equity awards as discussed below under

Vesting of Long-Term Equity Incentive Awards

Termination For Cause and Resignation Without Good Reason

If the Company terminates the executive for cause or the executive voluntarily terminates his

employment without good reason the executive will be entitled to the following severance payments and

benefits

lump sum cash payment equal to the sum of his annual base salary and accrued vacation time earned

but not paid to the date of termination and

such other or additional benefits if any as are provided under applicable plans programs and/or

arrangements of the Company including accelerated vesting of equity awards as discussed below under

Vesting of Long-Term Equity Incentive Awards
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Other Key Change in Control Severance Agreement Terms

As condition of any severance payment and related benefits described above each of Messrs Bortz

Martz and Fisher has agreed to general release of
any

and all claims relating to the Named Executive

Officers employment In addition each of Messrs Bortz Martz and Fisher has agreed that while his change

in control severance agreement is in force and for one-year period following the Companys termination of

the executive for cause or the executive voluntarily terminates his employment without good reason he

will not solicit hire or recruit employees of or persons who have worked for the Company or any of its

affiliates either directly or indirectly for his own account or for another party

Under the terms of their change in control severance agreements each of Messrs Bortz Martz and Fisher

is entitled to tax gross-up payment under certain conditions for the parachute payment excise tax in the event

that his employment is terminated in connection with change in control

Below are list of terms and their meanings as defined in each Named Executive Officers change in

control severance agreement

Cause shall mean that the Board concludes in good faith and after reasonable investigation that

the executive has been charged with conduct which is felony under the laws of the United States or

any state or political subdivision thereof

the executive engaged in conduct relating to the Company constituting material breach of fiduciary

duty willful misconduct including acts of employment discrimination or sexual harassment or

fraud

the executive breached the non-solicitation obligations or covenants of his change in control

severance agreement in any material respect or

the executive materially failed to follow proper directive of the Board within the scope of the

executives duties which shall be capable of being performed by the executive with reasonable

effort after written notice from the Board specifying the performance required and the executives

failure to perform within 30 days after such notice No act or failure to act on the executives part

shall be deemed willful unless done or omitted to be done by the executive not in good faith or if

the result thereof would be unethical or illegal

Change in Control shall mean change in control of the Company which will be deemed to have

occurred after the date of the change in control severance agreement if

any person as such term is used in Section 3a9 of the Exchange Act as modified and used in

Sections 13d and 14d thereof except that such term shall not include the Company or any of

its subsidiaries any trustee or other fiduciary holding securities under an employee benefit plan

of the Company or any of its affiliates an underwriter temporarily holding securities pursuant to

an offering of such securities any corporation owned directly or indirectly by the shareholders

of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of the Companys common

shares or any person or group as used in Rule 3d- 1b under the Exchange Act is or becomes

the Beneficial Owner as such term is defined in Rule 3d-3 under the Exchange Act directly or

indirectly of securities of the Company representing more than 50% of the combined voting power

or common shares of the Company

during any period of two consecutive years individuals who at the beginning of such period

constitute the Board and any new trustee other than trustee designated by person who has

entered into an agreement with the Company to effect transaction described in this definition of

Change in Control or trustee whose initial assumption of office is in connection with an

actual or threatened election contest including but not limited to consent solicitation relating to

the election of trustees of the Company whose election by the Board or nomination for election by

the Companys shareholders was approved by vote of at least two-thirds 2/3 of the trustees then
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still in office who either were trustees at the beginning of the period or whose election or nomination

for election was previously so approved cease for any reason to constitute at least majority thereof

there is consummated merger or consolidation of the Company or any direct or indirect subsidiary

of the Company with any other corporation other than merger or consolidation which would result

in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent

either by remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of the surviving entity

or any parent thereof in combination with the ownership of any trustee or other fiduciary holding

securities under an employee benefit plan of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company more

than 50% of the combined voting power and common shares of the Company or such surviving

entity or any parent thereof outstanding immediately after such merger or consolidation or

there is consummated an agreement for the sale or disposition by the Company of all or substantially

all of the Companys assets or any transaction having similar effect including liquidation other

than sale or disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of the Companys assets to an

entity more than 50% of the combined voting power and common shares of which is owned by

shareholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of the common

shares of the Company immediately prior to such sale

Good Reason shall mean the occurrence without the executives prior written consent of any of the

following in connection with or within one year after Change in Control

any material reduction of the executives base salary or target bonus as percentage of base salary

any material adverse change in the executives duties or responsibilities including assignment of

duties inconsistent with his position significant adverse alteration of the nature or status of

responsibilities or the conditions of employment or any material diminution in authority duties or

responsibilities including without limitation any such material adverse change that results from

transaction pursuant to which the Company ceases to be publicly traded lodging or hospitality

company that is qualified as REIT for federal income tax purposes and is subject to the reporting

requirements of Sections 13 or 15d of the Exchange Act

any
material diminution in the authority duties or responsibilities of the supervisor to whom the

Executive is required to report or

the relocation of the Companys headquarters and/or the executives regular work address to

location which requires the Executive to travel more than fifty 50 miles from the Executives

residence

Long-Term Equity Incentive Awards

The terms of the time-based LTIP unit award agreements granted to each of Messrs Bortz Martz and

Fisher provide that

upon change in control of the Company the unvested LTIP units vest

upon termination of the executives employment with the Company because of his death or disability

the unvested LTIP units vest

upon termination of the executives employment with the Company without cause the unvested LTIP

units vest

upon termination of the executives employment with the Company for cause the unvested LTIP units

are forfeited

Except as described above any LTIP units that are unvested at the time the executive terminates his

employment with the Company are forfeited
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TERMINATION PAYMENT TABLE

The following table indicates the cash amounts accelerated vesting and other payments and benefits that

the Named Executive Officers would be entitled to receive under various circumstances pursuant to the terms

of the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan the agreements governing awards made under the 2009 Equity Incentive

Plan and their change in control severance agreements The table assumes that termination of the Named

Executive Officer from the Company under the scenario shown occurred on December 31 2009 and did not

affect in any way the valuation of any outstanding LTIP units

Acceleration of

Vesting of LTIP Excise Tax Gross-Up

Name and Termination Scenario Cash Payment Units3 Payments4 Total

Jon Bortz Chairman President

and Chief Executive Officer

By Company For Cause or By

Employee Without Good Reason 189042 Not applicable Not applicable 18904

Upon Death or Disability 189042 15914000 Not applicable $15932904

With Change in Control

Without Cause or With Good

Reason $9722142 15914000 3542590 $20428804

By Company Without Cause and
Without Change in Control $3366742 15914000 Not applicable $16250674

Raymond Martz Executive Vice

President Chief Financial Officer

Treasurer and Secretary

By Company For Cause or By

Employee Without Good Reason 157532 Not applicable Not applicable 15753

Upon Death or Disability 157532 2911043 Not applicable 2926796

With Change in Control

Without Cause or With Good

Reason $5369082 2911043 729336 4177287

By Company Without Cause and

Without Change in Control $2728052 2911043 Not applicable 3183848

Thomas Fisher1 Executive

Vice President and Chief Investment

Officer

By Company For Cause or By

Employee Without Good Reason Not applicable Not applicable

Upon Death or Disability 1042151 Not applicable 1042151

With Change in Control

Without Cause or With Good

Reason $500000 1042151 349167 1891318

By Company Without Cause and

Without Change in Control $250000 1042151 Not applicable 1292151

Mr Fisher was not Named Executive Officer for 2009 because he had not yet joined the Company How

ever because he joined in January 2010 and we described the terms of his change in control severance

agreement in this proxy statement we have also included him in this table

This amount includes accrued but unpaid base compensation as of December 31 2009

Amounts in this column reflect accelerated vesting of LTIP units granted pursuant to our 2009 Equity

Incentive Plan that vest ratably on each of the first five anniversaries of the date of grant Unless and until

LTIP units reach parity with Common Shares the value of LTIP units can only be estimated As stated

above we determined that for purposes of GAAP the fair value for each LTIP unit was $8.50 on the date
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of grant December 14 2010 However pursuant to SEC rules for purposes of this table the market value

per unvested LTIP unit is assumed to be $22.01 the closing market price per Common Share at the end of

the last completed fiscal year December 31 2009 This table further assumes that the LTIP units had

reached parity with Common Shares on December 31 2009 However as of December 31 2009 the LTIP

units had not reached parity with Common Shares For more information regarding the Companys

assumptions made in the valuation of these equity awards see Note to the financial statements included

in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31 2009

Amounts in this column reflect payment to the Named Executive Officer in an amount equal to the federal

excise tax on qualifying termination compensation the Excise Tax Payment plus all federal state and

local income taxes payable with respect to the Excise Tax Payment The amounts shown assume tax rates

for the Named Executive Officer of 35% federal 6.25% state 1.45% Medicare and 20% excise and do

not account for local taxes

CASH STAY BONUS FOLLOWING CHANGE IN CONTROL

If Named Executive Officer remains employed by the Company on the first anniversary of change in

control event the Named Executive Officer is entitled to receive lump sum cash stay bonus For each Named

Executive Officer the cash stay bonus is equal to the sum of the executives base salary plus the greater of

the bonus most recently paid to the executive or ii the average amount of the bonuses paid to the

executive with respect to the three most recent fiscal years Assuming that change in control occuned on

December 31 2009 and that both Mr Bortz and Mr Martz remained with the Company at least until

December 31 2010 based on their 2009 base salaries their cash stay bonuses would be $300000 and

$250000 respectively Had Mr Fisher joined the Company in 2009 under this same scenario he would have

been entitled to $250000

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of Common Shares as of April 2010 for

each shareholder of the Company that is known to the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than

5% of Common Shares based upon filings made with the SEC ii each Named Executive Officer of the

Company and iii the trustees and the Named Executive Officers of the Company as group None of the

Named Executive Officers has pledged any of his Common Shares as collateral

Common Shares

Beneficially Owned1
Name of Beneficial Owner Number Percent of Total

Ameriprise Financial2 1722964 8.47%

President and Fellows of Harvard College3 1715000 8.43%

Invesco Ltd.4 1246016 6.13%

Cohen Steers Inc.5 1091500 5.37%

Jon Bortz67 153976

Raymond Martz68 24388

All trustees and the executive officers as group persons678 212752 1.05%

Represents less than one percent of class

The number of Common Shares beneficially owned is reported on the basis of regulations of the SEC gov

erning the determination of beneficial ownership of securities The number of Common Shares held by the

shareholders who filed statements on Schedule 13G as described in other footnotes to this table is cunent

as of the date of the filing of their Schedules 13G The number of Common Shares held by our Named

Executive Officers and trustees and executive officers are as of and all of the percentages shown in this

table are calculated as of April 2010
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The number of Common Shares in the table above and the information in this footnote are based on

statement on Schedule 13G jointly filed by Ameriprise Financial Inc Delaware corporation and parent

holding company AFI and RiverSource Investments LLC an investment adviser registered under Sec

tion 203 of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 RvS with the SEC on February 12 2010 AFT may

be deemed to beneficially own the shares reported by RvS Accordingly the shares reported by AFT in the

Schedule 3G include those shares owned separately by RvS in the Schedule 13G Each of AFT and RvS

have sole voting power over no shares shared voting power over 31018 shares sole dispositive power

over no shares and shared dispositive power over 1722964 shares Each of AFT and RvS disclaims benefi

cial ownership of these shares AFT has its principal business office at do Ameriprise Financial Inc 145

Ameriprise Financial Center Minneapolis MN 55474

The number of Common Shares in the table above and the information in this footnote are based on

statement on Schedule 13G filed by President and Fellows of Harvard College Harvard with the SEC

on January 2010 Harvard has sole voting power over 1715000 shares shared voting power over no

shares sole dispositive power over 1715000 shares and shared dispositive power over no shares Harvard

has its principal business office at do Harvard Management Company Inc 600 Atlantic Avenue Boston

MA 02210

The number of Common Shares in the table above and the information in this footnote are based on

statement on Schedule 13G filed by Invesco Ltd Invesco with the SEC on February 12 2010 Invesco

Institutional N.A Inc Invesco Global Asset Management N.A Inc Invesco Management S.A and

Invesco Aim Private Asset Management Inc are investment adviser subsidiaries of Invesco Invesco Insti

tutional N.A Inc has sole voting power over 880037 shares shared voting power over 18406 shares

sole dispositive power over 1202799 shares and shared dispositive power over 7405 shares Invesco Man

agement S.A has sole voting power over 671 shares shared voting power over no shares sole dispositive

power over 671 shares and shared dispositive power over no shares Invesco Aim Private Asset Manage

ment Inc has sole voting power over 441 shares shared voting power over no shares sole dispositive

power over 441 shares and shared dispositive power over no shares Invesco Global Asset Management

N.A Inc has sole voting power over no shares shared voting power over no shares sole dispositive

power over 34700 shares and shared dispositive power over no shares Invesco has its principal business

office at 1555 Peachtree Street NE Atlanta GA 30309

The number of Common Shares in the table above and the information in this footnote are based on

statement on Schedule 13G filed by Cohen Steers Inc Cohen with the SEC on February 12 2010

Cohen Steers Inc holds 100% interest in Cohen Steers Capital Management Inc an investment

advisor registered under Section 203 of the Investment Advisers Act Each of Cohen and Cohen Steers

Capital Management Inc has sole voting power over 882700 shares shared voting power over no shares

sole dispositive power over 1091500 shares and shared dispositive power over no shares Each of Cohen

and Cohen Steers Capital Management Inc has its principal business office at 280 Park Avenue 10th

Floor New York NY 10017

The business address for this shareholder is Bethesda Metro Center Suite 1530 Bethesda Maryland

20814

This amount includes 100 Common Shares owned by Mr Bortzs son Mr Bortz disclaims beneficial own

ership of those shares This amount does not include 723035 LTIP units held by Mr Bortz

This amount does not include 132260 LTIP units held by Mr Martz

SECTION 16a BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act requires the Companys executive officers and trustees and

persons who own more than 10% of registered class of the Companys equity securities 10% Holders to

file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC Officers trustees and 10% Holders are

required by SEC regulation to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16a forms that they file To

the Companys knowledge based solely on review of the copies of such reports furnished to the Company or

written representations from reporting persons
that all reportable transactions were reported the Company

believes that during the fiscal year ended December 31 2009 the executive officers trustees and 10% Holders

timely filed all reports they were required to file under Section 16a
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OTHER MATTERS

Solicitation of Proxies

The cost of solicitation of proxies will be paid by the Company The trustees officers and employees of

the Company may solicit proxies personally or by telephone without additional compensation for such

activities The Company will also request persons firms and corporations holding Common Shares in their

names or in the names of their nominees which are beneficially owned by others to send appropriate

solicitation materials to such beneficial owners The Company will reimburse such holders for their reasonable

expenses

The Company will employ Broadridge Financial Solutions to receive and tabulate the proxies

Shareholder Proposals

Shareholder proposals intended to be presented at the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders must be

received by the Secretary of the Company no later than November 11 2010 in order to be considered for

inclusion in the Companys Proxy Statement relating to the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders pursuant to

Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act Rule 14a-8

For proposal of shareholder to be presented at the Companys 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

other than shareholder proposal included in the Companys Proxy Statement pursuant to Rule 14a-8 it must

be received at the principal executive offices of the Company no earlier than the close of business on

January 22 2011 and no later than February 21 2011 If the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is

scheduled to take place before March 23 2011 or after June 21 2011 then notice must be delivered no earlier

than the close of business on the 90th day prior to the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and not later

than the close of business on the later of the 60th day prior to the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders or

the tenth day following the day on which public announcement of the date of the 2011 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders is first made by the Company Any such proposal should be mailed to Pebblebrook Hotel Trust

Bethesda Metro Center Suite 1530 Bethesda Maryland 20814 Attn Corporate Secretary

Additional Matters

The Board of Trustees does not know of any matters other than those described in this Proxy Statement

that will be presented for action at the Annual Meeting If other matters are presented proxies will be voted in

accordance with the best judgment of the proxy holders

Requests for Annual Report on Form 10-K

copy of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2009

including the financial statements and the financial statement schedules may be obtained at our website at

www.pebblebrookhotels.com If you would like to receive complimentary copy of the Annual Report on

Form 10-K please submit written request to Pebblebrook Hotel Trust do Broadridge 51 Mercedes

Way Edgewood New York 11717

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Is RAYMOND MARTZ

Raymond Martz

Secretary

Bethesda Maryland

April 2010
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report together with other statements and information publicly disseminated by the Company

contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933

as amended and Section 21 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended We intend such forward-

looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in the

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and includes this statement for purposes of complying with

these safe harbor provisions Forward-looking statements which are based on certain assumptions and describe

our future plans strategies and expectations are generally identifiable by use of the words believe expect

intend anticipate estimate project or similar expressions Forward-looking statements in this report

include among others statements about our business strategy including its acquisition and development

strategies industry trends estimated revenues and expenses ability to realize deferred tax assets and expected

liquidity needs and sources including capital expenditures and the ability to obtain financing or raise capital

You should not rely on forward-looking statements since they involve known and unknown risks uncertainties

and other factors that are in some cases beyond our control and which could materially affect actual results

performances or achievements Factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from current

expectations include but are not limited to

the timing and availability of potential hotel acquisitions and our ability to identify and complete hotel

acquisitions in accordance with our business strategy

risks associated with the hotel industry including competition increases in employment costs energy

costs and other operating costs or decreases in demand caused by actual or threatened terrorist attacks

any type
of flu or disease-related pandemic or downturns in general and local economic conditions

the availability and terms of financing and capital and the general volatility of securities markets

the Companys dependence on third-party managers of its hotels including its inability to implement

strategic business decisions directly

risks associated with the real estate industry including environmental contamination and costs of

complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act and similar laws

interest rate increases

the possible failure of the Company to qualify as REIT and the risk of changes in laws affecting

REITs

the possibility of uninsured losses and

the other factors discussed under the heading Risk Factors in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Accordingly there is no assurance that our expectations will be realized Except as otherwise required by

the federal securities laws we disclaim any obligations or undertaking to publicly release any updates or

revisions to any forward-looking statement contained herein or elsewhere to reflect any change in our

expectations with regard thereto or any change in events conditions or circumstances on which any such

statement is based

The Company we or us means Pebblebrook Hotel Trust Maryland real estate investment trust

and one or more of its subsidiaries including Pebblebrook Hotel L.P or our operating partnership or as the

context may require Pebblebrook Hotel Trust only or our operating partnership only



PART

Item Business

General

Pebblebrook Hotel Trust is an internally managed hotel investment company recently organized to

opportunistically acquire and invest in hotel properties located primarily in major U.S cities with an emphasis

on the major coastal markets which we believe present significant barriers to entry for new hotel supply and

are likely to experience the most robust recovery in meeting and room-night demand as the U.S economy

improves On December 14 2009 we raised $379.6 million net of underwriting discounts and offering costs

in an initial public offering and concurrent private placement of our common shares of beneficial interest

common shares We had no business activity prior to our initial public offering and we do not own any

properties as of March 24 2010 As newly formed company we have no operating history and our assets

consist only of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments made with the net proceeds of our initial

public offering and concurrent private placement

Substantially all of our assets are held by and all of our operations will be conducted through

Pebblebrook Hotel L.P our Operating Partnership We are the sole general partner of our Operating

Partnership At December 31 2009 we owned 100 percent of the Operating Partnership We intend to elect

and qualify to be taxed as real estate investment trust REIT for federal income tax purposes

commencing with our short taxable year
ended December 31 2009 For us to qualify as REIT under the

Internal Revenue Code of 1986 or the Code we cannot operate the hotels we acquire Therefore our

Operating Partnership and its subsidiaries will lease our hotel properties to our to be formed taxable REIT

subsidiary TRS lessees who will in turn engage eligible independent contractors to manage our hotels

Each of these lessees will be treated as TRS for federal income tax purposes
and will be consolidated into

our financial statements for accounting purposes However since both our Operating Partnership and our TRS

lessees are controlled by us our principal source of funds on consolidated basis will be from the operations

of our hotels The earnings of our TRS lessees will be subject to taxation like other regular corporations

which will reduce our funds from operations and the cash otherwise available for distribution to our

shareholders

Industry Overview

Since August 2008 the U.S lodging industry has experienced substantial declines in fundamentals as

result of the global recession and its adverse impact on business and leisure travel Lodging demand decreased

on year-over-year
basis in 2008 and 2009 while supply has risen as hotel properties that were under

development before the financial crisis continues to be completed As result of falling demand increasing

supply and deteriorating average rates room revenue per available room RevPAR decreased by 16.7 percent

in 2009 and is expected to decrease by 3.2 percent in 2010 according to Smith Travel Research

As result of the financial distress lack of financing severe recession and declining operating

fundamentals over the past two years many previously planned new hotel developments have been abandoned

and the number of rooms under construction and in planning has declined and is expected to decline further

over the next several years Accordingly new room supply growth is projected by Smith Travel Research to be

just 1.8 percent in 2010 and 10 percent in 2011 significantly below the 2.2 percent annual
average

from 1988

to 2009 We believe this below-average projected supply growth is due to scarcity of financing for hotel

properties and operating fundamentals that do not generate adequate returns on the cost of new hotel

construction We believe that declining new room supply growth will create an environment favorable for

future increases in hotel occupancy average daily rates ADR and room revenue per available room

Business Objectives and Strategies

We intend to invest in hotel properties located primarily in major U.S cities such as Boston New York

Washington D.C Chicago Los Angeles and San Francisco with an emphasis on the major coastal markets

We believe these markets have significant barriers to entry and will experience the most robust recovery in



meeting and room-night demand as the U.S economy improves In addition we may invest in resort properties

located near our primary urban target markets as well as in select destination markets such as Hawaii south

Florida and southern California We intend to focus on both branded and independent full-service hotels in the

upper upscale segment of the lodging industry In addition we may seek to acquire branded upscale select-

service hotels in our primary urban target markets The full-service hotels on which we intend to focus our

investment activity generally will have restaurant lounge and meeting facilities and other amenities as well as

high service levels The select-service hotels in which we may invest generally will not have comprehensive

business meeting or banquet facilities and will have limited food and beverage outlets We believe our target

markets including the coastal cities and resort markets are characterized by significant barriers to entry and

that long-term room-night demand and ADR growth of these types of hotels will likely continue to outperform

the national average as they have historically

We will utilize extensive research to evaluate any target market and property including detailed review

of the long-term economic outlook trends in local demand generators competitive environment property

systems and physical condition and property financial performance Specific acquisition criteria may include

but are not limited to the following

premier locations facilities and other competitive advantages not easily replicated

significant barriers to entry in the market such as scarcity of development sites regulatory hurdles

high per room development costs and long lead times for new development

acquisition price at significant discount to replacement cost

properties not subject to long-term management contracts with hotel management companies

potential return on investment initiatives including redevelopment rebranding redesign expansion and

change of management

opportunities to implement value-added operational improvements and

strong demand growth characteristics supported by favorable demographic indicators

Although the upper upscale segment of the lodging industry has been more severely impacted in the

recent recession than in previous downturns we believe that as the U.S economy begins to stabilize and

generate positive GDP growth upper upscale full-service hotels and resorts and upscale select-service hotels

located in major U.S urban convention and drive-to and destination resort markets are likely to generate the

most favorable returns on investment in the lodging industry as historically RevPAR performance at these

hotels has outperformed the broader U.S hotel industry during periods of recovery Hotel developers inability

to source construction financing over the past 18 to 24 months creates an environment in which minimal new

lodging supply is expected to be added through at least 2012 We believe that as transient and group travel

rebounds existing supply will accommodate incremental room-night demand allowing hotel owners to grow

occupancy and ultimately increase rates thereby improving profitability We believe that portfolio diversifica

tion will allow us to capitalize on the growth in various customer segments including business transient leisure

transient and group and convention room-night demand

We generally intend to enter into flexible management contracts with third-party hotel management

companies for the operation of our hotels that will provide us with the ability to replace operators and/or

reposition properties to the extent that we determine to do so and will align our operators with our objective

of generating the highest return on investment In addition we believe that flexible management contracts

facilitate the sale of hotels and we may seek to opportunistically sell hotels if we believe sales proceeds may

be invested in hotel properties that offer more attractive risk-adjusted returns Initially we do not intend to

engage in significant development or redevelopment of hotel properties However we do expect to engage in

partial redevelopment and repositioning of certain properties as we seek to maximize the financial

performance of the hotels that we acquire In addition we may acquire properties that require significant

capital improvement renovation or refurbishment Over the long-term we may acquire hotel and resort

properties that we believe would benefit from significant redevelopment or expansion including for example

adding rooms meeting facilities or other amenities



We may consider acquiring outstanding debt secured by hotel or resort property from lenders and

investors if we believe we can foreclose on or acquire ownership of the property in the near-term We do not

intend to originate any debt financing or purchase any debt where we do not expect to gain ownership of the

underlying property

Financing Strategies

While our declaration of trust does not limit the amount of indebtedness we may incur we expect to

maintain low-leverage capital structure and intend to limit the sum of the outstanding principal amount of

our consolidated indebtedness and the liquidation preference of any outstanding preferred shares to not more

than 4.5x our earnings before income taxes depreciation and amortization or EBITDA for the 12-month

period preceding the incurrence of such debt or the issuance of such preferred shares Over time we intend to

finance our long-term growth with common and preferred equity issuances and debt financing having

staggered maturities Our debt may include mortgage debt secured by our hotel properties and unsecured debt

We anticipate arranging and utilizing revolving credit facility to fund future acquisitions following

investment of the net proceeds of our initial public offering and concurrent private placement as well as for

property redevelopments return on investment initiatives and working capital requirements Subject to market

conditions we intend to repay amounts outstanding under any such credit facility from time to time with

periodic common and preferred equity issuances long-term debt financings and cash flows from operations

No assurance can be given that we will be able to obtain credit facility

Generally we do not expect to incur debt pursuant to revolving credit facility or otherwise until we

have invested substantially all of the net proceeds of our initial public offering and the concurrent private

placement other than possibly assuming debt in connection with hotel acquisition If we assume debt in

connection with our initial hotel acquisitions our debt level could temporarily exceed the general limitation

described above In measuring our debt for purposes of our general debt limitation we will utilize net debt

which is the principal amount of our consolidated indebtedness and the liquidation preference of any

outstanding preferred shares less the amount of our cash

When purchasing hotel properties we may issue limited partnership interests in our Operating Partnership

as full or partial consideration to sellers

Competition

We expect to compete for hotel investment opportunities with institutional investors private equity

investors other REITs and numerous local regional and national owners including franchisors in each of our

target markets Some of these entities may have substantially greater
financial resources than we do and may

be able and willing to accept more risk than we can prudently manage Competition generally may increase

the bargaining power of property owners seeking to sell and reduce the number of suitable investment

opportunities offered to us or purchased by us

The hotel industry is highly competitive Hotels we acquire will compete with other hotels for guests in

our markets Competitive factors include location convenience brand affiliation room rates range of services

facilities and guest amenities or accommodations offered and quality of guest service Competition in the

markets in which our hotels will operate will include competition from existing newly renovated and newly

developed hotels in the relevant segments Competition can adversely affect the occupancy ADR and RevPAR

of our hotels and thus our financial results and may require us to provide additional amenities incur

additional costs or make capital improvements that we otherwise might not choose to make which may

adversely affect our profitability

Seasonality

Depending on hotels location and market operations for the hotel may be seasonal in nature In

general many hotels maintain higher occupancy and average daily rates during the second and third calendar

quarters Seasonality experienced by our hotels may cause fluctuations in our quarterly operating profits To



the extent that our cash flow from operations is insufficient during any quarter to fund distributions to our

equity holders or meet other cash needs due to temporary or seasonal fluctuations in revenue we expect to use

cash on hand or borrowings under our anticipated revolving credit facility to make distributions

Governmental Environmental Regulations

The hotel properties that we acquire will be subject to various federal state and local environmental laws

Under these laws courts and government agencies have the authority to require us as owner of contaminated

property to clean up the property even if we did not know of or were not responsible for the contamination

These laws also apply to persons
who owned property at the time it became contaminated and therefore it is

possible we could incur these costs even after we sell some of the properties we acquire In addition to the

costs of cleanup environmental contamination can affect the value of property and therefore an owners

ability to borrow using the property as collateral or to sell the property Under the environmental laws courts

and government agencies also have the authority to require that person who sent waste to waste disposal

facility such as landfill or an incinerator pay for the clean-up of that facility if it becomes contaminated and

threatens human health or the environment

Furthermore various court decisions have established that third parties may recover damages for injury

caused by property contamination For instance person exposed to asbestos while staying in hotel may

seek to recover damages if he or she suffers injury from the asbestos Lastly some of these environmental

laws restrict the use of property or place conditions on various activities An example would be laws that

require business using chemicals such as swimming pool chemicals at hotel property to manage them

carefully and to notify local officials that the chemicals are being used

We could be responsible for any of the costs discussed above The costs to clean up contaminated

property to defend against claim or to comply with environmental laws could be material and could

adversely affect the funds available for distribution to our shareholders We expect to obtain Phase

environmental site assessments or ESAs on each hotel property prior to acquiring it However these ESAs

may not reveal all environmental costs that might have material adverse effect on our business assets results

of operations or liquidity and may not identify all potential environmental liabilities

As result we may become subject to material environmental liabilities of which we are unaware We

can make no assurances that future laws or regulations will not impose material environmental liabilities

on us or the environmental condition of our hotel properties will not be affected by the condition of the

properties in the vicinity of our hotel properties such as the presence of leaking underground storage tanks or

by third parties unrelated to us

Tax Status

We intend to elect REIT status with the filing of our initial Real Estate Investment Trust tax return due

with extension on or before September 15 2010 As result we are not generally subject to corporate federal

income tax on that portion of our REIT taxable income that we distribute to our shareholders Under the Code

Sections 856 through 860 REITs are subject to numerous organizational and operational requirements

including requirements
with respect to the nature of our gross income and assets and to generally distribute at

least 90 percent of REIT taxable income each year We will be subject to federal income tax on our taxable

income at the regular corporate rates if we fail to qualify as REIT for tax purposes
in any taxable year or to

the extent we distribute less than 100 percent of REIT taxable income We will also not be permitted to

qualify for treatment as REIT for federal income tax purposes for four years following the year during which

qualification is lost Even if we qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes we will be subject to

certain state and local income franchise and property taxes For us to qualify as REIT under the Internal

Revenue Code of 1986 or the Code we cannot operate the hotels we acquire Therefore our Operating

Partnership and its subsidiaries will lease our hotel properties to our TRS lessees who will in turn engage

eligible independent contractors to manage our hotels Each of these lessees will be treated as TRS for

federal income tax purposes
and will be consolidated into our financial statements for accounting purposes

However since both our operating partnership and our TRS lessees are controlled by us our principal source



of funds on consolidated basis will be from the operations of our hotels The earnings of our TRS lessees

will be subject to taxation like other regular corporations

Employees

As of March 22 2010 we had ten employees None of our employees are represented by collective

bargaining agreement

Available Information

Our Internet website is located at www.pebblebrookhotels.com Copies of the charters of the committees

of our board of trustees our code of ethics our code of business conduct and ethics and our corporate

governance guidelines are available on our website All reports that we have filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission or SEC including this Annual Report on Form 10-K and our current reports on

Form 8-K can be obtained free of charge from the SECs website at www.sec.gov or through our website In

addition all reports filed with the SEC may also be read and copied at the SECs Public Reference Room at

100 Street NE Washington DC 20549 Further information regarding the operation of the public reference

room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 Information on our website should not be

deemed to be part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated into any other filings we make

Item 1A Risk Factors

Our business is subject to numerous risks Our results of operations depend upon many factors including

our ability to implement our business strategy the availability of opportunities to acquire assets the level and

volatility of interest rates the cost and availability of short- and long-term credit financial market conditions

and general economic conditions

The following discussion concerns some of the risks associated with our business These risks are

interrelated and you should treat them as whole Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us

may also materially and adversely affect the value of our common shares and our ability to pay
dividends to

our shareholders In connection with the forward-looking statements that appear in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K in these risk factors and elsewhere you should carefully review the section entitled Cautionary

Statement About Forward-Looking Statements

Risks Related to Our Business and Properties

We have no operating history and may not be able to successfully operate our business or generate

sufficient operating cash flows to make or sustain distributions to our shareholders

We were organized in October 2009 and had our initial public offering in December 2009 We have no

operating history and have no agreements to acquire any hotel properties Our ability to make or sustain

distributions to our shareholders will depend on many factors including our ability to identify attractive

acquisition opportunities that satisfy our investment strategy our success in consummating acquisitions on

favorable terms the level and volatility of interest rates readily accessible short-term and long-term financing

on favorable terms and conditions in the financial markets the real estate market and the economy We will

face competition in acquiring attractive hotel properties The value of the hotel properties that we acquire may
decline substantially after we purchase them We may not be able to successfully operate our business or

implement our operating policies and investment strategy successfully Furthermore we may not be able to

generate sufficient operating cash flow to pay our operating expenses and make distributions to our

shareholders

As newly formed company we are subject to the risks of any newly established business enterprise

including risks that we will be unable to attract and retain qualified personnel create effective operating and

financial controls and systems or effectively manage our anticipated growth any of which could have

material adverse effect on our business and our operating results



We have not yet identified any specific hotel properties to acquire and our short-term investments may

provide lower net returns

Prior to the full investment of the net offering proceeds in hotel properties we intend to invest the net

proceeds in interest-bearing short-tenn investment grade securities or money-market accounts which are

consistent with our intention to qualify as REIT These investments are expected to provide lower net

return than we will seek to achieve from our investments in hotel properties We may not be able to identify

hotel investments that meet our investment criteria we may not be successful in completing any
investment

we identify and our investments may not produce acceptable or any returns We may be unable to invest the

proceeds on acceptable terms or at all

Our cash and cash equivalents and short term investments are maintained in limited number of

financial institutions and the funds in those institutions may not be fully or federally insured

We maintain cash balances in limited number of financial institutions However our cash balances are

generally in excess of federally insured limits The failure or collapse of one or more of these financial

institutions may materially adversely affect our ability to recover our cash balances

We depend on the efforts and expertise of our key executive officers and would be adversely affected by

the loss of their services

We depend on the efforts and expertise of our President and Chief Executive Officer as well as our other

executive officers to execute our business strategy The loss of their services and our inability to find suitable

replacements
would have an adverse effect on our business

Our senior executive officers have broad discretion to make investments and they may make investments

where the returns are substantially below expectations or which result in net operating losses

Our senior executive officers have broad discretion within the general investment criteria established by

our board of trustees to invest the net proceeds of this offering and the concurrent private placement and to

determine the timing of such investments In addition our investment policies may be revised from time to

time at the discretion of our board of trustees without vote of our shareholders Such discretion could result

in investments that may not yield returns consistent with expectations

We intend to invest primarily in the upper upscale segment of the lodging market which is highly

competitive and generally subject to greater volatility than most other market segments and could

negatively affect our profitability

The upper upscale segment of the hotel business is highly competitive Our hotel properties will compete

on the basis of location room rates quality service levels reputation and reservations systems among many

factors There are many competitors in the upper upscale segment and many of these competitors may have

substantially greater marketing and financial resources than we have This competition could reduce occupancy

levels and room revenue at our hotels Over-building in the lodging industry may increase the number of

rooms available and may decrease occupancy and room rates In addition in periods of weak demand as may

occur during general economic recession profitability is negatively affected by the relatively high fixed costs

of operating upper upscale hotels

Failure of the lodging industry to exhibit improvement may adversely affect the operating results of the

hotels we acquire and our ability to execute our business strategy

substantial part of our business strategy is based on our expectation that lodging industry fundamentals

will improve as forecast by industry analysts which project that RevPAR growth will turn positive in 2011

thereby improving profitability There can be no assurance as to whether or when lodging industry

fundamentals will in fact improve or to what extent they will improve In the event conditions in the industry

do not improve when and as we expect or deteriorate the operating results of hotels we acquire and our

ability to execute our business strategy may be impaired



Our returns could be negatively impacted if the third-party management companies that will operate our

hotels do not manage our hotel properties effectively

Since federal income tax laws restrict REITs and their subsidiaries from operating or managing hotel

we will not operate any hotel properties we acquire Instead we will lease substantially all of our hotel

properties to subsidiaries that qualify as TRSs under applicable REIT laws and our TRS lessees will retain

third-party managers to operate our hotels pursuant to management contracts Our cash flow from the hotels

may be adversely affected if our managers fail to provide quality services and amenities or if they or their

affiliates fail to maintain quality brand name In addition our managers or their affiliates may manage and

in some cases may own invest in or provide credit support or operating guarantees to hotels that compete with

hotel properties that we acquire which may result in conflicts of interest and decisions regarding the operation

of our hotels that are not in our best interests

We will not have the authority to require any hotel property to be operated in particular manner or to

govern any particular aspect of the daily operations of any hotel property for example setting room rates

Thus even if we believe our hotels are being operated inefficiently or in manner that does not result in

satisfactory occupancy rates RevPAR and ADR we may not be able to force the management company to

change its method of operating our hotels We generally will attempt to resolve issues with our managers

through discussions and negotiations However if we are unable to reach satisfactory results through

discussions and negotiations we may choose to litigate the dispute or submit the matter to third-party dispute

resolution We can only seek redress if management company violates the terms of the applicable

management contract with TRS lessee and then only to the extent of the remedies provided for under the

terms of the management contract Additionally in the event that we need to replace any management

company we may be required by the terms of the management contract to pay substantial termination fees and

may experience significant disruptions at the affected hotels

Restrictive covenants in our management contracts could preclude us from taking actions with respect to

the sale or refinancing of hotel property that would otherwise be in our best interest

Although we currently intend to enter into flexible management contracts that will provide us with the

ability to replace our hotel managers on relatively short notice we may enter into management contracts that

contain some restrictive covenants or acquire properties subject to existing management contracts that do not

allow such flexibility For example the terms of some management contracts may restrict our ability to sell

property unless the purchaser is not competitor of the manager and assumes the related management contract

and meets specified other conditions If we enter into any such management contracts or acquire properties

with such terms we may be precluded from taking actions that would otherwise be in our best interest or

could cause us to incur substantial expense

Our TRS lessee structure will subject us to the risk of increased hotel operating expenses

Our leases with our TRS lessees will require our TRS lessees to pay us rent based in part on revenues

from our hotels Our operating risks include decreases in hotel revenues and increases in hotel operating

expenses which would adversely affect our TRS lessees ability to pay us rent due under the leases including

but not limited to the increases in wage and benefit costs repair and maintenance expenses energy costs

property taxes insurance costs and other operating expenses Increases in these operating expenses can have

significant adverse impact on our financial condition results of operations the market price of our common
shares and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders

Our hotels operated under franchise agreements will be subject to risks arising from adverse

developments with respect to the franchise brand and to costs associated with maintaining the franchise

license

We expect that many of our hotel properties will operate under franchise agreements and that we will be

subject to the risks associated with concentrating hotel investments in several franchise brands These risks



include reductions in business following negative publicity related to one of the brands or the general decline

of brand

The maintenance of the franchise licenses for branded hotel properties will be subject to the franchisors

operating standards and other terms and conditions Franchisors will periodically inspect hotel properties to

ensure that we and our lessees and management companies follow their standards Failure by us one of our

TRS lessees or one of our third-party management companies to maintain these standards or other terms and

conditions could result in franchise license being canceled If franchise license is cancelled due to our

failure to make required improvements or to otherwise comply with its terms we also may be liable to the

franchisor for termination payment which varies by franchisor and by hotel property As condition of

maintaining franchise license franchisor could require us to make capital expenditures even if we do not

believe the capital improvements are necessary or desirable or will result in an acceptable return on our

investment We may risk losing franchise license if we do not make franchisor-required capital expenditures

If franchisor terminates the franchise license or the license expires we may try either to obtain

suitable replacement
franchise or to operate the hotel without franchise license The loss of franchise

license could materially and adversely affect the operations and the underlying value of the hotel property

because of the loss of associated name recognition marketing support and centralized reservation system

provided by the franchisor and adversely affect our revenues This loss of revenue could in turn adversely

affect our financial condition results of operations the market price of our common shares and our ability to

make distributions to our shareholders

Our ability to make distributions to our shareholders is subject to fluctuations in our financial

performance operating
results and capital improvements requirements

To qualify for taxation as REIT we will be required to distribute at least 90 percent of our REIT

taxable income determined before the deduction for dividends paid and excluding any net capital gains each

year to our shareholders and we generally expect to make distributions in excess of such amount In the event

of downturns in our operating results unanticipated capital improvements to our hotel properties or other

factors we may be unable to declare or pay distributions to our shareholders The timing and amount of

distributions are in the sole discretion of our board of trustees which will consider among other factors our

financial performance any debt service obligations any debt covenants and capital expenditure requirements

We cannot assure you that we will generate sufficient cash in order to fund distributions

We may use portion of the net proceeds from our initial public offering and the concurrent private place

ment to make distributions to our shareholders which would among other things reduce our cash avail

able to invest in hotel properties and may reduce the returns on your investment in our common shares

Prior to the time we have fully invested the net proceeds of our initial public offering and the concurrent

private placement we may fund distributions to our shareholders out of the net proceeds of these offerings

which would reduce the amount of cash we have available to invest in hotel properties and may reduce the

returns on your investment in our common shares The use of these net proceeds for distributions to

shareholders could adversely affect our financial results In addition funding distributions from the net

proceeds of these offerings may constitute return of capital to our shareholders which would have the effect

of reducing each shareholders tax basis in our common shares

If we cannot obtain financing our growth will be limited

To qualify for taxation as REIT we will be required to distribute at least 90 percent of our REIT

taxable income determined before the deduction for dividends paid and excluding any net capital gains each

year to our shareholders and we generally expect to make distributions in excess of such amount As result

our ability to retain earnings to fund acquisitions redevelopment and development or other capital expendi

tures will be limited After investing the net proceeds of our initial public offering and the concurrent private

placement we do not expect to have significant amount of debt including debt that may be assumed in

connection with



hotel acquisition Although our business strategy contemplates future access to debt financing including an

anticipated revolving credit facility to fund acquisitions redevelopment development return on investment

initiatives and working capital requirements there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain such

financing on favorable terms or at all Recent events in the financial markets have had an adverse impact on

the credit markets and as result credit has become significantly more expensive and difficult to obtain if

available at all Some lenders are imposing more stringent credit terms there has been and may continue to be

general reduction in the amount of credit available and many banks are either unable or unwilling to provide

new asset based lending Tightening credit markets may have an adverse effect on our ability to obtain

financing on favorable terms if at all thereby increasing financing costs and/or requiring us to accept

financing with increasing restrictions If adverse conditions in the credit markets in particular with respect

to real estate or lodging industry finance materially deteriorate our business could be materially and

adversely affected Our long-term ability to grow through investments in hotel properties will be limited if we
cannot obtain additional financing Market conditions may make it difficult to obtain financing and we cannot

assure you that we will be able to obtain additional debt or equity financing or that we will be able to obtain it

on favorable terms

Future debt service obligations could adversely affect our overall operating results may require us to sell

hotel properties may jeopardize our qualification as REIT and could adversely affect our ability to

make distributions to our shareholders and the market price of our common shares

Our business strategy contemplates the use of both secured and unsecured debt to finance long-term

growth Although we intend to limit the sum of the outstanding principal amount of our consolidated

indebtedness and the liquidation preference of any outstanding preferred shares to not more than 4.5x our

EBITDA for the 12-month period preceding the incurrence of new debt or the issuance of preferred shares

our board of trustees may modify or eliminate this limitation at any time without the approval of our

shareholders As result we may be able to incur substantial additional debt including secured debt in the

future Incurring debt could subject us to many risks including the risks that our cash flow from operations

will be insufficient to make required payments of principal and interest our debt may increase our

vulnerability to adverse economic and industry conditions we may be required to dedicate substantial

portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our debt thereby reducing cash available for

distribution to our shareholders funds available for operations and capital expenditures future business

opportunities or other purposes the terms of any refinancing will not be as favorable as the terms of the debt

being refinanced and the use of leverage could adversely affect our ability to make distributions to our

shareholders and the market price of our common shares

If we violate covenants in future agreements relating to indebtedness that we may incur we could be

required to repay all or portion of our indebtedness before maturity at time when we might be unable to

arrange financing for such repayment on attractive terms if at all In addition future indebtedness agreements

may require that we meet certain covenant tests in order to make distributions to our shareholders

Any joint venture investments that we make could be adversely affected by our lack of sole

decision-making authority our reliance on co-venturers financial condition and disputes between us and

our co-venturers

We may co-invest in hotels in the future with third parties through partnerships joint ventures or other

entities acquiring non-controlling interests in or sharing responsibility for property partnership joint venture

or other entity In this event we would not be in position to exercise sole decision-making authority

regarding the property partnership joint venture or other entity Investments through partnerships joint

ventures or other entities may under certain circumstances involve risks not present were third party not

involved including the possibility that partners or co-venturers might become bankrupt fail to fund their share

of required capital contributions make dubious business decisions or block or delay necessary decisions

Partners or co-venturers may have economic or other business interests or goals which are inconsistent with

our business interests or goals and may be in position to take actions contrary to our policies or objectives

Such investments may also have the potential risk of impasses on decisions such as sale because neither we
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nor the partner or co-venturer would have full control over the partnership or joint venture Disputes between

us and partners or co-venturers may result in litigation or arbitration that would increase our expenses
and

prevent our officers and/or trustees from focusing their time and effort on our business Consequently action

by or disputes with partners or co-venturers might result in subjecting properties owned by the partnership or

joint venture to additional risk In addition we may in certain circumstances be liable for the actions of our

third-party partners or co-venturers

Unanticipated expenses
and insufficient demand for hotels in new geographic markets could adversely

affect our profitability and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders

As part of our business strategy we may acquire or develop hotel properties in geographic areas in which

our management may have little or no operating experience and in which potential customers may not be

familiar with the brand of that particular hotel As result we may have to incur costs relating to the opening

operation and promotion of such hotel properties that are substantially greater than those incurred in other

areas These hotels may attract fewer customers than other hotel properties we may acquire while at the same

time we may incur substantial additional costs with such hotel properties Unanticipated expenses and

insufficient demand at new hotel property therefore could adversely affect our financial condition and

results of operations

Our conflicts of interest policy may not adequately address all of the conflicts of interest that may arise

with respect to our activities

In order to avoid any actual or perceived conflicts of interest with our trustees officers or employees we

have adopted conflicts of interest policy to specifically address some of the conflicts relating to our

activities Although under this policy the approval of majority of our disinterested trustees will be required

to approve any transaction agreement or relationship in which any of our trustees officers or employees has

an interest there is no assurance that this policy will be adequate to address all of the conflicts that may arise

or will address such conflicts in manner that is favorable to us

We may from time to time make distributions to our shareholders in the form of our common shares

which could give rise to non-cash taxable income to our shareholders

To the extent that in respect of any calendar year cash available for distribution is less than our REIT

taxable income we could make distributions or portion of the required distributions in the form of taxable

share distribution or distribution of debt securities and shareholders may recognize non-cash taxable income

In addition we might be required to sell assets or borrow funds to make distributions

Risks Related to Investments in Mortgage Loans

Our strategy of acquiring outstanding debt secured by hotel or resort property may expose us to risks of

costs and delays in acquiring the underlying property

We may consider acquiring outstanding debt secured by hotel or resort property from lenders and

investors if we believe we can ultimately foreclose or otherwise acquire ownership of the underlying property

in the near-term through foreclosure deed-in-lieu of foreclosure or other means However if we do acquire

such debt borrowers may seek to assert various defenses to our foreclosure or other actions and we may not

be successful in acquiring the underlying property on timely basis or at all in which event we could incur

significant costs and experience significant delays in acquiring such properties all of which could adversely

affect our financial performance and reduce our expected returns from such investments In addition we may

not earn current return on such investments particularly if the loan that we acquire is in default
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Risks Related to the Lodging Industry

Current economic conditions may reduce demand for hotel properties and adversely affect hotel

profitability

The performance of the lodging industry has historically been closely linked to the performance of the

general economy and specifically growth in U.S GDR It is also sensitive to business and personal

discretionary spending levels Declines in corporate travel budgets and consumer demand due to adverse

general economic conditions such as declines in U.S GDP risks affecting or reducing travel patterns lower

consumer confidence or adverse political conditions can lower the revenues and profitability of hotel properties

and therefore the net operating profits of our TRS lessees to whom we intend to lease the hotel properties that

we expect to acquire The current global economic downturn has led to significant decline in demand for

products and services provided by the lodging industry lower occupancy levels and significantly reduced room

rates

We anticipate that recovery
of demand for products and services provided by the lodging industry will lag

improvement in economic conditions We cannot predict how severe or prolonged the global economic

downturn will be or how severe or prolonged the lodging industry downturn will be After we have invested in

one or more hotel properties further extended period of economic weakness would likely have an adverse

impact on our revenues and negatively affect our financial condition results of operations the market price of

our common shares and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders

Our operating results and ability to make distributions to our shareholders may be adversely affected by

various operating risks common to the lodging industry

We plan to own hotel properties which have different economic characteristics than many other real estate

assets and hotel REIT is structured differently than many other types of REITs typical office property

owner for example has long-term leases with third-party tenants which provides relatively stable long-term

stream of revenue Our TRS lessees on the other hand will not enter into lease with hotel manager

Instead our TRS lessees will engage the hotel manager pursuant to management contract and will pay the

manager fee for managing the hotel The TRS lessees will receive all the operating profit or losses at the

hotel Moreover virtually all hotel guests stay at the hotel for only few nights so the rate and occupancy at

each of our hotels changes every day As result we may have highly volatile earnings

In addition our hotel properties will be subject to various operating risks common to the lodging industry

many of which are beyond our control including the following

competition from other hotel properties in our markets

over-building of hotels in our markets which could adversely affect occupancy and revenues at the

hotel properties we acquire

dependence on business and commercial travelers and tourism

increases in
energy costs and other

expenses affecting travel which may affect travel patterns and

reduce the number of business and commercial travelers and tourists

increases in operating costs due to inflation and other factors that may not be offset by increased room

rates

changes in interest rates and in the availability cost and terms of debt financing

changes in governmental laws and regulations fiscal policies and zoning ordinances and the related

costs of compliance with laws and regulations fiscal policies and ordinances

adverse effects of international national regional and local economic and market conditions

unforeseen events beyond our control such as terrorist attacks travel related health concerns including

pandemics and epidemics such as H1N1 influenza swine flu avian bird flu and SARS political

instability regional hostilities imposition of taxes or surcharges by regulatory authorities travel related
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accidents and unusual weather patterns including natural disasters such as hurricanes tsunamis or

earthquakes

adverse effects of downturn in the lodging industry and

risks generally associated with the ownership of hotel properties and real estate as we discuss in more

detail below

These factors could reduce the net operating profits of our TRS lessees which in turn could adversely

affect our financial condition results of operations the market price of our common shares and our ability to

make distributions to our shareholders

Competition for acquisitions may reduce the number of properties we can acquire

We expect to compete for investment opportunities with entities that may have substantially greater

financial resources than we have These entities generally may be able to accept more risk than we can

prudently manage This competition may generally limit the number of suitable investment opportunities

offered to us or the number of properties that we are able to acquire This competition may also increase the

bargaining power of property owners seeking to sell to us making it more difficult for us to acquire new

properties on attractive terms

The seasonality of the lodging industry may cause fluctuations in our quarterly revenues that cause us to

borrow money to fund distributions to our shareholders

The lodging industry is seasonal in nature This seasonality can be expected to cause quarterly

fluctuations in our revenues after we have invested in one or more hotel properties Our quarterly earnings

may be adversely affected by factors outside our control including weather conditions and poor economic

factors As result we may have to enter into short-term borrowings in certain quarters in order to offset

these fluctuations in revenues and to make distributions to our shareholders

The cyclical nature of the lodging industry may cause the returns from our investments to be less than

we expect

The lodging industry is highly cyclical in nature Fluctuations in lodging demand and therefore hotel

operating performance are caused largely by general economic and local market conditions which subse

quently affect levels of business and leisure travel In addition to general economic conditions new hotel room

supply is an important factor that can affect lodging industry fundamentals and overbuilding has the potential

to further exacerbate the negative impact of an economic recession Room rates and occupancy and thus

RevPAR tend to increase when demand growth exceeds supply growth Although we believe that cyclical

supply growth peaked in late 2008 to early 2009 and that lodging demand will begin to rebound in late 2010

to early 2011 no assurances can be given that this will prove to be the case After we have invested in one or

more hotel properties continued decline in lodging demand beyond late 2010 to early 2011 or continued

growth in lodging supply could result in continued deterioration in lodging industry fundamentals and returns

that are substantially below expectations or result in losses which could adversely affect our financial

condition results of operations the market price of our common shares and our ability to make distributions

to our shareholders

Due to our expected concentration in hotel investments downturn in the lodging industry would

adversely affect our operations and financial condition

Our entire business will be hotel-related Therefore downturn in the lodging industry in general and

the segments and markets in which we operate in particular would have material adverse effect on our

financial condition results of operations the market price of our common shares and our ability to make

distributions to our shareholders
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Capital expenditure requirements at our properties may be costly and require us to incur debt postpone

improvements reduce distributions or otherwise adversely affect the results of our operations and the

market price of our common shares

Some of the hotel properties we acquire may have need for renovations and capital improvements at the

time of acquisition and all the hotel properties we acquire will have an ongoing need for renovations and other

capital improvements including replacement from time to time of furniture fixtures and equipment The

franchisors of hotel properties that we acquire will also require periodic capital improvements as condition

to our maintaining the franchise licenses In addition if we incur indebtedness as we intend to do in the

future our lenders will likely require that we set aside annual amounts for capital improvements to our hotel

properties These capital improvements may give rise to the following risks

possible environmental problems

construction cost overruns and delays

the possibility that revenues will be reduced while rooms or restaurants are out of service due to capital

improvement projects

possible shortage of available cash to fund capital improvements and the related possibility that

financing for these capital improvements may not be available to us on attractive terms and

uncertainties as to market demand or loss of market demand after capital improvements have begun

The costs of renovations and capital improvements could adversely affect our financial condition results

of operations the market price of our common shares and our ability to make distributions to our

shareholders

Hotel and resort development and redevelopment is subject to timing budgeting and other risks that may

adversely affect our financial condition results of operations the market price of our common shares

and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders

Though not currently intended to be primary focus of our initial investment strategy we may engage in

hotel development and redevelopment if suitable opportunities arise Hotel development and redevelopment

involves number of risks including risks associated with

construction delays or cost overruns that may increase project costs

the receipt of zoning occupancy and other required governmental permits and authorizations

development costs incurred for projects that are not pursued to completion

acts of God such as earthquakes hurricanes floods or fires that could adversely impact project

the negative impact of construction on operating performance during and soon after the construction

period

the ability to raise capital and

governmental restrictions on the nature or size of project

We cannot assure you that any development or redevelopment project will be completed on time or within

budget Our inability to complete project on time or within budget could adversely affect our financial

condition results of operations the market price of our common shares and our ability to make distributions

to our shareholders

The increasing use of Internet travel intermediaries by consumers may reduce our revenues

We expect that some of our hotel rooms will be booked through Internet travel intermediaries such as

Travelocity.com Expedia.com and Priceline.com As these Internet bookings increase these intermediaries

may be able to obtain higher commissions reduced room rates or other significant contract concessions from
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the management companies that will operate the hotels we acquire Moreover some of these Internet travel

intermediaries are attempting to offer hotel rooms as commodity by increasing the importance of price and

general indicators of quality such as three-star downtown hotel at the expense of brand identification or

quality of product or service These intermediaries hope that consumers will eventually develop brand loyalties

to their reservations system rather than to lodging brands or properties If the amount of bookings made

through Internet travel intermediaries proves to be more significant than we expect room revenues may be

lower than expected and our financial condition results of operations the market price of our common shares

and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders may be adversely affected

We may be adversely affected by increased use of business related technology which may reduce the need

for business related travel

The increased use of teleconference and video-conference technology by businesses could result in

decreased business travel as companies increase the use of technologies that allow multiple parties from

different locations to participate at meetings without traveling to centralized meeting location To the extent

that such technologies play an increased role in day-to-day business and the necessity for business related

travel decreases hotel room demand may decrease and our financial condition results of operations the

market price of our common shares and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders may be adversely

affected

Future terrorist attacks or changes in terror alert levels could adversely affect travel and hotel demand

Previous terrorist attacks and subsequent terrorist alerts have adversely affected the U.S travel and

hospitality industries over the past several years often disproportionately to the effect on the overall economy

The impact that terrorist attacks in the U.S or elsewhere could have on domestic and international travel and

our business in particular cannot be determined but any such attacks or the threat of such attacks could have

material adverse effect on our business our ability to finance our business our ability to insure our properties

and our results of operations and financial condition

The outbreak of influenza or other widespread contagious disease could reduce travel and adversely affect

hotel demand

The widespread outbreak of infectious or contagious disease in the U.S such as the H1N1 virus could

reduce travel and adversely affect the hotel industry generally and our business in particular

Uninsured and underinsured losses could result in loss of capital

We intend to maintain comprehensive insurance on each of our hotel properties including liability fire

and extended coverage of the type and amount we believe are customarily obtained for or by hotel owners

There are no assurances that coverage will be available at reasonable rates Various types of catastrophic

losses like earthquakes and floods and losses from terrorist activities may not be insurable or may not be

economically insurable Initially we may not obtain terrorism insurance on the hotel properties we acquire

because it is too costly However lenders may require such insurance and our failure to obtain such insurance

could constitute default under loan agreements

In the event of substantial loss our insurance coverage may not be sufficient to cover the full current

market value or replacement cost of our lost investment Should an uninsured loss or loss in excess of

insured limits occur we could lose all or portion of the capital we have invested in hotel property as well

as the anticipated future revenue from the property In that event we might nevertheless remain obligated for

any mortgage debt or other financial obligations related to the property Inflation changes in building codes

and ordinances environmental considerations and other factors might also keep us from using insurance

proceeds to replace or renovate hotel after it has been damaged or destroyed Under those circumstances the

insurance proceeds we receive might be inadequate to restore our economic position on the damaged or

destroyed property
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Our hotels may be subject to unknown or contingent liabilities which could cause us to incur substantial

costs

The hotel properties that we acquire may be subject to unknown or contingent liabilities for which we

may have no recourse or only limited recourse against the sellers In general the representations and

warranties provided under the transaction agreements related to the sales of the hotel properties may not

survive the closing of the transactions While we will likely seek to require the sellers to indemnify us with

respect to breaches of representations and warranties that survive such indemnification may be limited and

subject to various materiality thresholds significant deductible or an aggregate cap on losses As result

there is no guarantee that we will recover any amounts with respect to losses due to breaches by the sellers of

their representations and warranties In addition the total amount of costs and expenses that may be incurred

with respect to liabilities associated with these hotels may exceed our expectations and we may experience

other unanticipated adverse effects all of which may adversely affect our financial condition results of

operations the market price of our common shares and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders

Noncompliance with environmental laws and regulations could subject us to fines and liabilities which

could adversely affect our operating results

Our hotel properties will be subject to various federal state and local environmental laws Under these

laws courts and government agencies have the authority to require us as owner of contaminated property to

clean up the property even if we did not know of or were not responsible for the contamination These laws

also apply to persons who owned property at the time it became contaminated and therefore it is possible

we could incur cleanup costs even after we sell some of the properties we acquire In addition to the costs of

cleanup environmental contamination can affect the value of property and therefore an owners ability to

borrow funds using the property as collateral or to sell the property Under the environmental laws courts and

government agencies also have the authority to require that person who sent waste to waste disposal

facility such as landfill or art incinerator pay for the clean-up of that facility if it becomes contaminated and

threatens human health or the environment person that arranges for the disposal or transports for disposal

or treatment of hazardous substance at property owned by another may be liable for the costs of removal

or remediation of hazardous substances released into the environment at that property

Furthermore various court decisions have established that third parties may recover damages for injury

caused by property contamination For instance person exposed to asbestos while staying in hotel may
seek to recover damages if he or she suffers injury from the asbestos Lastly some of these environmental

laws restrict the use of property or place conditions on various activities An example would be laws that

require business using chemicals such as swimming pool chemicals at hotel property to manage them

carefully and to notify local officials that the chemicals are being used

We could be responsible for any of the costs discussed above The costs to clean up contaminated

property to defend against claim or to comply with environmental laws could be material and could

adversely affect our financial condition results of operations the market price of our common shares and our

ability to make distributions to our shareholders

As result we may become subject to material environmental liabilities We can make no assurances that

future laws or regulations will not impose material environmental liabilities or that the current environmental

condition of our hotel properties will not be affected by the condition of the properties in the vicinity of our

hotel properties such as the presence of leaking underground storage tanks or by third parties unrelated to us

Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act could require us to incur substantial costs

Under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 or the ADA all public accommodations must meet

various federal requirements related to access and use by disabled persons Compliance with the ADAs

requirements could require removal of access barriers and non-compliance could result in the U.S government

imposing fines or in private litigants winning damages
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In June 2008 the Department of Justice proposed substantial number of changes to the Accessibility

Guidelines under the ADA In January 2009 President Obama suspended final publication and implementation

of these regulations pending comprehensive review by his administration If implemented as proposed the

new guidelines could cause some of our hotel properties to incur costly measures to become fully compliant

If we are required to make substantial modifications to our hotel properties whether to comply with the

ADA or other changes in governmental rules and regulations our financial condition results of operations the

market price of our common shares and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders could be

adversely affected

General Risks Related to the Real Estate Industry

Illiquidity of real estate investments could significantly impede our ability to sell hotels or otherwise

respond to adverse changes in the performance of our hotel properties

Because real estate investments are relatively illiquid our ability to promptly sell one or more hotel

properties for reasonable prices in response to changing economic financial and investment conditions will be

limited The real estate market is affected by many factors beyond our control including

adverse changes in international national regional and local economic and market conditions

changes in interest rates and in the availability cost and terms of debt financing

changes in governmental laws and regulations fiscal policies and zoning ordinances and the related

costs of compliance with laws and regulations fiscal policies and ordinances

the ongoing need for capital improvements particularly in older structures

changes in operating expenses and

civil unrest acts of God including earthquakes floods and other natural disasters which may result in

uninsured losses and acts of war or terrorism

We may decide to sell hotel properties in the future We cannot predict whether we will be able to sell

any hotel property for the price or on the terms set by us or whether
any price or other terms offered by

prospective purchaser would be acceptable to us We also cannot predict the length of time needed to find

willing purchaser and to close the sale of hotel property

We may be required to expend funds to correct defects or to make improvements before hotel property

can be sold We cannot assure you that we will have funds available to correct those defects or to make those

improvements In acquiring hotel property we may agree to lock-out provisions that materially restrict us

from selling that property for period of time or impose other restrictions such as limitation on the amount

of debt that can be placed or repaid on that property These factors and any others that would impede our

ability to respond to adverse changes in the performance of the hotel properties or need for liquidity could

adversely affect our financial condition results of operations the market price of our common shares and our

ability to make distributions to our shareholders

Increases in property taxes would increase our operating costs reduce our income and adversely affect

our ability to make distributions to our shareholders

Each of our hotel properties will be subject to real and personal property taxes These taxes may increase

as tax rates change and as the properties are assessed or reassessed by taxing authorities If property taxes

increase our financial condition results of operations
and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders

could be materially and adversely affected and the market price of our common shares could decline
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The costs of compliance with or liabilities under environmental laws could significantly reduce our

profitability

Operating expenses at our hotels could be higher than anticipated due to the cost of complying with

existing or future environmental laws and regulations In addition an owner of real property can face liability

for environmental contamination created by the presence or discharge of hazardous substances on the property

We may face liability regardless of

our lack of knowledge of the contamination

the timing of the contamination

the cause of the contamination or

the party responsible for the contamination of the property

Environmental laws also impose ongoing compliance requirements on owners and operators of real

property Environmental laws potentially affecting us address wide variety of matters including but not

limited to asbestos-containing building materials storage tanks storm water and wastewater discharges lead-

based paint mold/mildew and hazardous wastes Failure to comply with these laws could result in fines and

penalties and/or expose us to third-party liability Some of our properties may have conditions that are subject

to these requirements and we could be liable for such fines or penalties and/or liable to third parties as

described below in Our Business Governmental Environmental Regulations

Certain hotel properties we may own in the future may contain or may have contained asbestos-

containing building materials or ACBMs Environmental laws require that ACBMs be properly managed and

maintained and may impose fines and penalties on building owners and operators for failure to comply with

these requirements Also certain properties may be adjacent or near other properties that have contained or

currently contain storage tanks for the storage of petroleum products or other hazardous or toxic substances

These operations create potential for the release of petroleum products or other hazardous or toxic

substances Third parties may be permitted by law to seek recovery from owners or operators for property

damage and/or personal injury associated with
exposure to contaminants including but not limited to

petroleum products hazardous or toxic substances and asbestos fibers

Although we expect to obtain ESAs on hotel properties we acquire in the future ESAs are intended to

evaluate information regarding the environmental condition of the surveyed property and surrounding proper

ties based generally on visual observations interviews and certain publicly available databases These

assessments do not typically take into account all environmental issues including but not limited to testing of

soil or groundwater or the possible presence of asbestos lead-based paint radon wetlands or mold As

result these assessments may fail to reveal all environmental conditions liabilities or compliance concerns

Material environmental conditions liabilities or compliance concerns may arise after the ESAs and future

laws ordinances or regulations may impose material additional environmental liability We cannot assure you

that costs of future environmental compliance will not affect our ability to make distributions to our

shareholders or that such costs or other remedial measures will not be material to us

The presence of hazardous substances on property may limit our ability to sell the property on favorable

terms or at all and we may incur substantial remediation costs The discovery of material environmental

liabilities at our properties could subject us to unanticipated significant costs which could significantly reduce

our profitability and the cash available for distribution to our shareholders

Our properties may contain or develop harmful mold which could lead to liability for adverse health

effects and costs of remediating the problem

When excessive moisture accumulates in buildings or on building materials mold growth may occur

particularly if the moisture problem remains undiscovered or is not addressed over period of time Some

molds may produce airborne toxins or irritants Concern about indoor exposure to mold has been increasing as

exposure to mold may cause variety of adverse health effects and symptoms including allergic or other

reactions Some of the properties in our portfolio may contain microbial matter such as mold and mildew The
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presence
of significant mold at any of our properties could require us to undertake costly remediation

program to contain or remove the mold from the affected property The presence
of significant mold could

expose us to liability from hotel guests hotel employees and others if property damage or health concerns

arise

Any mortgage debt obligations we incur will expose us to increased risk of property losses to foreclosure

which could adversely affect our financial condition cash flow and ability to satisfy our other debt obli

gations and make distributions to our shareholders

Incurring mortgage debt increases our risk of property losses because any defaults on indebtedness

secured by properties may result in foreclosure actions initiated by lenders and ultimately our loss of the

property securing the loan for which we are in default For tax purposes foreclosure of any of our properties

would be treated as sale of the property
for purchase price equal to the outstanding balance of the debt

secured by the mortgage If the outstanding balance of the debt secured by the mortgage exceeds our tax basis

in the property we would recognize taxable income on foreclosure but would not receive any cash proceeds

As result we may be required to identify and utilize other sources of cash for distributions to our

shareholders of that income

In addition any default under our mortgage debt obligations may increase the risk of our default on other

indebtedness If this occurs our financial condition results of operations the market price of our common

shares and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders may be adversely affected

Risks Related to Our Organization and Structure

Provisions of our declaration of trust may limit the ability of third party to acquire control of us by

authorizing our board of trustees to authorize issuances of additional securities

Our declaration of trust authorizes our board of trustees to issue up to 500000000 common shares and

up to 100000000 preferred shares In addition our board of trustees may without shareholder approval

amend our declaration of trust to increase the aggregate number of our shares or the number of shares of any

class or series that we have the authority to issue and to classify or reclassify any
unissued common shares or

preferred shares and to set the preferences rights and other terms of the classified or reclassified shares As

result our board of trustees may authorize the issuance of additional shares or establish series of common or

preferred
shares that may have the effect of delaying or preventing change in control of our company

including transactions at premium over the market price of our shares even if shareholders believe that

change of control is in their interest

Provisions of Maryland law may limit the ability of third party to acquire control of us by requiring our

board of trustees or shareholders to approve proposals to acquire our company or effect change of

control

Certain provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Law or the MGCL applicable to Maryland real

estate investment trusts may have the effect of inhibiting third party from making proposal to acquire us or

of impeding change of control under circumstances that otherwise could provide our common shareholders

with the opportunity to realize premium over the then-prevailing market price of such shares including

business combination provisions that subject to limitations prohibit certain business combinations

between us and an interested shareholder defined generally as any person
who beneficially owns

10 percent or more of the voting power of our shares or an affiliate of any interested shareholder for

five years after the most recent date on which the shareholder becomes an interested shareholder and

thereafter imposes special appraisal rights and special shareholder voting requirements on these

combinations and

control share provisions that provide that our control shares defined as shares which when

aggregated with other shares controlled by the shareholder entitle the shareholder to exercise one of

three increasing ranges of voting power in electing trustees acquired in control share acquisition
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defined as the direct or indirect acquisition of ownership or control of control shares have no voting

rights except to the extent approved by our shareholders by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of

all the votes entitled to be cast on the matter excluding all interested shares

By resolution of our board of trustees we have opted out of the business combination provisions of the

MGCL and provided that
any business combination between us and any other person is exempt from the

business combination provisions of the MGCL provided that the business combination is first approved by our

board of trustees including majority of trustees who are not affiliates or associates of such persons

Pursuant to provision in our bylaws we have opted out of the control share provisions of the MGCL
However our board of trustees may by resolution elect to opt in to the business combination provisions of the

MGCL and we may by amendment to our bylaws opt in to the control share provisions of the MGCL in the

future

Additionally Title Subtitle of the MGCL permits our board of trustees without shareholder approval

and regardless of what is currently provided in our declaration of trust or bylaws to implement certain

takeover defenses such as classified board some of which we do not yet have These provisions may have

the effect of inhibiting third party from making an acquisition proposal for us or of delaying deferring or

preventing change in control of us under the circumstances that otherwise could provide our common

shareholders with the opportunity to realize premium over the then current market price

The ownership limitations in our deckiration of trust may restrict or prevent shareholders from engaging

in certain transfers of our common shares

In order for us to qualify as REIT for each taxable year after 2009 no more than 50 percent in value of

our outstanding shares may be owned directly or indirectly by five or fewer individuals as defined in the

federal income tax laws to include various kinds of entities during the last half of any taxable year To assist

us in qualifying as REIT our declaration of trust contains share ownership limit Generally any of our

shares owned by affiliated owners will be added together for purposes of the share ownership limit

If anyone transfers shares in way that would violate the share ownership limit or prevent us from

qualifying as REIT under the federal income tax laws those shares instead will be transferred to trust for

the benefit of charitable beneficiary and will be either redeemed by us or sold to person whose ownership

of the shares will not violate the share ownership limit or we will consider the transfer to be null and void

from the outset and the intended transferee of those shares will be deemed never to have owned the shares

Anyone who acquires shares in violation of the share ownership limit or the other restrictions on transfer in

our declaration of trust bears the risk of suffering financial loss when the shares are redeemed or sold if the

market price of our shares falls between the date of purchase and the date of redemption or sale

In addition these ownership limitations may prevent an acquisition of control of us by third party

without our board of trustees approval even if our shareholders believe the change of control is in their

interest

Our rights and the rights of our shareholders to take action against our trustees and officers are limited

which could limit shareholders recourse in the event of actions not in their best interests

Under Maryland law generally trustees actions will be upheld if he or she performs his or her duties

in good faith in manner he or she reasonably believes to be in our best interests and with the care that an

ordinarily prudent person in like position would use under similar circumstances In addition our declaration

of trust limits the liability of our trustees and officers to us and our shareholders for money damages except

for liability resulting from

actual receipt of an improper benefit or profit in money property or services or

active and deliberate dishonesty by the trustee or officer that was established by final judgment as

being material to the cause of action adjudicated
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Our declaration of trust authorizes us to indemnify our trustees and officers for actions taken by them in

those capacities to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law Our bylaws require us to indemnify each

trustee or officer to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law in the defense of any proceeding to

which he or she is made or threatened to be made party by reason of his or her service to us In addition

we may be obligated to fund the defense costs incurred by our trustees and officers As result we and our

shareholders may have more limited rights against our trustees and officers than might otherwise exist absent

the current provisions in our declaration of trust and bylaws or that might exist with other companies

Our declaration of trust contains provisions that make removal of our trustees difficult which could make

it difficult for our shareholders to effect changes to our management

Our declaration of trust provides that trustee may be removed only for cause as defined in our

declaration of trust and then only by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast

generally in the election of trustees Our declaration of trust also provides that vacancies on our board of

trustees may be filled only by majority of the remaining trustees in office even if less than quorum These

requirements prevent
shareholders from removing trustees except for cause and with substantial affirmative

vote and from replacing trustees with their own nominees and may prevent change in control of our

company that is in the best interests of our shareholders

The ability of our board of trustees to change our major policies without the consent of shareholders may

not be in shareholders interest

Our board of trustees determines our major policies including policies and guidelines relating to our

acquisitions leverage financing growth operations and distributions to shareholders Our board may amend

or revise these and other policies and guidelines from time to time without the vote or consent of our

shareholders Accordingly our shareholders will have limited control over changes in our policies and those

changes could adversely affect our financial condition results of operations the market price of our common

shares and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders

We have entered into agreements with each of our executive officers that requires us to make payments

in the event the officers employment is terminated by us without cause by the officer for good reason or

under certain circumstances following change of control of our company

The agreements that we have entered into with our executive officers provide benefits under certain

circumstances that could make it more difficult for us to terminate these officers and may prevent or deter

change of control of our company that would otherwise be in the interest of our shareholders

If we fail to implement and maintain an effective system of internal controls we may not be able to

accurately determine our financial results or prevent fraud As result our shareholders could lose

confidence in our financial results which could harm our business and the value of our common shares

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and effectively prevent

fraud We are newly formed company that will develop financial and operational reporting and control

systems We may in the future discover areas of our internal controls that need improvement Section 404 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires us to evaluate and report on our internal controls over financial

reporting and have our independent auditors annually issue their own opinion on our internal controls over

financial reporting While we intend to undertake substantial work to prepare
for compliance with Section 404

we cannot be certain that we will be successful in implementing or maintaining adequate internal controls over

our financial reporting and financial processes Furthermore as we grow our business our internal controls

will become more complex and we will require significantly more resources to ensure our internal controls

remain effective If we or our independent auditors discover material weakness the disclosure of that fact

even if quickly remedied could reduce the market value of our common shares Additionally the existence of

any
material weakness or significant deficiency would require management to devote significant time and

incur significant expense to remediate any such material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and
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management may not be able to remediate any such material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in timely

manner

Tax Risk Factors

if we fail to qualify or to remain qualified as REIT would result in higher taxes and reduced cash

available for distribution to our shareholders

We intend to elect to be taxed as REIT for federal income tax purposes commencing with our short

taxable
year ending December 31 2009 upon the filing of our federal income tax return for that year

However qualification as REIT involves the application of highly technical and complex provisions of the

Code for which only limited number of judicial and administrative interpretations exist Even an inadvertent

or technical mistake could jeopardize our REIT qualification Our qualification as REIT depends on our

satisfaction of certain asset income organizational distribution shareholder ownership and other requirements

on continuing basis

Moreover new tax legislation administrative guidance or court decisions in each instance potentially

applicable with retroactive effect could make it more difficult or impossible for us to qualify as REIT If we

were to fail to qualify as RE1T in any taxable year we would be subject to federal income tax including

any applicable alternative minimum tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and distributions to

shareholders would not be deductible by us in computing our taxable income Any such corporate tax liability

could be substantial and would reduce the amount of cash available for distribution to our shareholders which

in turn could have an adverse impact on the value of our shares If for any reason we failed to qualify as

REIT and we were not entitled to relief under certain Code provisions we would be unable to elect REIT

status for the four taxable years following the year during which we ceased to so qualify which would

negatively impact the value of our common shares

Failure to make required distributions would subject us to tax which would reduce the cash available for

distribution to our shareholders

To qualify as REIT we must distribute to our shareholders each calendar
year at least 90 percent of our

REIT taxable income including certain items of non-cash income determined before the deduction for

dividends paid and excluding any net capital gain To the extent that we satisfy the 90 percent distribution

requirement but distribute less than 100 percent of our REIT taxable income we will be subject to federal

corporate income tax on our undistributed income In addition we will incur percent nondeductible excise

tax on the amount if any by which our distributions in any calendar year are less than the sum of

85 percent of our REIT ordinary income for that year

95 percent of our REIT capital gain net income for that year and

any undistributed REIT taxable income from prior years

We intend to distribute our REIT taxable income to our shareholders in manner intended to satisfy the

90 percent distribution requirement and to avoid both corporate income tax and the percent nondeductible

excise tax However there is no requirement that TRSs distribute their after tax net income to their parent

REIT or their shareholders

Our REIT taxable income may substantially exceed our net income as determined based on GAAP
because for example realized capital losses will be deducted in determining our GAAP net income but may

not be deductible in computing our REIT taxable income Differences in timing between the recognition of

income and the related cash receipts or the effect of required debt amortization payments could require us to

borrow money or sell properties at prices or at times that we regard as unfavorable in order to pay out enough

of our REIT taxable income to satisfy the distribution requirement and to avoid corporate income tax and the

percent nondeductible excise tax in particular year
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Under recently issued Internal Revenue Service or iRS guidance we may pay taxable dividends of our

common shares and cash in which case shareholders may sell our common shares to pay tax on such

dividends placing downward pressure on the market price of our common shares

Under recently issued IRS guidance we may distribute taxable dividends that are payable in cash and

common shares at the election of each shareholder Under Revenue Procedure 2010-12 up to 90 percent of

any such taxable dividend paid with respect to our 2010 and 2011 taxable years could be payable in our

common shares Taxable shareholders receiving such dividends will be required to include the full amount of

the dividend as ordinary income to the extent of our current and accumulated earnings and profits as

determined for federal income tax purposes As result shareholders may be required to pay income tax with

respect to such dividends in excess of the cash dividends received If U.S shareholder sells the common

shares that it receives as dividend in order to pay this tax the sales proceeds may be less than the amount

included in income with respect to the dividend depending on the market price of our common shares at the

time of the sale Furthermore with respect to certain non-U.S shareholders we may be required to withhold

U.S federal income tax with respect to such dividends including in respect of all or portion of such

dividend that is payable in common shares If we utilize Revenue Procedure 2010-12 and significant number

of our shareholders determine to sell our common shares in order to pay taxes owed on dividends it may put

downward pressure on the trading price of our common shares

The formation of our TRS lessees increases our overall tax liability

Our TRS lessees will be subject to federal and state income tax on their taxable income which will

consist of the revenues from the hotel properties leased by our TRS lessees net of the operating expenses for

such hotel properties and rent payments to us Accordingly although our ownership of our TRS lessees will

allow us to participate in the operating income from our hotel properties in addition to receiving rent that

operating income will be fully subject to income tax The after-tax net income of our TRS lessees is available

for distribution to us

Our ownership of our TRS lessees is limited and our transactions with our TRS lessees will cause us to

be subject to 100 percent penalty tax on certain income or deductions if those transactions are not

conducted on arm s-length terms

REIT may own up to 100 percent of the stock of one or more TRSs TRS may hold assets and earn

income that would not be qualifying assets or income if held or earned directly by REIT including gross

operating income from hotel operations pursuant to hotel management contracts Both the subsidiary and the

REIT must jointly elect to treat the subsidiary as TRS corporation of which TRS directly or indirectly

owns more than 35 percent of the voting power or value of the stock will automatically be treated as TRS

Overall no more than 25 percent of the value of REITs assets may consist of stock or securities of one or

more TRSs In addition the TRS rules limit the deductibility of interest paid or accrued by TRS to its parent

REIT to assure that the TRS is subject to an appropriate level of corporate taxation The rules also impose

100 percent
excise tax on certain transactions between TRS and its parent REIT that are not conducted on

an arms-length basis

Our TRS lessees are subject to applicable federal foreign state and local income tax on their taxable

income and their after-tax net income will be available for distribution to us but is not required to be

distributed to us We anticipate that the aggregate value of the stock and securities of our TRS lessees will be

less than 25 percent of the value of our total assets including our TRS lessees stock and securities

Furthermore we will monitor the value of our respective investments in our TRS lessees for the purpose of

ensuring compliance with TRS ownership limitations In addition we will scrutinize all of our transactions

with our TRS lessees to ensure that they are entered into on arms-length terms to avoid incurring the

100 percent excise tax described above There can be no assurance however that we will be able to comply

with the 25 percent
limitation discussed above or to avoid application of the 100 percent excise tax discussed

above
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If the leases of our hotel properties to our TRS lessees are not respected as true leases for federal income

tax purposes we would fail to qualify as REIT and would be subject to higher taxes and have less cash

available for distribution to our shareholders

To qualify as REIT we must satisfy two gross income tests under which specified percentages of our

gross income must be derived from certain sources such as rents from real property Rents paid to our

operating partnership by our TRS lessees pursuant to the lease of our hotel properties will constitute

substantially all of our gross income In order for such rent to qualify as rents from real property for

purposes of the gross income tests the leases must be respected as true leases for federal income tax purposes

and not be treated as service contracts joint ventures or some other type of arrangement If our leases are not

respected as true leases for federal income tax purposes we would fail to qualify as REIT

If our operating partnership failed to qualify as partnership forfederal income tax purposes we would

cease to qualify as REIT and would be subject to higher taxes and have less cash available for

distribution to our shareholders and suffer other adverse consequences

We believe that our operating partnership qualifies to be treated as partnership for federal income tax

purposes As partnership our operating partnership is not subject to federal income tax on its income

Instead each of its partners including us is required to pay tax on its allocable share of the operating

partnerships income No assurance can be provided however that the IRS will not challenge its status as

partnership for federal income tax purposes or that court would not sustain such challenge If the IRS

were successful in treating our operating partnership as corporation for tax purposes we would fail to meet

the gross income tests and certain of the asset tests applicable to REITs and accordingly cease to qualify as

REIT Also the failure of our operating partnership to qualify as partnership would cause it to become

subject to federal and state corporate income tax which would reduce significantly the amount of cash

available for debt service and for distribution to its partners including us

If our hotel managers do not qualify as eligible independent contractors we would fail to qualify as

REIT and would be subject to higher taxes and have less cash available for distribution to our

shareholders

Rent paid by lessee that is related party tenant of ours will not be qualifying income for purposes

of the two gross income tests applicable to REITs We expect to lease substantially all of our hotels to our

TRS lessees So long as any TRS lessee qualifies as TRS it will not be treated as related party tenant

with respect to our properties that are managed by an independent hotel management company that qualifies

as an eligible independent contractor We believe that our TRSs will qualify to be treated as TRSs for

federal income tax purposes but there can be no assurance that the IRS will not challenge the status of TRS

for federal income tax purposes or that court would not sustain such challenge If the IRS were successful

in disqualifying any
of our TRSs lessees from treatment as TRS it is possible that we would fail to meet the

asset tests applicable to REITs and substantially all of our income would fail to qualify for the gross income

tests If we failed to meet either the asset or gross
income tests we would likely lose our REIT qualification

for federal income tax purposes

Additionally if our hotel managers do not qualify as eligible independent contractors we would fail to

qualify as REIT Each of the hotel management companies that enter into management contract with our

TRS lessees must qualify as an eligible independent contractor under the REIT rules in order for the rent

paid to us by our TRS lessees to be qualifying income for purposes of the REIT gross income tests Among

other requirements in order to qualify as an eligible independent contractor manager must not own directly

or through its shareholders more than 35 percent of our outstanding shares taking into account certain

ownership attribution rules The ownership attribution rules that apply for purposes of these 35 percent

thresholds are complex Although we intend to monitor ownership of our shares by our hotel managers and

their owners there can be no assurance that these ownership levels will not be exceeded
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Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for the reduced tax rates available for some dividends

The maximum tax rate applicable to income from qualified dividends payable to U.S shareholders that

are individuals trusts and estates has been reduced by legislation to 15 percent through the end of 2010

Dividends payable by REITs however generally are not eligible for the reduced rates Although this

legislation does not adversely affect the taxation of REITs or dividends payable by REITs the more favorable

rates applicable to regular corporate qualified dividends could cause investors who are individuals trusts and

estates to perceive investments in REITs to be relatively less attractive than investments in the stocks of non

REIT corporations that pay dividends which could adversely affect the value of the shares of REITs including

our common shares

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our ability to hedge our liabilities effectively and may

cause us to incur tax liabilities

The REIT provisions of the Code substantially limit our ability to hedge our liabilities Any income from

hedging transaction we enter into to manage risk of interest rate changes price changes or currency

fluctuations with respect to borrowings made or to be made to acquire or carry real estate assets does not

constitute gross income for purposes of the 75 percent or 95 percent gross income tests To the extent that

we enter into other types
of hedging transactions the income from those transactions is likely to be treated as

non-qualifying income for purposes of both of the gross income tests As result of these rules we may need

to limit our use of advantageous hedging techniques or implement those hedges through TRS This could

increase the cost of our hedging activities because our TRS would be subject to tax on gains or expose us to

greater risks associated with changes in interest rates than we would otherwise want to bear In addition losses

in our TRSs will generally not provide any tax benefit except for being carried forward against future taxable

income in the TRSs

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to forego otherwise attractive business opportunities or

liquidate otherwise attractive investments

To qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes we must continually satisfy tests concerning

among other things the sources of our income the nature and diversification of our assets the amounts we

distribute to our shareholders and the ownership of our shares In order to meet these tests we may be

required to forego investments we might otherwise make Thus compliance with the REIT requirements may

hinder our performance

In particular we must ensure that at the end of each calendar quarter at least 75 percent of the value of

our assets consists of cash cash items government securities and qualified real estate assets The remainder of

our investment in securities other than government securities and qualified real estate assets generally cannot

include more than 10 percent
of the outstanding voting securities of any one issuer or more than 10 percent of

the total value of the outstanding securities of any one issuer In addition in general no more than percent

of the value of our assets other than government securities and qualified real estate assets can consist of the

securities of any one issuer and no more than 25 percent of the value of our total assets can be represented by

the securities of one or more TRSs The Code provides that temporary investments of new capital in stock or

debt instruments for the period of one year beginning on the date on which we receive the new capital will be

considered qualified real estate assets for purposes of the above requirements If we fail to comply with these

requirements at the end of any calendar quarter we must correct the failure within 30 days after the end of the

calendar quarter or qualify for certain statutory relief provisions to avoid losing our REIT qualification and

suffering adverse tax consequences As result we may be required to liquidate otherwise attractive

investments These actions could have the effect of reducing our income and amounts available for distribution

to our shareholders
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The ability of our board of trustees to revoke our REIT qualcation without shareholder approval may

subject us to federal and stale income tax and reduce distributions to our shareholders

Our declaration of trust provides that our board of trustees may revoke or otherwise terminate our REIT

election without the approval of our shareholders if it determines that it is no longer in our best interest to

continue to qualify as REIT If we cease to be REIT we would become subject to federal income tax on

our taxable income and would no longer be required to distribute most of our taxable income to our

shareholders which may have adverse consequences on our total return to our shareholders and on the market

price of our common shares

We may be subject to adverse legislative or regulatory tax changes that could increase our tax liability

reduce our operating flexibility and reduce the market price of our common shares

At any time the federal income tax laws governing REITs or the administrative and judicial interpreta

tions of those laws may be amended We cannot predict when or if any new federal income tax law

regulation or administrative and judicial interpretation or any amendment to any existing federal income tax

law regulation or administrative or judicial interpretation will be adopted promulgated or become effective

and any such law regulation or interpretation may take effect retroactively We and our shareholders could be

adversely affected by any such change in or any new federal income tax law regulation or administrative and

judicial interpretation

The share ownership restrictions of the Code for REITs and the 9.8 percent share ownership limit in our

declaration of trust may inhibit market activity in our shares and restrict our business combination

opportunities

In order to qualify as REIT for each taxable year after 2009 five or fewer individuals as defined in the

Code may not own actually or constructively more than 50 percent in value of our issued and outstanding

shares at any time during the last half of taxable year Attribution rules in the Code determine if any

individual or entity actually or constructively owns our shares under this requirement Additionally at least

100 persons must beneficially own our shares during at least 335 days of taxable
year

for each taxable
year

after 2009 To help insure that we meet these tests our declaration of trust restricts the acquisition and

ownership of our shares

Our declaration of trust with certain exceptions authorizes our trustees to take such actions as are

necessary and desirable to preserve our qualification as REIT Unless exempted by our board of trustees our

declaration of trust prohibits any person
from beneficially or constructively owning more than 9.8 percent

measured by value or number of shares whichever is more restrictive of any class or series of our shares

Our board of trustees may not grant an exemption from these restrictions to any proposed transferee whose

ownership in excess of 9.8 percent of the value of our outstanding shares would result in the termination of

our qualification as REIT These restrictions on transferability and ownership will not apply however if our

board of trustees determines that it is no longer in our best interest to continue to qualify as REIT

These ownership limits could delay or prevent transaction or change in control that might involve

premium price for our common shares or otherwise be in the best interest of the shareholders

If states and localities in which we own material amounts of property or conduct material amounts of

business raise their income and property tax rates or amend their tax regimes in manner that increases

our state and local tax liabilities we would have less cash available for distribution to our shareholders

and the market price of our common shares could be adversely affected

We and our subsidiaries may be subject to income tax by states and localities in which we conduct

business Additionally we will be subject to property taxes in states and localities in which we own property

and our TRS lessees will be subject to state and local corporate income tax Many states and localities are

currently financially distressed as result of the recent recession As these states and localities seek additional

sources of revenue to reduce budget deficits and otherwise improve their financial condition they may among

other steps raise income and property tax rates and/or amend their tax regimes to eliminate for state income
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tax purposes the favorable tax treatment REITs enjoy for federal income tax purposes We cannot predict

when or if any states or localities would make any such changes or what form those changes would take If

states and localities in which we own material amounts of property or conduct material amounts of business

make changes to their tax rates or tax regimes that increase our state and local tax liabilities such increases

would reduce the amount of cash available for distribution to our shareholders and could adversely affect the

market price of our common shares

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

None

Item Legal Proceedings

We are not involved in any material litigation nor to our knowledge is any material litigation threatened

against us

Item Removed and Reserved

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Market Information

Our common shares began trading on the New York Stock Exchange or the NYSE on December 2009

under the symbol PEB The following table sets forth for the period indicated the high and low closing

prices per share and the cash dividends declared per share

Dividends

Price per Share Declared

High Low per Share

2009

Fourth quarter
$22.27 $20.45 $0.00

Shareholder Information

The closing price per share of our common shares as reported by the NYSE on December 31 2009 was

$22.01

On March 2010 there were five holders of record of our common shares However because many of

our common shares are held by brokers and other institutions on behalf of shareholders we believe that there

are considerably more beneficial holders of our common shares than record holders
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The following graph provides comparison of the cumulative total return on our common shares from

December 2009 the date on which our shares began trading to the NYSE closing price per share on

December 31 2009 with the cumulative total return on the Russell 2000 Index the Russell 2000 Index and

the FTSE National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts Equity REITs Index the FTSE NAREIT

Equity Index Total return values were calculated assuming $100 investment on December 2009 with

reinvestment of all dividends in our common shares ii the Russell 2000 Index and iii the FTSE

NAREIT Equity Index There can be no assurance that prior performance will be indicative of future returns
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The actual returns shown on the graph above are as follows

Initial Value of Initial

Investment at Investment at

December December 31
Name 2009 2009

Pebblebrook Hotel Trust $100.00 $107.63

Russell 2000 Index $100.00 $104.58

FTSE NAREIT Equity Index $100.00 $105.07

Securities Sold

Concurrent with the closing of our initial public offering see Use of Proceeds below on

December 14 2009 we issued and sold an aggregate of 135000 common shares to Jon Bortz our

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer and to Raymond Martz our Executive Vice President

Chief Financial Officer Treasurer and Secretary in private placement exempt from registration pursuant to

Regulation under the Securities Act The aggregate offering price for such shares was $2700000 and there

were no underwriting discounts or commissions Each of Mr Bortz and Mr Martz represented to us that he is

an accredited investor as that term is defined in Rule 50 1a of Regulation under the Securities Act
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Use of Proceeds

Our registration statement on Form S-li as amended Registration No 333-162412 the Registration

Statement with respect to our initial public offering the Offering of common shares par value $0.01 per

share registered up to $402.5 million of common shares and was declared effective on December 2009 We

sold total of 20125000 common shares in the Offering including 2625000 common shares issued and sold

pursuant to the underwriters exercise of the overallotment option for gross proceeds of $402.5 million The

Offering was completed on December 14 2009 As of the date of filing this report the Offering has

terminated and all of the securities registered pursuant to the Registration Statement have been sold The joint

book-running managers of the Offering were Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith Incorporated Raymond

James Associates Inc and Wells Fargo Securities LLC Co-managers of the offering were Calyon

Securities USA Inc and RBC Capital Markets Corporation The expenses
of the offering were as follows in

millions

Underwriting discounts and commissions $24.2

Expenses paid to or for our underwriters 0.0

Other expenses

Total underwriting discounts and expenses
$25.6

All of the foregoing underwriting discounts and expenses were direct or indirect payments to persons

other than our trustees officers or any of their associates ii persons owning ten percent 10 percent or

more of our common shares or iii our affiliates

The net proceeds to us of the Offering were approximately $376.9 million after the underwriting discount

and offering expenses In accordance with the underwriting agreement $8.1 million of the underwriting

discount and commissions have been accrued and will be paid when the Company purchases assets in

accordance with our investment strategy described above under Business in an amount equal to at least the

amount of the net proceeds Until that time the net proceeds including the unpaid underwriting discount and

commission have been invested in short-term interest-bearing investment-grade securities and money- market

accounts that are consistent with our intention to qualify as REIT

Item Selected Financial Data

The following table includes selected historical financial information Results for the initial period of our

operations are not indicative of the results we expect when our investment strategy has been fully

implemented The following information should be read in conjunction with Item Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Item Financial Statements

and Supplementary Data

For the Period October 2009 inception

through December 31 2009

In thousands except per share and share data and ratios

Operating Data

Interest Income 115

General and administrative expenses 262

Loss from continuing operations 147

Net loss and net loss attributable to common

shareholders 147

Weighted average
number of common shares

outstanding Basic and Diluted 4011198

Loss per common share Basic and

Diluted 0.04

Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents 319119

Investments 70000

Total assets 389403

Total shareholders equity 379426
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

On December 14 2009 we completed our initial public offering and concurrent private placement of our

common shares netting $379.6 million after underwriting discounts and offering costs We were formed on

October 2009 however we had no business activities prior to our initial public offering Proceeds from the

initial public offering and concurrent private placement have been invested in short term liquid money market

and certificates of deposit accounts with highly rated financial institutions We owned no properties at

December 31 2009 We intend to invest in hotel properties as suitable opportunities arise We are currently

evaluating opportunities to acquire hotel assets

The effects of the severe economic recession and collapse of the capital markets conspired to turn 2009

into one of the worst years on record for the lodging industry Businesses cut back dramatically on costs

including travel and the consumer took fewer leisure- oriented trips and became extremely discount focused

Room revenue per available room or RevPAR for the industry declined 16.7% from 2008 which was among
one of the worst year-over-year declines on record

Although the economy has begun to recover we expect unemployment to remain stubbornly high and

consumer spending to remain restrained While corporate profits have begun to grow again and businesses

have begun to travel more they are still cautious with many continuing to restrict travel As result of these

factors we believe the lodging industry will face another challenging year in 2010 In 2010 we expect

demand for rooms to increase while supply rises to lesser extent resulting in an increase in occupancy

However we also expect decline in ADR due to the weakened economic environment Combined we expect

2010 RevPAR to be flat to slightly down compared to 2009

As result of further declines in underlying operating fundamentals for hotels we expect owners and

lenders to continue to be challenged We believe our company is well positioned to take advantage of

opportunities created by this difficult operating environment by acquiring hotels in the early years of an

economic and lodging industry recovery at attractive historical valuations

Results of Operations

Results for the initial period of our operations are not indicative of the results we expect when our

investment strategy has been fully implemented Our net loss attributable to common shareholders for the

period from October 2009 inception through December 31 2009 was $147000 We earned $115000 in

interest income on cash and short term investment balances and incurred $262000 in general and administra

tive expenses The general and administrative expenses primarily consist of professional fees employee

compensation costs and insurance

Critical Accounting Policies

We consider these policies critical because they require estimates about matters that are inherently

uncertain involve various assumptions and require significant management judgment and because they are

important for understanding and evaluating our reported financial results Certain of these policies will become

critical only once we have acquired hotel assets These judgments will affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities and our disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and

the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods Applying different estimates or

assumptions may result in materially different amounts reported in our financial statements

Hotel Properties

Investment in Hotel Properties

Upon acquisition we allocate the purchase price based on the fair value of the acquired land building

furniture fixtures and equipment identifiable intangible assets other assets and assumed liabilities Identifiable

intangible assets typically arise from contractual arrangements We determine the acquisition-date fair values
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of all assets and assumed liabilities using methods similar to those used by independent appraisers e.g

discounted cash flow analysis and that utilize appropriate discount and/or capitalization rates and available

market information Estimates of future cash flows are based on number of factors including historical

operating results known and anticipated trends and market and economic conditions Acquisition costs are

expensed as incurred

Hotel renovations and/or replacements of assets that improve or extend the life of the asset are capitalized

and depreciated over their estimated useful lives Furniture fixtures and equipment under capital leases are

carried at the present value of the minimum lease payments

Repair and maintenance costs are charged to expense as incurred

Depreciation and Amortization

Hotel properties are carried at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over an estimated

useful life of 25 to 40 years for buildings and one to 10 years for furniture fixtures and equipment Intangible

assets arising from contractual arrangements are typically amortized over the life of the contract

We are required to make subjective assessments as to the useful lives and classification of our properties

for purposes of determining the amount of depreciation expense to reflect each year with respect to the assets

These assessments may impact our results of operations

Impairment

We monitor events and changes in circumstances for indicators that the carrying value of the hotel and

related assets may be impaired We will prepare an estimate of the undiscounted future cash flows without

interest charges of the specific hotel and determine if the investment in such hotel is recoverable based on the

undiscounted future cash flows If impairment is indicated an adjustment is made to the carrying value of the

hotel to reflect the hotel at fair value These assessments may impact the results of our operations

hotel is considered held for sale when contract for sale is entered into substantial non-refundable

deposit has been committed by the purchaser and sale is expected to close within one year

Revenue Recognition

Revenue consists of amounts derived from hotel operations including the sales of rooms food and

beverage and other ancillary amenities Revenue is recognized when rooms are occupied and services have

been rendered These revenue sources are affected by conditions impacting the travel and hospitality industry

as well as competition from other hotels and businesses in similar markets

Share-Based Compensation

We have adopted an equity incentive plan that provides for the grant of common share options share

awards share appreciation rights performance units and other equity-based awards Equity-based compensa

tion is recognized as an expense
in the financial statements and measured at the fair value of the award on the

date of grant The determination of fair value of these awards is subjective and involves significant estimates

The long-term incentive partnership LTIP units were valued using Monte Carlo simulation method

model which requires number of assumptions including expected volatility of our stock expected dividend

yield expected term and assumptions of whether these awards will achieve parity with other operating

partnership units We believe that the assumptions and estimates utilized are appropriate based on the

information available to management

Income Taxes

We elected to be taxed as pass-through entity under subchapter of the Internal Revenue Code from

the period of October 2009 to December 11 2009 The Companys loss for that period was passed through

to its sole shareholder The Company revoked its subchapter election on December 11 2009 and we intend
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to elect to be taxed as REIT for federal income tax purposes and intend to operate as such commencing with

our short taxable year beginning on December 12 2009 and ending on December 31 2009

To qualify as REIT we must meet certain organizational and operational requirements including

requirement to distribute at least 90 percent of our annual REIT taxable income to our shareholders and

requirement that the Company cannot operate the hotels it acquires As REIT we generally will not be

subject to federal income tax to the extent we distribute our taxable income to our shareholders The Company

has not recognized any deferred taxes on any temporary differences as we intend to be treated as REIT

commencing on December 12 2009

We will form taxable REIT subsidiaries TRSs to lease the hotels from our Operating Partnership The

TRSs will engage independent hotel managers to operate the properties The TRSs will generally be subject to

federal and state income taxes and will account for such taxes using the asset and liability method Deferred

tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to the differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax

bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which

those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and

liabilities from change in tax rates is recognized in earnings in the period when the new rate is enacted

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In May 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued an accounting standard that

establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date

but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued It also requires public entities to

evaluate subsequent events through the date that the financial statements are issued The adoption of this

standard did not have material impact on our financial statements

In June 2009 the FASB issued an accounting standard that requires enterprises to perform more

qualitative approach to determining whether or not variable interest entity will need to be consolidated This

evaluation will be based on an enterprises ability to direct and influence the activities of variable interest

entity that most significantly impact its economic performance It requires ongoing reassessments of whether

an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of variable interest entity This accounting standard is effective for

fiscal years beginning after November 15 2009 Early adoption is not permitted While we are evaluating the

effect of this accounting standard we currently believe that the adoption of this standard will not have

material impact on our financial statements

In June 2009 the FASB issued an accounting standard that made the FASB Accounting Standards

Codification the Codification the source of authoritative GAAP recognized by the FASB to be applied by

nongovernmental entities Rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws

are also sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants The Codification will supersede all then-existing

non-SEC accounting and reporting standards All other nongrandfathered non-SEC accounting literature not

included in the Codification will become nonauthoritative This accounting standard is effective for financial

statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15 2009 Following the issuance of

this accounting standard the FASB will not issue new standards in the form of Statements FASB Staff

Positions or Emerging Issues Task Force Abstracts Instead it will issue Accounting Standards Updates The

Board will not consider Accounting Standards Updates as authoritative in their own right Accounting

Standards Updates will serve only to update the Codification provide background information about the

guidance and provide the bases for conclusions on the changes in the Codification The adoption of this

standard did not have material impact on our financial statements

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We intend to limit the sum of the outstanding principal amount of our consolidated net indebtedness and

the liquidation preference of any outstanding preferred shares to not more than 4.5x our EBITDA for the

12-month period preceding the incurrence of such debt or the issuance of such preferred shares Net

indebtedness consists of total less cash and cash equivalents and investments Compliance with this
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limitation will be judged at the time debt is incurred and subsequent decrease in EBITDA will not require

us to repay
debt In addition if we assume or incur debt in connection with our initial hotel acquisitions our

debt level could exceed the general limitation described above On December 14 2009 we raised $379.6 mil

lion net of underwriting discounts and offering costs in an initial public offering and concurrent private

placement of our common shares The net proceeds from this initial public offering and concurrent private

placement are available to fund investments in hotel properties that meet our investment criteria

We expect to meet our short-term liquidity requirements generally through net cash provided by

operations existing cash balances and if necessary short-term borrowings under an anticipated revolving

credit facility Our existing cash balances will fund our operating costs in the near term As we acquire hotel

assets we believe that our net cash provided by operations will be adequate to fund operating requirements

pay interest on any borrowings and fund dividends in accordance with the REIT requirements of the federal

income tax laws We expect to meet our long-term liquidity requirements such as hotel property acquisitions

through the cash available from the initial public offering and the concurrent private placement and borrowings

and expect to fund other investments in hotel properties and scheduled debt maturities through long-term

secured and unsecured borrowings and the issuance of additional equity or debt securities

We also anticipate arranging and utilizing revolving credit facility to fund future acquisitions following

investment of the net proceeds of this offering and the concurrent private placement as well as for property

redevelopments return on investment initiatives and working capital requirements We intend to repay

indebtedness incurred under our credit facility from time to time out of cash flow and from the net proceeds

of issuances of additional equity and debt securities as market conditions permit No assurances can be given

that we will obtain such credit facility or if we do what the amount and terms will be

We intend to invest in hotel properties only as suitable opportunities arise In the near-term we intend to

fund future investments in properties with the net proceeds of this offering and the concurrent private

placement Longer term we intend to finance our investments with the net proceeds from additional issuances

of common shares issuances of units of limited partnership interest in our operating partnership or other

securities or borrowings The success of our acquisition strategy may depend in part on our ability to access

additional capital through issuances of equity securities which is dependent on favorable market conditions

Sources and Uses of Cash

At December 31 2009 we had $319.1 million of cash and cash equivalents and $70.0 million in short

term investments Short term investments consist of certificates of deposits On December 14 2009 we raised

$379.6 million net of underwriting discounts and offering costs in an initial public offering and concurrent

private placement of our common shares We were formed on October 2009 however we had no business

activities prior to our initial public offering As of December 31 2009 we have not invested any of the

proceeds from the offering in hotel properties We have earned interest income of $115000 and incurred

general and administrative costs of $262000

Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31 2009 we were under no contractual obligations and had no off-balance sheet

arrangements

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Interest Rate Sensitivity

We earn interest income from cash and cash equivalents and investments Considering our current cash

and cash equivalents and investments if interest rates increase or decrease by 0.1 percent our interest income

will increase or decrease by approximately $0.4 million respectively
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Item Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See Index to the Financial Statements on page F-i

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9AT Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive

Officer and Chief Financial Officer we have evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our

disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 3a- 15b as of the end of the period

covered by this report Based on that evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have

concluded that these disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that

information required to be disclosed by us in reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded

processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and forms and that

such information is accumulated and communicated to our management to allow timely decisions regarding

required disclosure

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the last

fiscal quarter that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control

over financial reporting

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

This annual report does not include report of managements assessment regarding internal control over

financial reporting or an attestation report of the Companys registered public accounting firm due to

transition period established by rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission for newly public companies

Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10 Trustees Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Companys

Proxy Statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Companys

Proxy Statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Companys

Proxy Statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Trustee Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Companys

Proxy Statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

34



Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the Companys

Proxy Statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financkil Statement Schedules

Financial Statements

Included herein at pages F-i through F-14

Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules for which provision is made in Regulation S-X are either not required to be included

herein under the related instructions or are inapplicable or the related information is included in the

footnotes to the applicable financial statement and therefore have been omitted from this Item 15

Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibit

1.1 Form of Underwriting Agreement by and among Pebblebrook Hotel Trust Pebblebrook Hotel L.P

and the Underwriters named herein Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 of Amendment No to

the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-il/A filed by the Registrant on December 2009

Registration No 333-162412

3.1 Form of Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of Pebblebrook Hotel Trust Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Amendment No to the Registrants Registration Statement on

Form S-i i/A filed by the Registrant on November 10 2009 Registration No 333-1624 12

3.2 Form of Bylaws of Pebblebrook Hotel Trust Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of Amendment

No ito the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-il/A filed by the Registrant on

November 10 2009 Registration No 333-162412

3.3 Form of Agreement of Limited Partnership of Pebblebrook Hotel L.P Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 3.3 of Amendment No to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-il/A filed by

the Registrant on November 25 2009 Registration No 333-162412

10.1 Form of Pebblebrook Hotel Trust 2009 Equity Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 of Amendment No to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-il/A filed

by the Registrant on November 10 2009 Registration No 333-162412

10.2 Change in Control Severance Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Jon BortzT

10.3 Change in Control Severance Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Raymond Martzt

10.4 Change in Control Severance Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Thomas FisherT

10.5 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and its officers and trustees

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Amendment No to the Registrants Registration

Statement on Form S-il/A filed by the Registrant on November 10 2009 Registration

No 333-162412

10.6 Form of Share Award Agreement for officers and employees Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.5 of Amendment No to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-li/A filed

by the Registrant on November 25 2009 Registration No 333i624l2

10.7 Share Award Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Jon Bortz Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Registrant on

March 16 2010 File No 00l34571

10.8 Share Award Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Raymond Martz Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Registrant on

March 16 2010 File No 00i3457i
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Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibit

10.9 Share Award Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Thomas Fisher Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Registrant on

March 16 2010 File No 00134571
10.10 Form of Share Award Agreement for trustees Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of

Amendment No to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i 1/A filed by the Registrant

on November 25 2009 Registration No 333-162412

10.11 LTIP Unit Vesting Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Jon BortzT

10.12 LTIP Unit Vesting Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Raymond MartzT

10.13 LTIP Unit Vesting Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Thomas FisherT

21.1 List of Subsidiaries of Pebblebrook Hotel Trust Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 of

Amendment No to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i 1/A filed by the Registrant

on December 2009 Registration No 333-162412

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-i4a/i5d-14a as adopted pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20O2

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a/15d-14a as adopted pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002T

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002T

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Management agreement or compensatory plan or arrangement

Filed electronically herewith

We will furnish to any of our shareholders any exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K upon written

request and the payment of fee of 15 cents per page of the requested exhibits to cover our costs of

furnishing the exhibits If you wish to receive copy of one or more exhibits please submit written request

to Pebblebrook Hotel Trust Bethesda Metro Center Bethesda Maryland 20814 Attention Raymond

Martz Chief Financial Officer and Secretary Written requests must include representation that the person

making the request was the beneficial owner of securities entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of

Shareholders
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized

Date March 24 2010

PEBBLEBROOK HOTEL TRUST

By Is Jon Bortz

Jon Bortz

Chairman President and

and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this Report has been signed below

by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signatures Title

Is Jon Bortz

Jon Bortz

Is Raymond Martz

Raymond Martz

Is Cydney Donnell

Cydney Donnell

Is Ron Jackson

Ron Jackson

Is Martin Nesbitt

Martin Nesbitt

Is Michael Schall

Michael Schall

Is Earl Webb

Earl Webb

Chairman of the Board President and

Chief Executive Officer Principal

Executive Officer

Executive Vice President Chief Financial

Officer Treasurer and Secretary Principal

Financial Officer and Principal Accounting

Officer

Trustee

Trustee

Trustee

Trustee

Trustee

March 11 2010

March 11 2010

March 11 2010

March 11 2010

March 11 2010

March 11 2010

March 11 2010

Is Laura Wright

Laura Wright

Trustee March 11 2010

Date
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Trustees and Shareholders

Pebblebrook Hotel Trust

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and subsidiary

as of December 31 2009 and the related consolidated statements of operations shareholders equity and cash

flows for the period from October 2009 inception through December 31 2009 These consolidated

financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as

well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audit provides reasonable

basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material

respects the financial position of Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and subsidiary as of December 31 2009 and the

results of their operations and their cash flows for the period from October 2009 inception through

December 31 2009 in conforniity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

Is KPMG LLP

McLean Virginia

March 24 2010
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Pebblebrook Hotel Trust

Consolidated Balance Sheet

December 31 2009

In thousands

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 319119

Investments 70000

Prepaid expenses and other assets 284

Total assets 389403

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1927

Accrued underwriter fees 8050

Total Liabilities 9977

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders equity

Common shares of beneficial interest $.01 par value 500000000 shares authorized 20260000
issued and outstanding 203

Additional paid-in capital net of underwriting discounts and offering costs 379370

Retained deficit 147

Total shareholders equity 379426

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 389403

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement
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Pebblebrook Hotel Trust

Consolidated Statement of Operations

From October 2009 inception to December 31 2009

In thousands except share data

Revenues

Expenses

General and administrative
262

Total operating expenses
262

Operating loss 262

Interest income 115

Net loss and net loss attributable to common shareholders 147

Loss per common share basic and diluted 0.04

Weighted average number of common shares basic and diluted 4011198

The accorripanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement
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Pebblebrook Hotel Trust

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders Equity

From October 2009 inception to December 31 2009

Dollars in thousands except share data

Additional Total
Common Shares

Paid-In Accumulated Shareholders
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity

Balance at October 2009 inception 1000

Repurchase of outstanding shares 1000
Issuance of Common shares net of offering

costs in connection with the initial public

offering and concurrent private

placement 20260000 203 379365 379568

Amortization of restricted shares

Net loss 147 147

Balance at December 31 2009 20260000 $203 $379370 $147 $379426

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement
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Pebblebrook Hotel Trust

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

From October 2009 inception to December 31 2009

In thousands

Operating activities

Net loss 147

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities

Share-based compensation
79

Changes in assets and liabilities

Prepaid expenses and other assets 284

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
371

Net cash provided by operating activities 19

Investing activities

Investment in certificates of deposits
70000

Net cash used in investing activities 70000

Financing activities

Gross proceeds from issuance of common shares 405200

Underwriting discounts paid
16100

Net cash provided by financing activities 389100

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 319119

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents end of year
$319119

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities

Accrual of offering costs including $8.1 million of underwriter commissions 9532

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement
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PEBBLEBROOK HOTEL TRUST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31 2009

NOTE ORGANIZATION

Pebblebrook Hotel Trust the Company was formed as Maryland real estate investment trust on

October 2009 to opportunistically acquire and invest in hotel properties located primarily in major United

States cities with an emphasis on major coastal markets On December 14 2009 the Company raised

$379.6 million net of underwriting discounts and offering costs in an initial public offering and concurrent

private placement of common shares of beneficial interest common shares The Company had no business

activity prior to the initial public offering As of December 31 2009 the Company has not entered into any

contracts to acquire hotel properties or other assets

Substantially all of the Companys assets are held by and all of the operations are conducted through

Pebblebrook Hotel L.P the Operating Partnership The Company is the sole general partner of the

Operating Partnership At December 31 2009 the Company owned 100 percent of the Operating Partnership

The Company intends to elect and qualify to be taxed as real estate investment trust REIT for federal

income tax purposes commencing with its short taxable year ended December 31 2009 For the Company to

qualify as REIT under the Code it cannot operate the hotels it acquires Therefore its Operating Partnership

and its subsidiaries will lease its hotel properties to its to be formed taxable REIT subsidiary TRS lessees

who will in turn engage eligible independent contractors to manage the hotels Each of these lessees will be

treated as TRS for federal income tax purposes and will be consolidated into the Companys financial

statements for accounting purposes However since both the Operating Partnership and TRS lessees are

controlled by the Company the principal source of funds on consolidated basis will be from the operations

of the Companys hotels

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Below is discussion of significant accounting policies as the Company prepares to acquire hotel assets

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include all of the accounts of the Company and the Operating

Partnership All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

The Companys comprehensive loss equals its net loss available to common shareholders and the

Company had no items classified in accumulated other comprehensive loss for the period ended December 31

2009

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statement in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles which is referred to as GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and revenues

and expenses These estimates are prepared using managements best judgment after considering past current

and expected events and economic conditions Actual results could differ from these estimates

Investment in Hotel Properties

Upon acquisition the Company allocates the purchase price based on the fair value of the acquired land

building furniture fixtures and equipment identifiable intangible assets other assets and assumed liabilities

Identifiable intangible assets typically arise from contractual arrangements Acquisition-date fair values of

assets and assumed liabilities is determined based on replacement costs appraised values and estimated fair

values using methods similar to those used by independent appraisers e.g discounted cash flow analysis and

that use appropriate discount and/or capitalization rates and available market information Estimates of future
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PEBBLEBROOK HOTEL TRUST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

DECEMBER 31 2009

cash flows are based on number of factors including historical operating results known and anticipated

trends and market and economic conditions Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred

Hotel renovations and replacements of assets that improve or extend the life of the asset are recorded at

cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives Furniture fixtures and equipment under capital leases

are carried at the present value of the minimum lease payments Repair and maintenance costs are charged to

expense as incurred

Hotel properties are carried at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over an estimated

useful life of 25 to 40 years for buildings and one to 10 years for furniture fixtures and equipment Intangible

assets arising from contractualL arrangements are typically amortized over the life of the contract The

Company is required to make subjective assessments as to the useful lives and classification of properties for

purposes of determining the amount of depreciation expense to reflect each year with respect to the assets

These assessments may impact the Companys results of operations

The Company monitors events and changes in circumstances for indicators that the carrying value of each

hotel and related assets may be impaired If facts and circumstances support the possibility of impairment the

Company will prepare an estimate of the undiscounted future cash flows without interest charges of the

specific hotel and determine if the investment in such hotel is recoverable based on the undiscounted future

cash flows If impairment is indicated an adjustment is made to the carrying value of the hotel to reflect the

hotel at fair value These assessments may impact the results of operations

hotel is considered held for sale when contract for sale is entered into substantial non-refundable

deposit has been committed by the purchaser and sale is expected to close

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand demand deposits with financial institutions and short

term liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less Cash balances in individual banks

may exceed federally insurable limits

Investments

The Companys investments consist of certificates of deposits with maturity of six months from the date

of investment The carrying value of the certificates of deposits approximate fair value due to their short

maturity Interest income is earned on such investments

Revenue Recognition

Revenue consists of amounts derived from hotel operations including the sales of rooms food and

beverage and other ancillary amenities Revenue is recognized when rooms are occupied and services have

been rendered The Company collects sales use occupancy and similar taxes at its hotels which is presented

on net basis on the statement of operations

Income Taxes

The Company elected to be taxed as pass-through entity under subchapter of the Internal Revenue

Code from the period of October 2009 to December 11 2009 The Companys loss for that period was

passed through to its sole shareholder The Company revoked its subchapter election on December 11 2009

and intends to elect to be taxed as real estate investment trust REIT for federal income tax purposes

commencing with short taxable year beginning on December 12 2009 and ending on December 31 2009
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PEBBLEBROOK HOTEL TRUST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

DECEMBER 31 2009

To qualify as REIT the Company must meet certain organizational and operational requirements

including requirement to distribute at least 90% of the Companys annual REIT taxable income to the

Companys shareholders and requirement that the Company cannot operate the hotels it acquires As REIT

the Company generally will not be subject to federal income tax to the extent it distributes its taxable income

to its shareholders The Company has not recognized any deferred taxes on any temporary differences as the

Company intends to be treated as REIT commencing on December 12 2009

The Company will form taxable REIT subsidiaries TRSs to lease the hotels from the Operating

Partnership The TRSs will engage independent hotel managers to operate the properties The TRSs will

generally be subject to federal and state income taxes and will account for such taxes using the asset and

liability method Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences

attributable to the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities

and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect

for the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on

deferred tax assets and liabilities from change in tax rates is recognized in earnings in the period when the

new rate is enacted

As of December 31 2009 the Company did not have any unrecognized tax positions and had not

incurred any interest or penalties on such positions during the period presented Interest and penalties related

to unrecognized tax benefits if any in the future will be recognized as operating expenses

Share-based Compensation

The Company has adopted an equity incentive plan that provides for the grant of common share options

share awards share appreciation rights performance units and other equity-based awards Equity-based

compensation is recognized as an expense in the financial statements and measured at the fair value of the

award on the date of grant The determination of fair value of these awards is subjective and involves

significant estimates The long-term incentive partnership LTIP units were valued using Monte Carlo

simulation method model which requires number of assumptions including expected volatility of the

Companys stock expected dividend yield expected term and assumptions of whether these awards will

achieve parity with other operating partnership units

Organizational and Offering Costs

The Company expenses organization costs as incurred Underwriting discounts and offering costs of

$25.6 million which include selling commissions legal fees and other expenses
have been deferred and

charged to shareholders equity The Company accrued underwriters commissions of $8.1 million that in

accordance with the underwriters agreement will be payable at the time the Company invests the net

proceeds from the offering

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash balances in financial institutions in excess of insured limits The Companys

cash balances are spread over several investment grade financial institutions

Non-controlling Interests

Limited partner
interests in the Operating Partnership if any will be considered non-controlling interests

Generally non-controlling interests are presented on the balance sheet as either shareholders equity or outside

of shareholders equity depending upon specific provisions of the governing documents related to such an

interest The Operating Partnership may issue limited partnership interests as full or partial consideration to
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PEBBLEBROOK HOTEL TRUST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

DECEMBER 31 2009

hotel sellers or to employees or other individuals for services performed These limited partners will have

redemption rights which will permit them to redeem their interests in exchange for cash or common shares on

one-for-one basis at the option of the Company Because the Operating Partnership agreement will permit

the settlement of the redemption feature for unregistered common shares and because the Company will

control the actions and events necessary to issue the maximum number of shares that are required to be

delivered at the redemption date the non-controlling limited partner interests in the Operating Partnership will

be presented as separate component of shareholders equity on the balance sheet The approximate

redemption value of the non-controlling interests is equivalent to the units outstanding valued at the closing

common share price at the end of the period which we assume would be equal to the value provided to the

limited partners upon liquidation of the Operating Partnership The Companys revenues expenses and net

income or loss will include amounts attributable to both the controlling and non-controlling interests Amounts

attributable to non-controlling interests will be deducted from net income or loss to arrive at net income or

loss attributable to common shareholders on the statement of operations

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is determined by using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies

The carrying amounts of the Companys financial instruments which consist of cash and cash equivalents

investments and accounts payable approximate fair value because of the relatively short maturities of these

instruments

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In May 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued an accounting standard that

establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date

but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued It also requires public entities to

evaluate subsequent events through the date that the financial statements are issued The adoption of this

accounting standard did not have material impact on the Companys financial statements

In June 2009 the FASB issued an accounting standard that requires enterprises to perform more

qualitative approach to determining whether or not variable interest entity will need to be consolidated This

evaluation will be based on an enterprises ability to direct and influence the activities of variable interest

entity that most significantly impact its economic performance It requires ongoing reassessments of whether

an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of variable interest entity This accounting standard is effective for

fiscal years beginning after November 15 2009 Early adoption is not permitted The Company is currently

evaluating the impact of this accounting standard

In June 2009 the FASB issued an accounting standard that made the FASB Accounting Standards

Codification the Codification the source of authoritative GAAP recognized by the FASB to be applied by

nongovernmental entities Rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws

are also sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants The Codification will supersede all then-existing

non-SEC accounting and reporting standards All other nongrandfathered non-SEC accounting literature not

included in the Codification will become nonauthoritative This accounting standard is effective for financial

statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15 2009 Following the issuance of

this accounting standard the FASB will not issue new standards in the form of Statements FASB Staff

Positions or Emerging Issues Task Force Abstracts Instead it will issue Accounting Standards Updates The

Board will not consider Accounting Standards Updates as authoritative in their own right Accounting

Standards Updates will serve only to update the Codification provide background information about the

guidance and provide the bases for conclusions on the changes in the Codification The adoption of this

standard did not have material impact on the Companys financial statements
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PEBBLEBROOK HOTEL TRUST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

DECEMBER 31 2009

NOTE SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The Companys declaration of trust provides that the Company may issue up to 500000000 common

shares $0.01 par
value per share and 100000000 preferred shares of beneficial interest preferred shares

$0.01 par
value per share On December 14 2009 the Company issued 20260000 common shares and raised

$379.6 million net of underwriting discounts and offering costs in an initial public offering and concurrent

private placement of the Companys shares Underwriting discounts and offering costs of $25.6 million have

been recorded as reduction in additional paid-in capital This includes unpaid accrued underwriters

commissions of $8.1 million that in accordance with the underwriters agreement will be payable at the time

the Company invests the net proceeds from the offering

NOTE SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Company maintains the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan to attract and retain independent trustees

executive officers and other key employees and service providers The plan provides for the grant of options to

purchase common shares share awards share appreciation rights performance units and other equity based

awards As of December 31 2009 there were 425875 common shares available for issuance under the 2009

Equity Incentive Plan Share awards under this plan generally vest over three to five years We pay dividends

on unvested shares Certain share awards may provide for accelerated vesting if there is change in control

Upon completion of the Companys initial public offering and concurrent private placement the Company

issued 15000 restricted common shares to the Companys initial independent Trustees These shares vest

ratably over three years These common shares were issued under the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan

The following table provides summary of restricted share activity for 2009

Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair

Shares Value

Unvested at October 2009 inception

Granted 15000 20.00

Vested

Forfeited

Unvested at December 31 2009 15000 20.00

The weighted-average grant date fair value of restricted shares awarded in 2009 was $20.00 per share

The fair value of each restricted share award is determined based on the trading price of the Companys

common shares on the grant date As of December 31 2009 there was $0.3 million of total unrecognized

compensation cost related to unvested restricted shares The fair value of this award is expected to be

recognized over the weighted average of years For the period ended December 31 2009 the Company

recognized approximately $5 thousand in expense related to these restricted shares in the consolidated

statement of operations

Long-Term Incentive Partnership Units

Long-Term Incentive Partnership or LTIP units which are also referred to as profits interest units

may be issued to eligible participants for the performance of services to or for the benefit of the Operating

Partnership LTIP units are class of partnership unit in the Companys Operating Partnership and will receive

whether vested or not the same per
unit profit distributions as the other outstanding units in the Operating

Partnership which equal per share distributions on common shares Initially LTIP units have capital account

balance of zero and do not have full parity with the common Operating Partnership units with respect to
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PEBBLEBROOK HOTEL TRUST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued
DECEMBER 31 2009

liquidating distributions If such parity is reached vested LTIP units may be converted at any time into an

equal number of common Operating Partnership units and thereafter possess all of the rights and interests of

common Operating Partnership unit including the right to redeem the common Operating Partnership unit

for common share in the REIT or cash at the option of the Operating Partnership

In order to reach parity with the common Operating Partnership units the holders LTIP capital account

balance tax basis must be equal to the capital account balance of the holder of an equivalent number of

common Operating Partnership units At December 31 2009 Pebblebrook Hotel Trust owned all common

Operating Partnership units issued by the Operating Partnership Under the provisions of this grant and the

Internal Revenue Code upon the occurrence of certain specified events the Operating Partnership may be

required or elect to revalue its assets for tax purposes Following the acquisition of the first hotel asset and to

the date of the next such revaluation event the increase if any in the deemed value of the business and assets

from the time of grant until the occurrence of such an event will be allocated first to the common Operating

Partnership unit holder Pebblebrook Hotel Trust to recover allocated operating losses incurred since the

inception of the Companys operations until such time as the capital account balance returns to value of $20

per common unit Remaining value accretion if any will then be allocated to the LTIP unit capital accounts

until such time as the LTIP unit capital account reaches parity with the common Operating Partnership unit

holder capital account Upon equalization of the capital accounts of the LTIP unit holders with the capital

accounts of the other common Operating Partnership unit holders the LTIP units will achieve full parity for

all purposes including with respect to liquidating distributions If such parity is reached vested LTIP units

may be converted into an equal number of Operating Partnership units at any time and thereafter enjoy all the

rights of such units including the redemption rights described above

Circumstances under which parity will not be reached and the LTIP unit will have no economic value to

the LTIP holder include but are not limited to the intrinsic value of the business and underlying assets do not

increase or do not increase by an amount that is sufficient for the LTIP units to reach parity dividends are not

paid and the holder does not meet the vesting criteria

On December 14 2009 upon completion of the Companys initial public offering and concurrent private

placement the Companys Operating Partnership granted 881750 LTIP units to executives and officers of the

Company under the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan These LTIP units vest ratably on each of the first five

anniversaries of the date of grant

The LTIP units were valued using Monte Carlo simulation method model The LTIP units issued during

the period ended December 31 2009 were valued at $8.50 per LTIP unit Because the Company is newly

formed entity the Company used an expected volatility of 55 percent and expected stabilized dividend yield of

percent which are based on the published historical data of sample of hospitality REITs The risk-free

interest rate of 3.08 percent is based on the U.S Treasury yield in effect at the time of grant The fair value of

the award was modeled over an expected life of seven years which is the period of time over which the

Company expects that the LTJPs will become expired converted into common Operating Partnership units or

rendered worthless following the occurrence of transaction

The fair value estimate also considered the inherent uncertainty that the LTIP units will never reach parity

and therefore will have zero economic value to the grantee because either revaluation event never occurs or

because such an event occurs but the value of the business has not increased sufficiently for the LTIP unit

holder to reach parity In reaching the assumption of this uncertainty the Company considered number of

factors including but not limited to the threshold to reach parity would require significant value creation

hotel company stocks are volatile and have trended downward with the Bloomberg REIT Index experiencing

an approximately negative 45 percent return over the past 16 years the Company owned no assets other than

the proceeds from the initial public offering and has no operating history as of the date of grant the
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PEBBLEBROOK HOTEL TRUST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

DECEMBER 31 2009

hospitality business continues to face very challenging operating conditions experiencing significant declines

in RevPAR and ADR in the last two years
and there are no assurances that these declines will not continue

the Company is heavily dependent on the efforts and service of the Companys CEO and other key members

of management to execute the Companys business plan the Company had no acquisition pipeline as of the

date of grant number of other hotel companies and investors are actively pursuing hotel acquisitions which

may increase the costs of the hotel assets and reduce projected returns the Companys financial resources may

be less than the financial resources of its peers potentially limiting the Companys ability to compete for

attractive acquisitions and various other economic factors and conditions that have adversely impacted the

hotel industry The valuation approach assumes that there is 50 percent chance that revaluation event will

not occur or will occur but the value of the business will have declined or will not have increased by an

amount that allows for the LTIP units to reach parity with the common Operating Partnership unit holders

Thus the LTIP units expire worthless In addition the valuation approach assumes there is 50 percent chance

that the Company will have sufficient cash flows to pay the assumed dividend rate

The following table provides summary of LTIP unit activity for 2009

Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair

Shares Value

Unvested at October 2009 inception

Granted 881750 8.50

Vested

Forfeited

Unvested at December 31 2009 881750 8.50

The Company recorded $0.1 million in compensation expense for the period ended December 31 2009

As of December 31 2009 there was $7.4 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to LTIP

units This cost is expected to be recognized over the 5-year vesting of these awards

NOTE EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share EPS is computed by dividing the net income available for common

shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period Diluted EPS

reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common shares were

exercised or converted into common shares and then share in the Companys earnings The Company has

included 15000 unvested restricted shares in the basic and diluted earnings per share computation as these

shares are considered participating securities LTIP units are not included in the diluted earnings per
share

computation

Basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows

From October

2009 inception to

December 31 2009

Net loss attributable to common shareholders 147

Weighted average number of common shares 4008231

Weighted average unvested restricted shares 2967

Weighted average number of shares basic and diluted 4011198

Earnings per share basic and diluted 0.04
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PEBBLEBROOK HOTEL TRUST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

DECEMBER 31 2009

NOTE COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is not cunently subject to any litigation nor is the Company aware of any threatened

litigation

NOTE SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 11 2010 the Company issued an aggregate of 47349 LTIP units to the Chief Investment

Officer These LTIP units will vest ratably on each of the first five anniversaries of the date of grant and were

issued pursuant to the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan

On March 11 2010 the Company issued an aggregate of 68746 restricted common shares to the

Companys executive officers and employees These common shares were issued pursuant to the 2009 Equity

Incentive Plan
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibit

1.1 Form of Underwriting Agreement by and among Pebblebrook Hotel Trust Pebblebrook Hotel L.P

and the Underwriters named herein Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 of Amendment No to

the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 5-1 1/A filed by the Registrant on December 2009

Registration No 333-162412

3.1 Form of Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of Pebblebrook Hotel Trust Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Amendment No to the Registrants Registration Statement on

Form S-i 1/A filed by the Registrant on November 10 2009 Registration No 333-162412

3.2 Form of Bylaws of Pebblebrook Hotel Trust Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of Amendment

No to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i 1/A filed by the Registrant on

November 10 2009 Registration No 333-162412

3.3 Form of Agreement of Limited Partnership of Pebblebrook Hotel L.P Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 3.3 of Amendment No to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-il/A filed by

the Registrant on November 25 2009 Registration No 333-162412

10.1 Form of Pebblebrook Hotel Trust 2009 Equity Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 of Amendment No to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i 1/A filed

by the Registrant on November 10 2009 Registration No 333-162412

10.2 Change in Control Severance Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Jon Bortz

10.3 Change in Control Severance Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Raymond MartzT

10.4 Change in Control Severance Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Thomas Fisher

10.5 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and its officers and trustees

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Amendment No to the Registrants Registration

Statement on Form S-i 1/A filed by the Registrant on November 10 2009 Registration

No 333-162412

10.6 Form of Share Award Agreement for officers and employees Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.5 of Amendment No to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i 1/A filed

by the Registrant on November 25 2009 Registration No 333162412

10.7 Share Award Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Jon Bortz Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Registrant on

March 16 2010 File No 00134571

10.8 Share Award Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Raymond Martz Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Registrant on

March 16 2010 File No 00134571

10.9 Share Award Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Thomas Fisher Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Registrant on

March 16 2010 File No 00134571

10.10 Form of Share Award Agreement for trustees Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of

Amendment No to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i 1/A filed by the Registrant

on November 25 2009 Registration No 333-162412

10.11 LTIP Unit Vesting Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Jon BortzT

10.12 LTIP Unit Vesting Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Raymond Martz

10.13 LTIP Unit Vesting Agreement between Pebblebrook Hotel Trust and Thomas Fishert

21.1 List of Subsidiaries of Pebblebrook Hotel Trust Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 of

Amendment No to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i i/A filed by the Registrant

on December 2009 Registration No 333-162412

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a/15d-14a as adopted pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 3a- 14a/15d- 14a as adopted pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002T



Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibit

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2OO2

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002T

Management agreement or compensatory plan or arrangement

Filed electronically herewith

We will furnish to any of our shareholders any exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K upon written

request and the payment of fee of 15 cents per page of the requested exhibits to cover our costs of

furnishing the exhibits If you wish to receive copy of one or more exhibits please submit written request

to Pebblebrook Hotel Trust Bethesda Metro Center Bethesda Maryland 20814 Attention Raymond

Martz Chief Financial Office and Secretary Written requests must include representation that the person

making the request was the beneficial owner of securities entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of

Shareholders
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